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DEFINITIONS

“AGM”
EREFAE]

“Audit Committee”
[B%REEE]

“Authorised Representative”

[EERK]

“Board”

=350

“Bye-Laws”

(AR

“CG Code”
[(EEARSTA

“Chairman”

(7%

“Companies Act of Bermuda”
[BRERAE]

“Companies Ordinance”

IPNCIRESHN

“Company” or “Landsea Green
Management”

[RARKEAR R EER]

“Company Secretary”
[AEIHE ]

the annual general meeting of the Company
RARRRBAFRE

the audit committee of the Company
KARBEZEZEE

Authorised representative of the Company as required under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules
and the authorised representative of the Company for accepting on the Company’s behalf
service of process or notice to be served on the Company in Hong Kong under Part 16 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
FARBIESBHRRENRRARERSE  URBRBEEBEOFE2E R AIEHIFE 16
HREXARANRBBEEM R AARRRBRENARRF X IB AR R FRER
=

the board of Directors

BB

the bye-laws of the Company, as amended from time to time

RRB 2 NEAR (EAEHEET)

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

LR B ERCFrE R B AT A

the chairman of the Board

EExREE

the Companies Act of Bermuda, as amended from time to time
BRERNAE (KIREE])

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong)
&AM 622 F 1N AHEDG)

Landsea Green Management Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability, whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
00106)

AFHEERAERAR  RAREFMK I ZBRAG - ERONREEAMER £/ (K
5% : 00106)

Company secretary of the Company as required under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules
FHRBIEI 28R EMN AR RARAIWME

n Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023



“Controlling Shareholder”

[ B R

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Easycorps”

[ Easycorps |

“ESG”

[ESG]

“ESG Committee”
[ESGZE g

“Executive Committee”
[1TZ 82

“FY2023”
[TE-=ZHRFE]

“GFA”
[3ZEEmEE]

“Greensheid”

[ Greensheid |

“Group”

[A&HE]

“Hong Kong”
(&

“Landsea Group”

ezl

DEFINITIONS
R

have the meanings ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB EmARRE T 2 HRE

the directors of the Company

RRRIZES

Easycorps Group Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian

Easycorps Group Limited - REBHEB R HFESAMA LI BERAF  AHEERZEER
WA

Environmental, social and governance
R g RER

The ESG Committee of the Company
KABIESGEZEE

the executive committee of the Company

ARAMITERESR

the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_E-=F+-_RA=+—HILEE

gross floor area
EEME

Greensheid Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, and a company indirectly wholly-owned by Landsea Group

Greensheid Corporation * REEBHERMRESHMK L 2BR AT AAFEEMES
%A

the Company and its subsidiaries
EAN/NCIDSENi) = PN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REFEBRETHRER

Landsea Group Co., Ltd. (BA5F & E x5 B R 2 7]), a company established in the PRC

and the Controlling Shareholder of the Company
A EBEROBRAR - RPBIKIZZ AR RARA AERRER

MR O ERARAT —— “E AR



DEFINITIONS
R

“Landsea Green Life”

[BARS AR 2 4 E

“Landsea Homes”

[Landsea Homes |

“Landsea International”
[ Landsea International ]
“Listing Rules”

[ EH#RAI

“Model Code”
[EZE<rRl

“Mr. Tian”
[ B %A

“NASDAQ”
[#AHnEs |

“Nomination Committee”

[RBZEg]

“PRC”
[

“Project Management Services”

Nk e =3 3

“Remuneration Committee”

[FrNEZE g

Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1965)

MAFSEEERBERAT  RASESEMK L 2BERAT - HR ORI TER
Ei (B R5E - 1965)

Landsea Homes Corporation, a company incorporated under the State of Delaware in the
USA and the common stock of which are listed on NASDAQ, and is a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company (symbols: LSEA)

Landsea Homes Corporation * 5 3 Bl i hr 2= M st B SZ 89 2 A
W WAARRATRERENE QG (FHMRE - LSEA)

HEBERRAHZER

Landsea International Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and indirectly wholly-owned by Landsea Group

Landsea International Holdings Limited - REE#B R ST MK 2 BR A A - B
SEEREZEHESR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B prg s LR A

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
FHRBIMI SR CIFTE E M EITAEREITIEF R HWITAESFH

Mr. Tian Ming, the Chairman, an executive Director and the Controlling Shareholder
HAAELE  £F  PITEFHRERER

National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations capital market
XE2EESFRHSEAMSEDREEATS

the nomination committee of the Company

ARBIZEBEZEE

the People’s Republic of China
hE AR HM

Project development and management services

A B % R EE RS

the remuneration committee of the Company

ARBIZHMEE S

n Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023



“Restricted Share(s)”

BRI R A7

“RMB”
N

“SFO”
(787 M ' 15RH]

“Share(s)”
[ &1

“Share Award Scheme”

[ R fn 2Bt &1 )

“Share Option Scheme 2012”
[T FERE 2

“Share Option Scheme 2022”
[T = —FRERE S

“sq.m.”

[ K]

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bk 22 P

“United States”
[ ]

“Us$”
3

DEFINITIONS
R

the Shares granted or to be granted under the Share Award Scheme which are subject to
restrictions

RIER D SE B ET 81 3 T 2 Z IR Bl AR D

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
AR FRZZEEH

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
EREDIEST1 BB 7 MAE KD

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company
RAFIRAFEGREEO0.01 BT HilAx

the restricted share award scheme of the Company adopted on 2 July 2014

RAFRZT—MNF+ A ZBERMA 2 XR B 2Rt 8l

the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 25 April 2012
AARRZE—ZFWNA -+ R HREMNZBERETS

the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 30 June 2022

RRAFR T _FRA=THERAZBRESE

square meters

FHK

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEBMERSMERRQA]

the United States of America
EFRE RE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of United States

X XBZEAEEH

MR O ERARAT —— “E AR g
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN MANAGEMENT IN 2023

F Gk 05 PR 20234 K S5 B Ak 2

HONOURS OR AWARDS OF THE COMPANY IN
2023:

In May, the CCRC project of Landsea Fanghua Residence* (8
FFERE) in Wuxi was awarded the 2023 Most Influential
Healthy Community in the 12th Golden Brick Value List.

On 18 July, Landsea Yuehu Shangjun* (B8 5 e 454 i £6) won
the “2023 Japan International Pioneer Design Award — Real
Estate Space Silver Award”.

On 3 August, at the 2023 China Industrial Resources Strategic
Summit of EH Consulting, Landsea Green Management was
awarded the “2023 Excellent Brand of China Real Estate Project
Management” and the “2023 Leading Brand of China Real Estate
Project Management Quality” by virtue of its outstanding
comprehensive strength in project management, and ranked
among the top in the “2023 China Project Management Service
Provider Comprehensive Strength TOP30”.

In August, Landsea Dezhou ® Shangjun* (BA 57/l e 1% Z6) was
awarded the New National Green Building Operation Label, the
first in Zhongshan.

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF

LANDSEA GREEN MANAGEMENT IN 2023

Mo U 29330001

FSEAGIE - S - AL AF AN IR

s i st i
N it £ 491
Shortlist Case

R EEAmLE

On 6 December, Landsea Green Management won the “Best
Small and Medium-sized Company” award at the “8th Zhitong
Financial Capital Market Annual Conference and Listed Company
Award Ceremony”.

On 21 December, at the 20th anniversary celebration of Elite
Science and Technology Award, Landsea Green Management
was awarded the “Outstanding Enterprise along Green Supply
Chain” for the fifth consecutive year.

KEY EVENTS IN 2023:

On 10 January, the 2022 Belt and Road Economic and
Environmental Cooperation Forum hosted by the China
Environmental Protection Federation released 30 Belt and Road
green supply chain cases. Landsea was selected as the only
selected enterprise in the real estate industry for its excellent
performance in promoting the green and low-carbon
transformation of the supply chain.

On 3 March, Landsea and ICBC Nanjing Branch signed a
strategic cooperation agreement. In the next three years, ICBC
Nanjing Branch will provide Landsea with intentional financial
support of RMB10 billion.
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN MANAGEMENT IN 2023

B &k €045 B 20234 K S5 5 B 4

In March, the first CCRC (continuing care retirement community)
project of Landsea Fanghua Residence* (BA 55 75 2 &) in Wuxi
and Landsea was launched, achieving an excellent sales of 100

flats.

On 18 April, Landsea Holdings and Wuxi Huishan Guokong
Group* (£ 5 2 11 B £ B) entered into the Cooperation
Development Agreement on Land Parcel B in New Economy
Industrial Par”, pursuant to which both parties intend to
cooperate in green residential development, project operation
and other fields.

On 31 May, Zhangjiagang Jinxia Real Estate Development Co.,
Ld* GRREM @ EFHER % B A F) and Landsea Real
Estate signed a contract for the development and management
consulting services of Zhangdi 2022-A01 land parcel.

On 5 June, it’s the seventh anniversary of the “Green Supply
Chain Act of the Real Estate Industry in the PRC” jointly initiated
by Landsea, industry associations, leading enterprises, NGO
partners and other units. Since its establishment, Landsea has
not only acted as an example to achieve “green procurement
only”on the procurement side, but also actively encouraged more
enterprises to join, so as to jointly promote the green
development of the industry.

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF

LANDSEA GREEN MANAGEMENT IN 2023

In June, Nanijing Linglong Xinting* (@ S ¥ B %7 =) was equipped
with Landsea’s sixth technology product , namely Healthy
Fortress. Despite market downturn and difficulty of our
competitors in selling their products, the first batch of our flats
was sold out at the end of April. In early June, remaining flats
were launched, and were also sold out quickly. The outstanding
performance of our flats provided a stable premium income for
the partners.

In December, Landsea ® Tianyue Shishan* (BA 55 e K # 0 (11) |
the high-end improvement project of Suzhou Shishan segment*
(B M8 ILAR$R) , was sold out once launched, and the project
was perfectly completed.

2013-2023 marked the 10th anniversary of project management
of Landsea Green Management.

* For identification purposes only

BA 5 Ak €0 3 2023 4F K =5 5 Bl 4
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV &

MARKET OVERVIEW

In 2023, real estate sales in the PRC hit an eight-year low with a
general downward trend observed in the house prices in 70 large and
middle cities. The government adopted a series of supportive measures
such as the gradual easing of the purchase restriction in major cities
including first-tier cities, to revive the market demand that remains
sluggish. At present, the supply and demand relationship of the real
estate industry has been substantially reversed, and the industry is still
undergoing a difficult and prolonged deep adjustment.

OPERATION PERFORMANCE

In the face of continuous unprecedented challenges, all Landsea
employees have kept their determination and morale high. We believe
that our courage and professional strength will sustain the company
through the hard times. In 2023, the contracted sales of “Landsea
Products” amounted to approximately RMB18.39 billion with
contracted GFA of approximately 967,000 sg.m. The total revenue was
approximately RMB9.04 billion. During the period under review,
leveraging its green technology residence construction ability and
professional project management ability, the Company secured a total
of 18 projects, among which 12 were in the PRC and 6 were in the
United States; and achieved smooth delivery of over 12,000 houses in
24 projects in China and over 2,100 houses in the United States during
the year.
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REAL ESTATE BUSINESS IN THE PRC

As a green development service provider, green differentiation strategy
has been embedded in our heart and soul. After years of devotion, our
research and construction abilities in green building has been the
foundation of our success in the fierce market competition. As of the
end of 2023, we have built more than 200 green residential projects
across the country, with a green residential development area of more
than 33 million sg.m. At present, the Company has obtained a total of
104 green building certifications in the PRC, of which more than 56 are
three-star green building certifications. The first three-star green
building project certification in 9 cities, including Shanghai, Nanjing,
Hangzhou and Suzhou, was obtained by Landsea. Our projects with
national green building certification accounted for nearly 70% of the
total number of projects. In addition, we have also obtained 21
international green building certifications, including BREEAM ,LEED
and DGNB.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
R

As at the end of 2023, the accumulated saleable value in the PRC
amounted to approximately RMB116.83 billion, among which first-tier,
new first-tier and second-tier cities' accounted for approximately 90% ,
Yangtze River Delta and Greater Bay Area accounted for nearly 80%.
During the year, Landsea secured 12 projects in
Suzhou,Wuxi,Chengdu, Chongging, Xi’an and Foshan, etc. and
achieved an additional saleable value of approximately RMB28.1 billion
as well as an additional saleable area of approximately 1.33 million
sg.m. All newly secured projects were development and management
services (“project management services”) projects. In 2023, revenue
from property management services projects amounted to
approximately RMB420 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
19.1%, and the gross profit margin of property management services
projects was 27%. As at the end of 2023, we provided a total of 102
projects with project management services and with minority interests,
while the total saleable area was approximately 5.6 million sg.m. and
the estimated saleable value was approximately RMB110.1 billion,
representing approximately 94% of the total accumulated saleable
value in the PRC.

Over the years, Landsea has upheld and adhered to its role as the
revolutionist of the industry and it firmly believes that the industry will
become more professional with more sophisticated division of labour
and more diversified risks. Landsea has been exploring the path of
transforming from a traditional asset-heavy housing model to an asset-
light model with concrete action. We have insisted on the strategy over
the years so that we can face the headwinds of the industry and deal
with the sluggish sales with greater ease and agility. When the industry
is transforming, refusing to change is like imposing shackles on
ourselves. We can build a brighter future only if we actively reform and
stay true to innovation.

1 According to the 2023 Cities’ Business Attractiveness Ranking (2023 3 T 7 2 it 1
#E47%5) published by the Rising Lab of China Business Network, 15 new first-tier
cities in chronological order are Chengdu, Chongaing, Hangzhou, Wuhan, Suzhou,
Xi’an, Nanjing, Changsha, Tianjin, Zhengzhou, Dongguan, Qingdao, Kunming,
Ningbo, Hefei.
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REAL ESTATE BUSINESS IN THE UNITED STATES

The year 2023 is the 10th anniversary since the establishment of our
real estate business in the United States. During this decade, our US
company has earned a place in the real estates industry with its
remarkable execution abilities and superior merger, acquisition and
consolidation capabilities. The Company achieved steady growth in its
results with CAGR of its revenue exceeding 28% since 2018. As the
rate-rise cycle remains, and the 30-year fixed-rate mortgage remains at
a high level of 6.8% in the United States, property owners’ demand for
acquiring a new property as replacement has been suppressed by high
interest rates. The proportion of new flat supply to overall property for
sale has been on the rise as a result of the lower supply of second-
hand flats, therefore house prices of new flats remain at a higher level.

During the period under review, Landsea Homes had new projects in
California, Florida, Texas and Colorado with saleable areas of
approximately 80,000 sg.m. and the saleable value was approximately
RMB1.22 billion. As at the end of 2023, the accumulated saleable
value in the United States was approximately RMB24.5 billion, of which
approximately 48% was for Florida and Texas together, approximately
20% was for California and approximately 30% was for Arizona.

OUTLOOK

The real estate industry in the PRC is under continuous in-depth
adjustment, yet it is still the pillar of the national economy with its scale
remaining at around RMB10 trillion. The industry switched gears from
one of high-speed growth to that of inventory competition and
landscape optimization, where only the fittest can survive. Landsea’s
competitive advantage is more prominent under the era with both
challenges and opportunities. Looking back, we have insisted on our
strategic transformation for product differentiation, asset-light model
transformation and revenue diversification for over a decade. We
position ourselves in the new development era more clearly and
precisely as a healthy and sustainable green development service
provider, being a green brand service provider with strong trading
ability and property investment ability.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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The in-depth adjustment of the industry has allowed our team to
understand how to overcome obstacles and find its way out of the
tough times. Facing internal and external challenges of the macro
economy and the industry, we are in a battlefield with potential dangers
and crises, where only the last man standing wins.

While the past cannot be rewritten, we can look forward to the future.
In the new development era of the real estate industry, we will
continuously enhance our understanding on the market, be respectful
and grasp opportunities in a more professional and sophisticated
market through enhancing product innovation and investment. We will
leverage our unique advantage and abundant resources in transforming
into a successful enterprise in the new development era.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. TIAN MING (“MR. TIAN”)

Mr. Tian was born on 24 January 1961. He was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and an executive Director on 31 July 2013. He
is the chairman of the ESG Committee. He obtained an Executive
Master of Business Administration from China Europe International
Business School (“CEIBS”). Mr. Tian founded Landsea Group in 2001.
He is now the controlling shareholder and also the Chairman and
President of Landsea Group. Mr. Tian has more than 20 years’
extensive experience in the fields of competitive strategy, operation
management and property investment and development.

Mr. Tian initiated the “Green Supply Chain Act of Real Estate Industry”,
which aims to mitigate the negative effect of the industrial supply chain
on the environment by promoting green procurement.

Mr. Tian was a non-executive director and the chairman of Landsea
Green Life since 15 January 2021, he serves as the chairman of the
board and a director of Landsea Homes since January 2021 and he
was an independent non-executive director of Chervon Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange;
stock code: 2285) since 8 December 2021.

MR. HUANG ZHENG (“MR. HUANG”)

Aged 41, was appointed as an executive Director and chief executive
officer of the Company on 27 March 2020. He is also a member of the
ESG Committee. He graduated from Wuhan University in 2004, where
he obtained a bachelor degree of law and Sociology. He also received
a master degree in Sociology from the Law School of Tsinghua
University in 2007. Mr. Huang had worked for Huarun (Dalian) Co.,
Ltd., CITIC Real Estate Co., Ltd. and Hailiang Group Co., Ltd. as the
sales manager and general manager respectively. He has extensive
experience in sales and marketing and operation management in real
estate industry. Mr. Huang joined the Company in 2019 and served as
the vice president.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

R AE BN B i

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MS. GU JING (“MS. GU”)

Aged 49, is currently the board secretary of Landsea Group, the
Controlling Shareholder of the Company. She joined Landsea Group in
2007 and served as the accounting department manager and tax
department manager of Financial Management Center, assistant of the
general manager and officer of the board of directors of Landsea
Group. Ms. Gu obtained a bachelor degree of accounting from Nanjing
University of Science and Technology. She is a Certified Public
Accountant and a Certified Tax Agent in China.

MR. CHENG YUAN (“MR. CHENG”)

Aged 44, is the managing director of the asset management
department of Ping An Real Estate Company Limited (“Ping An”) and
has been appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 30 December 2022. Prior to joining Ping An in May 2022,
he worked in CapitaLand (China) as regional general manager. He has
over 15 years’ experience in real estate development industry,
commercial real estate investment, asset management, and
commercial development and operation. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering from Hunan University of Science and
Technology (formerly known as Xiangtan Institute of Technology* (/&
T Z£Bx)) and a master’'s degree in management science and
engineering from Wuhan University of Technology.

Mr. Cheng has tendered his resignation as a non-executive Director
with effect from 28 April 2023 due to his personal affairs.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. XU XIAONIAN (“MR. XU”)

Aged 70, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
31 July 2013. He is the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the ESG Committee, he
has also been appointed as a member of the Audit Committee with
effect from 31 October 2022. He obtained a PHD of Economics from
University of California Davis in 1991. He was the managing director
and head of research department in China International Capital
Corporation Limited, and senior economist of Merrill Lynch (Asia
Pacific) and consultant of World Bank. Currently, Mr. Xu serves as the
Honorary Professor in CEIBS and his research areas include
macroeconomics, finance, financial institutions and markets, transition
economics and China’s economic reforms. He is a famous Chinese
economist and was granted the highest award of economics study in
China, the “Sun Yefang Economic Science Award”. Mr. Xu has more
than 37 years’ experience in economics analysis.

MR. CHEN TAI-YUAN (“MR. CHEN”)

Aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
22 March 2019. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the ESG Committee. Mr. Chen is a tenured
Full Professor of Accounting at the School of Business and
Management at Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He
earned his Bachelor of Business Administration from National Cheng-
Chi University (Taiwan), Master of Science from University of lllinois at
Urbana Champaign, and P.H.D. in Accounting from University of
Texas. His research interests are corporate governance, auditing, and
earnings quality. His research has been published in top tier journals
including The Accounting Review, Journal of Accounting and
Economics, Journal of Financial Economics, Journal of Financial and
Quantitative Analysis, and Accounting Organizations and Society. Mr.
Chen’s article in Journal of Accounting and Economics (2007) (“JAE”)
is one of the most cited JAE articles in the year. His research has been
featured in CFO.com, Accounting Today, Thomson Reuters and
American Accounting Association’s monthly newsletter. Mr. Chen has
more than 14 years of experience of teaching financial and managerial
accounting to MBA and EMBA students and in Executive Education
programs. He has won numerous teaching awards including the
Franklin Teaching Prize, the Best 10 Lecturers, and Faculty of the Year
by EMBA students. Mr. Chen is also a CPA (Australia) and a Chartered
Global Management Accountant (CGMA).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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MR. RUI MENG (“MR. RUI”)

Aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
27 May 2019. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the ESG Committee. Mr. Rui graduated from University
of International Relations (2 % B8 & £ %) in the PRC in July 1990,
where he obtained a bachelor degree in international economics. He
also received a master of science in economics from Oklahoma State
University in the United States as well as a master of business
administration and a doctor of philosophy in business administration
from the University of Houston in the United States in May 1993,
December 1996 and August 1997 respectively. Mr. Rui has been a
Professor of Finance and Accounting at CEIBS since January 2012,
and has held the title of Zhongkun Group Chair in Finance at CEIBS
from October 2015 to May 2019 and Parkland Chair in Finance at
CEIBS from May 2019. Mr. Rui has been professionally designated as
a Certified Financial Analyst by the Association for Investment
Management and Research since September 2000 and a Financial
Risk Manager by the Global Association of Risk Professionals since
April 2010.

He serves as an independent non-executive director and the chairman
of the audit committee, and a member of each of remuneration
committee and nomination committee of Dexin Services Group Limited
(stock code: 2215; a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange) since June 2021 and an independent non-executive director
and the chairman of the audit committee of China Education Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 839; a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange) and he has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director, chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the nomination committee of Country Garden
Services Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6098; a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) since May 2018. Mr.
Rui also serves as an independent non-executive director of Sichuan
Languang Justbon Services Group Co., Ltd. (a company formerly listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange and withdrew its listing
status on 19 August 2021) from 17 June 2021 to 19 August 2021. Mr.
Rui has been an independent non-executive director and a member of
the audit committee of Shang Gong Group Co., Ltd. (- T H B (£ E)
f% 15 & R A &) (stock code: 600843; a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange) from June 2017 to June 2023, an
independent non-executive director and a member of the audit
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

committee of COSCO Shipping Energy Transportation Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 1138 and stock code: 600026; a company listed on both the
main board of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange
respectively) from June 2015 to June 2021 and an independent non-
executive director and the chairman of the audit committee of Midea
Group (M EB D B R A A)) (stock code: 000333; a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) from September 2015 to
September 2018 and an independent director and the chairman of the
audit committee of Shanghai Winner Information Technology Co., Inc.
(EBIEME BRI R, AR RG] (stock code: 300609; a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) from December 2015 to
September 2020.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhou Kunpeng* (/& £ fl5) (“Mr. Zhou”), aged 48, is the vice
president of Landsea Green Management. He is primarily responsible
for the management of manpower and administration, customer
service and reverse review. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in April 2007 as
the deputy director of the president’s office. From May 2008 to
October 2020, Mr. Zhou held various positions such as the office
director, the compliance officer, the customer-service director, the
general project manager, the deputy general manager, the standing
deputy general manager and the general manager of regional
companies, mainly responsible for administration, customer
relationship, operation and management of various projects and
regional companies. Since October 2020, Mr. Zhou has been the vice
president of Landsea Green Management, responsible for the
management of manpower and administration, customer service and
reverse review. He obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in economics from
Anhui Finance and Trade College* (% #8 & £F%) in 1997 and an
EMBA from CEIBS in September 2019. In January 2024, Mr. Zhou was
newly appointed as the person in charge of supply chain management,
while his other duties remained unchanged.

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B E A BN B Y

MEREEEREMN _ZE—AEAAE_ZT—N
FANABEEENEEROBR AR (RMHRR:
000333 : —HIRNAINFEHFRX S EM AT 28
VIIRTEFERERZESCERERR_E—1h
FT-RARE-Z-FTFNAPRAEE LBERNE
BEREFRM AR AR (KR5S : 300609 : —ER
FYNBEER G EMZ AR 2BILEE RNEZRE
BEIEF-

BREBAE

BEBEE (BAXE]) 485 AEFHHEERE
WEBE BEZEBEANTE  BERERAEE
MEBREB - AEER -_ZST+FWAMARE
B ETEHEREET R_ZTN\FRAE_Z
“EFT A RAREETZEARBRL URHAEE
T BRI TRAE EBIHARIEEALE .
Bl BISRBKIE  RISE  TE2BEAD
TR -BFEFE ZEBELEEARNEES
B-BZTTF AR AAEEAPRFHREE
BMERE  AEANTER  BEREROBENE
BER -BR—NANEFERLZRT EERMELEE
BELEU IR _FT-AFNARTEEETLR
BRESEAEIEAB TREIEETERMEMBA) -
ZEZMFE—R AARAEHEoEHEEEET
15 MBI IRIF T & -

MR O ERARAT —— “E AR



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Liu Shouwei (2|57 1) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 39, is the vice president
of Landsea Green Management. Mr. Liu is primarily responsible for the
overall operation and management of the Hangzhou real estate
company in 2023. Mr. Liu joined the Group in July 2007 as a deputy
manager of the finance department. From December 2014 to July
2019, Mr. Liu held various positions such as the manager of finance
department, the assistant to general manager and the deputy general
manager of regional companies and the general manager and the
assistant to president of the financial management centre of the
regional company, mainly responsible for financial management. Since
July 2019, Mr. Liu has served as the vice president. Since January
2020, he has also assumed the position of general manager of the
Hangzhou real estate company, responsible for its overall operation
and management. He obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in accounting
from Southeast University in July 2007 and an MBA from Sichuan
University in September 2018. He is now studying an EMBA in Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business. In January 2024, Mr. Liu was re-
designated to the headquarter of the Group as the general manager of
the financial risk control centre. He was the person in charge of the
operation support centre of the headquarter as well as the Hangzhou
real estate company.

Mr. Mao Jiangjun (E L &) (“Mr. Mao”), aged 44, is the vice
president of Landsea Green Management. Mr. Mao is primarily
responsible for the overall operation and management of the Chengdu
real estate company. Mr. Mao joined the Group in April 2014 as the
general manager of the Chengdu real estate company. Since February
2020, Mr. Mao has served as the vice president and the general
manager of the Chengdu real estate company, responsible for its
overall operation and management. In September 2023, Mr. Mao was
appointed as the general manager of the Western real estate company.
He obtained a master’s degree in mechanical and electrical engineering
from Zhejiang University in March 2005 and an EMBA from CEIBS in
April 2019. He is now studying a doctorate in business administration
in NEOMA Business School. In February 2024, Mr. Mao was appointed
as the general manager of the Xichang real estate company and the
person in charge of the Western real estate company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Ms. Gu Jing (EE18) (“Ms. Gu”), aged 43, is the vice president of
Landsea Green Management. Ms. Gu is fully responsible for the
financial management of Landsea Green Management. Ms. Gu joined
the Group in May 2014 as the treasurer. From August 2016 to
November 2020, Ms. Gu held various positions such as the assistant
to general manager, the deputy general manager and the general
manager, mainly responsible for finance, supply chain and post-
investment management. Since November 2020, Ms. Gu has been the
assistant to the president of Landsea Green Management, responsible
for the overall financial management of the Company. Since June
2022, Ms. Gu has been the vice president of Landsea Green
Management, responsible for the overall financial management of the
Company, while she has also served as the person in charge of the
financial department of Landsea Group. She obtained a Bachelor’s
Degree in accounting from Nanjing University of Finance and
Economics in 2003. In January 2024, Ms. Gu was re-designated to
Landsea Group.

Mr. Xu Aibing* (2 E £
Landsea Green Management. Mr. Xu is primarily responsible for the

) (“Mr. Xu”), aged 44, is the vice president of

overall operation and management of the Nanjing real estate company.
Mr. Xu joined the Group in March 2018 as the deputy general manager
of the management centre for supply chain. From February 2019 to
February 2020, Mr. Xu served as its general manager. Since February
2020, Mr. Xu has been the assistant to president of Landsea Green
Management and the general manager of the management centre for
supply chain, responsible for operation. Since September 2021, Mr. Xu
has concurrently served as the general manager of the Nanjing real
estate company, responsible for its overall operation and management.
He has served as the vice president as well as the general manager of
the Nanjing real estate company since February 2023. He obtained a
Bachelor’s Degree in civil engineering from Southeast University in
2001.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

MS. GAO YUAN (“MS. GAO”)

Ms. Gao was appointed as the board secretary, the Company
Secretary and the Authorised Representative on 30 December 2022.

Ms. Gao joined the Company in December 2020 and serves as an
investor relations officer. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Gao served
as the executive director of the board secretary office and the executive
director of investor relations in Fosun Tourism Group (stock code:
1992.hk) and the head of capital market in Haier Electronics Group
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1169.hk).

Ms. Gao obtained a bachelor’'s degree in management from the
Central University of Finance and Economics in 2005 and a master’s
degree in business administration from Peking University in 2016. She
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute.
She is also a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance
Professional, a Certified Management Accountant (CMA) and a
Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) Charterholder. Ms. Gao is now
studying Juris Doctor in Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Gao has over 15 years’ experience in investor relations and

corporate governance of listed companies. The Company meets the
requirements under Rules 3.28 and 8.17 of the Listing Rules
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

I Al S A

BUSINESS REVIEW

OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP

The Group upheld the development strategy of “Product-differentiation,
Asset-light transformation and Revenue-diversification” and leveraged
its resource endowments to further achieve capability of green property
products differentiation. Meanwhile, with the advantages of products
diversification, the Group actively expanded various projects focusing
on minority interests and Project Management Services to achieve
revenue diversification.

In 2023, “Landsea Products” recorded contracted sales of
approximately RMB18.39 billion (2022: approximately RMB22.32
billion). The contracted area was 967,241 sqg.m. (2022: 1,162,178
sg.m.).

In 2023, the Group secured 18 projects in total, of which 12 were in
the PRC and 6 were in the United States. All of the projects were under
development for sale (including 6 projects in which the Group held
equity interests and 12 Project Management Services projects).

In 2023, the Group recorded an increase in the new project saleable
area of 1,410,517 sg.m., which were properties under development for
sale, with expected new project saleable value of approximately
RMB29.29 billion, in which new project saleable area of 80,784 sq.m.
and expected new project saleable value of approximately RMB1.22
billion are recorded from the new projects the Group held interests
respectively. Among the equity-held projects, the new project saleable
area and the expected new project saleable value attributable to the
Group were 80,784 sg.m. and approximately RMB1.22 billion
respectively. During the period under review, the Group obtained new
Project Management Services projects with a GFA of 1,835,078 sg.m.
(saleable area of 1,329,733 sq.m.) and expected saleable value of
approximately RMB28.08 billion. By adhering to a stable and prudent
investment strategy, the Group’s costs for acquiring land and asset
have significant advantage in resisting the market risk in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 20283, the Group had reserve projects with an aggregate saleable
area of 7,454,558 sqg.m. and expected saleable value of approximately
RMB141.32 billion, in which saleable area of 2,100,689 sq.m. and
expected saleable value of approximately RMB39.91 billion secured for
the equity-held projects, with saleable area of 1,863,863 sg.m. and
expected saleable value of approximately RMB32.34 billion attributable
to the Group. The Group had also secured a total of 76 Project
Management Services projects, with saleable area of 5,353,869 sg.m.
and expected saleable value of approximately RMB101.40 billion. The
Group held the leased properties with total GFA of 69,029 sg.m. and
the equity-held projects with GFA of 42,887 sg.m..

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT IN THE PRC

For expansion of real estate development in the PRC, Landsea
continued to take a prudent and pragmatic approach. As at year ended
31 December 2023, the Group secured a total of 12 projects in cities
such as Chengdu, Chongging, Suzhou, Wuxi, Xi’an, Foshan and
Taizhou with an additional saleable area of 1,330,000 sg.m. and
saleable value of approximately RMB28.08 billion. Meanwhile, the new
Project Management Services contracts amounted to approximately
RMB460 million (2022: approximately RMB1.19 billion).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB il S 4 T

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT IN THE UNITED STATES
The Group’s property development business covers both the PRC and
the United States. Landsea Homes has successively entered Greater
New York, California, Arizona, Texas and Florida. In 2023, Landsea
Homes secured 6 new projects with additional saleable area of
approximately 80,000 sg.m. and saleable value of approximately
RMB1.22 billion.

CONTRACTED SALES IN WHICH THE GROUP HELD
EQUITY INTERESTS AND PROPERTIES SOLD BUT
NOT RECOGNISED

In 2023, the total contracted sales of the property projects in which the
Group held equity interests amounted to approximately RMB9.48
billion with contracted sales area of 484,766 sq.m., i.e. an average
selling price of RMB19,561 per sg.m.. The contracted sales were
mainly from the on-sale projects in Hangzhou, Wuxi, Wuhan, Jiaxing,
Chengdu, Chongging, etc. in the PRC and first tier and second tier
gateway cities in the United States. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group’s accumulated areas of properties sold but not recognised were
1,012,870 sq.m. (as at 31 December 2022: 1,583,075 sq.m.),
amounting to approximately RMB16.42 billion (as at 31 December
2022: approximately RMB24.37 billion), in which areas of properties
sold but not recognised attributable to the Group were 450,238 sqg.m.
(as at 31 December 2022: 672,557 sg.m.), amounting to approximately
RMB7.33 billion (as at 31 December 2022: approximately RMB10.40
billion).

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023

EEEBER
AEBEMERZERMBP EMU - Landsea
Homes 5t & # AR A= ~ ANFIAEE 2N - T2 A
M SRERMEBEEEMN RZTZ=F
€ » Landsea Homes #11% 6@ 1H B - %ﬁi—f’%ﬁﬁé
H8BEFHAK  AIEEENARBE122(ET

EREERNHERCERARNE

R-ZB_=FF AEEESVEXHEERHEWN

BHHERFTHOAARKEUSET  FHHEERE
7 484,766F 75Kk - HE AT T A RKARK 19,561
o AREEFERKRAPEMM - &85 - FZ -
2 KE - BEERESHTALER— - —&RFFPR

THEESEE N_Z-_=ZF+-_A=+—H &
EEZFEERARYEEER1,012,870F FK
(ZZE-—F+=-A=+—H :1,583,075F 1K) -
SHEOBARBI642BT (ZE-_—_F+_ A
=t—H:WARE2437ET)  Heh» KEEE
R THEERARYERIER 450,238 F 77 K
(ZEZZF+ZHA=+—H 672557 F 77K) -
CHEOBAREIBIEL (ZZE=Z=F+=A
=+—H:HARB104.0ETT) °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EXTERNAL CONTRACTS IN 2023 “EZ=FHINMED
Average
Contracted Contracted
Equity Sales Contracted Sales
No. External contract projects in 2023 Holding Amounts Sales GFA  Selling Price
FFo 2023 FH ML IEE R BRHE BRHE BREHE
&8 EEEE FHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)
(AR®ETT) (FF7K) (AR®T)
1 Hefei Landsea’s Hi-tech Court 49% 11,174 443.00 25,223
&A= ER
2 Yixin Xindu Mansion 26% 524 -
B B E AT
3 Suzhou Cheng Garden 100% 200 -
N B R
4 Wuxi Xihua Mansion 40% 138,414 552 24,301
85 BRI T
5 Hangzhou Le Mansion 50% 1,800 -
EAE i
6 Hangzhou Linglongyue 30% 338,957 18,022 18,808
UM 32 e
7 Haining Oasis Jing Yuan 20% 526,159 33,913 15,515
BB AN ERB
8 Wuhan Xihua Mansion 30% 255,187 13,157 19,396
B BREE T
9 Chengdu Xihua Mansion 33% 1,320 -
X ERER 2 1T
10 Chengdu Landsea Cuiyue 100% 14,384 1,182 12,169
P EBBA 7 25 ik
11 Chengdu Le Mansion 76% 4,672 -
P BB 4L i
12 Chonggin Xiyue Mansion 100% 192,901 12,026 16,040
BEEERWAT
13 Tianjin Emerald Lan Wan 75% 1,084 -
RAEERRE
14 Tianjin Cuiweilan Pavilion(B) 100% 2,984 -
REZWRE B)
15 Tianjin Cuiweilan Pavilion(CD) 35% 2,734 -

KRR E (CD)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBEE B S o A
Average
Contracted Contracted
Equity Sales Contracted Sales
No. External contract projects in 2023 Holding Amounts Sales GFA  Selling Price
o 2023 FH BN IEE LA BEHE EEHE BEHE
(] EXEER FHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)
(AR®FT) (FHK) (AR%T)
16 Shijiazhuang Future Block 26% 2,210 -
ARERRER
17 Zhongshan Landsea Dezhou Shangjun 43% 100 -
oL RA SR N 0 AR
18 Changshu Shangjing Mingzhu 51% 608 -
EARIREE
19 Wuxi Xiyunli 10% 241,814 7,831 30,879
mpRER
20 Centerra 100% 107,121 6,671 16,058
21 EllisTownCountry 100% 706,103 26,518 26,627
22 Lincoln 85 — Nolin 100% 194,296 5,291 36,722
23 Placentia Heights 100% 270,815 6,541 41,408
24 Synagogue 100% -49,257 -332 148,364
25 Tirado 100% 662,482 16,071 41,222
26 Trinity Lakes 100% 155,114 11,571 13,405
27 Eastmark 100% 356,276 18,116 19,666
28 Estrella 100% 88,433 5,307 16,663
29 North Central Phoenix 100% 43,743 1,489 29,377
(Madison Town & Country)
30 Northern Farms 100% 182,512 11,326 16,114
31 Sunrise Ranch 100% 327,949 21,564 15,208
32 Sunset Farms 100% 145,170 9,769 14,860
33 Verrado 100% 149,173 7,228 20,638
34 Ardmore 100% 54,251 3,637 14,916
35 Bargrove 100% 186,592 13,901 13,423
36 Celery Oaks 100% 35,175 2,349 14,974
37 Courtyards at Waterstone 100% 117,844 8,280 14,232
38 Cypress Hammock 100% 179,351 11,780 15,225
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R Lo b
Average
Contracted Contracted
Equity Sales Contracted Sales
No. External contract projects in 2023 Holding Amounts Sales GFA  Selling Price
ok 2023 FHIMELNIEE LA BEHE ERHE BEHE
(] EEER FIHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)
(AR®FT) (FHXK) (AR%T)
39 Davenport Estates 100% 4,914 365 13,463
40 Greenfield 100% 74,989 5,856 12,805
a1 Halifax Plantation-Bulow 100% 90,870 5,133 17,703
42 Hammock Reserve 100% 111,989 8,709 12,859
43 Hanover Lakes 100% 104,841 7,542 13,901
44 Lake Lincoln 100% 77,368 5,658 13,920
45 Legacy Landings 100% 83,361 6,137 13,583
46 Palm Bay 100% 3,105 248 12,520
47 Palm Coast 100% 17,494 1,249 14,006
48 Preservation Pointe 100% 70,345 5,489 12,816
49 Ridgeview 100% 241,484 17,197 14,042
50 St. Johns Preserve 100% 118,609 8,106 14,632
51 Lavender 100% 445,392 5,990 74,356
52 Novato 100% 136,155 3,762 36,192
53 Ontario Vander Eyk 100% 336,370 11,423 29,447
54 Belle Oaks 100% 5,821 293 19,867
55 Saratoga Hills (Key Ranch) 100% 8,672 309 28,065
56 North Copper Canyon 100% 250,094 17,530 14,267
57 Horse Creek 100% 82,915 6,401 12,953
58 Parkview at the Hills 100% 202,478 13,677 14,804
59 Preserve at Sunrise 100% 45,635 3,412 13,375
60 Heathrow Country Estate Homes 100% 4,410 233 18,927
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBEE B S o A
Average
Contracted Contracted
Equity Sales Contracted Sales
No. External contract projects in 2023 Holding Amounts Sales GFA  Selling Price
o 2023 FH BN IEE LA BEHE EEHE BEHE
(] EXEER FHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)
(AR®FT) (FHK) (AR%T)
61 Wiregrass 100% -3,319 -196 16,934
62 Vintage Oaks 100% 15,170 770 19,701
63 Monarch Hills 100% 771,922 33,545 23,012
64 Bentridge 100% 151,452 10,438 14,510
65 Marlowe 100% 38,434 2,328 16,509
66 Gardens Waterstone 100% 25,581 1,711 14,951
67 Alameda Marina 100% 128,639 2,886 44,573
68 The Junction 100% 72,706 5,294 18,734
69 Beresford Woods 100% 102,154 8,914 11,460
70 Sky Lake 100% 57,624 4,087 14,099
71 Citrus Park 100% 26,662 1,828 14,585
72 Woods of Lake Helen 100% 11,974 2,254 5,312
73 Country Club Lakes Estates 100% 17,770 1,023 17,370
74 El Cidro 100% 6,635 360 18,431
75 Eagle Crest 100% 5,137 255 20,145
76 BrightonHomestead 100% 11,045 447 24,709
Total 9,482,266 484,766 19,561

&t
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROJECT RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had project reserves with total
saleable area of 7,454,558 sg.m. and expected saleable value of
approximately RMB141.32 billion. In terms of the equity holding,
saleable area attributable to the Group was 1,863,863 sg.m. and
expected saleable value was approximately RMB32.34 billion. The
Group had also secured a total of 76 Project Management Services
projects, with saleable area of 5,353,869 sg.m. and expected saleable
value of approximately RMB101.40 billion.

ACCUMULATED LAND RESERVE AT THE END OF 2023

City of accumulated land reserve as at the end Total  Developed  Developing

Number  of December 2023 GFA GFA GFA
BRI RA

R NB3F12f K ZF LEAT BREER VESLS ESL
(sqm) (sqm) (sqm)

(BEK) (BEAL (ERR)

S i 1A T

H B #fE

RZBZ=F+ZA=+—H ~EEEBENRFHE
EH BN EEIEAT7,454,558F 5K BEtAIEE
BEHAEARE1M32BIL  HEZHHIFE &K
EEEGNEBEREVESHEER1,863,863F 5K -
BRAIEEENABARKES234ETL: AEBZH
BRERBKIEE H76ME - 0] £ EE 45353869 F
FK - BRAIEEENAARE 101408 T

—EB-=KRARTLRH
GFA for
future Saleable Saleable
development  Value Sold GFA Sold Value GFA
ARER
EST BEER BE@R gL AR
(sq.m.) (RMB'000) (sqm,) (RMB'000) (sq.m,)

(Frk)  (ARETT) (Fk)  (ARBTT) (F77K)

1 Shanghai 262,666 262,666 -
L

2 Nanjing 2,252,961 1,775,186 477,775

3 Hangzhou 381,194 219,754 161,440
i

4 Chengalu 3,373,022 2,913,644 410,204
w#

5 Tianjin 495,926 299,184 178,809
RE

6 Xian 171,706 - 68,284
[

7 Chongaing 796,789 446,236 208,806
ER

8 Wouhan 220,143 45,600 174,543

9 Hefei 335,758 278,360 57,398
Al

10 Changsha 266,216 80,301 112,098

1 Shijazhuang 166,336 122,68 43,651
AFi

3811249 167,993 89,542 -

- 37480921 1,365,674 9,380,405 220,698

- 8,181,589 199217 1,095,875 36,419

49174 2699,389 1,827,659 8,402,323 816,212

17,933 3,183,209 220,628 2,874,763 136,809

103422 1,144,182 57,863 1,314,936 59,307

141,747 5,380,259 409,761 3,483,440 245319

- 2,614,0% 121,365 1,116,625 32675
- 3,368,947 202,319 481,636 34,266
73817 1,035,522 162,644 3,480 -

- 1,081,393 124,875 118,990 -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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GFA for
City of accumulated land reserve as at the end Total  Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable
Number  of December 2023 GFA GFA GFA  development  Value Sold GFA Sold Value GFA
B#T R4 ARER

R 08512 A RE LEAD BRYER NEER NEER VESL BEER BEER TEEHE TEER

(sqm,) (sq.m,) (sq.m,) (sq.m,) (RMB'000) (sqm) (RMB'000) (sq.m,)

(FAR) (FAR) (FAR) (TAx)  (AR®BTR) (FAR)  (AREFT) (FAR)

12 Suzhou 3,149,739 1,225,006 1,094,506 830,227 18,639,958 793141 33,585,877 1,371,842
Bl

13 Wuxi 1,848,641 798,308 84,074 156,259 12,630,887 640567 17,907,631 613,717
&5

14 Changzhou 391,851 140,833 251,018 - 6,045,628 220,639 2124478 62,118
B

15 Nantong 763,709 33950 9,431 720,328 618,298 66,754 7,522,530 494,757
el

16 Jinhua 576,344 - 576,344 - 2,657,014 224,418 2,220,287 146,678

17 Ningbo 216,549 - 216,549 - 560,456 47342 1,643,814 117,856
e

18 Jiaxing 314,282 191213 123,069 - 2713740 194,529 813,506 30,002
R

19 Taizhou 40,624 - 40,624 - 725431 21,915 - -
a

20 Tal'an 208,757 - 136,112 67,645 - - 2,519,310 109,805
7%

21 Taizhou 174,497 - - 174,497 - - 860,770 44810
2N

2 Zhongshan 843,312 302,574 66,029 474,709 2,009,334 201,684 7,675,502 407,850
lll

23 Foshan 114,514 - 56,119 58,395 - - 1,142,620 79299
Bl

24 Huizhou 139,615 - 139,615 - - - 1,577,480 94,754
EYl

2 Kaffeng 278,468 48422 230,046 - 1,180,366 137,649 1,038,220 74,563
CE)

2% Hualan 33,287 - 33,287 - 64,344 7423 82,114 9,220
EZ

27 Xianyang 443619 61,965 240,204 141,360 2,302,807 219,356 1,447,945 127,877

28 Zhangzhou 103,075 - 108,075 - 51914 2,057 1,022,916 53,716

B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI B S o A
GFA for
City of accumulated land reserve as at the end Total  Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable
Number  of December 2023 GFA GFA GFA  development  Value Sold GFA Sold Value GFA
BRI R ARER
FH 08512 AR E T LEAD ARYER NEER NEER NEER BEER BEAR TEEHE TEER
(sq.m,) (sq.m,) (sq.m,) (sq.m.) (RMB'000) (sqm,) (RMB'000) (sq.m,)

(¥7%) (Fk) (Frk) (Frk)  (ARETTT) (Fk)  (ARETT) (Fk)

2 Yacheng BOps 123120 BT 200657 20715 163607 2730729 239584
LT

0 Chuhou 167,138 - 10518 200 2520 09 460 60416
M

3 Zhengiakou 134,008 - 1u98 - 61368 40 0778 12507
%50

2 Mawang 115,409 - 11540 - oTee 84067 55,40 -

B Swen WM 518 - -3 29950 %0968 -
B

% Yngan %129 - %I - - - TS0 5
£z

% G 111,000 - S K1) - - TIge 854
iB)

% theUnited Setes 2000705 1200300 36488 13097 20000478 132610 2448133 1577088
S
Tota 2766066 10984450 6040420 483087 TTI87B1  OGTAT 14135060 T4B45R0
&t
Of Which: Subtotal of Equity-held Project 075204 640084 1703385 15U 0175488 GETEAE6 299118 2100689

A RRRIAR M

Subtotal of Project Management
Services projects 13,016,742 4,533,466 5,156,044 332123 79,653958 3998057 101403211 5,353,869
EAMBEEER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
S i 10 T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s revenue was
mainly derived from Project Management Services of approximately
RMB420 million (2022: approximately RMB353 million), from sale of
properties of approximately RMB8.62 billion (2022: approximately
RMB13.66 billion) and rental income of approximately RMB3 million
(2022: approximately RMB5 million), which in aggregate was
approximately RMB9.04 billion (2022: approximately RMB14.02 billion).
The gross profit of the Group was approximately RMB1.11 billion
(2022: approximately RMB1.35 billion) and the gross profit margin was
approximately 12.3% (2022: approximately 9.7%).

RECOGNISED SALES OF PROPERTIES OF
SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised revenue
of approximately RMB9.04 billion (2022: approximately RMB14.02
billion). In which, the consolidated subsidiaries of the Group recognised
revenue from sales of properties and total sales area of approximately
RMB8.62 billion (2022: approximately RMB13.66 billion) and 442,906
sg.m. respectively, mainly attributable to Wenhui F land parcel (Xihua
Mansion), Suzhou Liu Garden in the PRC, and Tirado, Ridgeview,
Lavender, ElisTown Country, Eastmark etc. in the United States. The
average selling price in the PRC was approximately RMB20,366 (2022:
approximately RMB20,695) per sg.m., while the average selling price in
the United States was approximately RMB18,828 (2022: approximately
RMB18,746) per sg.m..

INCOME FROM PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised Project
Management Services income of approximately RMB420 million (2022:
approximately RMB353 million).

INCOME FROM RENTAL AND MANAGEMENT FEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised rental
and management fee income of approximately RMB3 million (2022:
approximately RMB5 million).

n Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SELLING EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded selling
expenses of approximately RMB547 million (2022: approximately
RMB695 million).

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
administrative expenses of approximately RMB973 million (2022:
approximately RMB893 million).

NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL AND
CONTRACT ASSETS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, net provision for impairment
loss on financial assets of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB194 million (2022: approximately RMB479 million). The Group’s
net provision for impairment losses on financial assets was provided
using the expected credit loss rate for financial assets such as trade
and other receivables in accordance with the standard requirement of
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

FAIR VALUE LOSSES

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the fair value losses of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB30 million (2022: losses of
approximately RMB60 million). The fair value losses were mainly due to
the combined effect of: (i) the losses on changes in fair value of
warrants brought by the acquisition of special purpose acquisition
company in the United States during the period of approximately
RMB28 million; (i) fair value gain from redemption of liabilities in relation
to credit agreement of approximately RMB9 million during the period;
and (iii) the fair value losses on investment properties during the period
of approximately RMB11 million (2022: losses of approximately RMB34
million). The Group’s investment properties included 2/F, Building 5,
Shanghai IBP International Business Park, Huafei Apartment in Nanjing,
Wangjiawan Building in Nanjing and Neighbourhood Union in Wuxi
located in the PRC. The fair value of the investment properties was
assessed by a qualified independent valuer based on the property’s
current business model adopted by the Group and its expected
income to be generated.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
S i 10 T

FINANCE COST

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded interest
expenses of approximately RMB754 million (2022: approximately
RMB720 million). The capitalisation rate of interest expenses in 2023
was approximately 69.2% (2022: approximately 45.7%). For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the expensed finance cost of the Group
was approximately RMB232 million (2022: approximately RMB391
million). For the year ended 31 December 2023, the interest income of
the Group was approximately RMB32 million (including interest income
from amounts due from joint ventures and associates and loan to third
parties) and the net finance cost was approximately RMB200 million
(2022: approximately RMB369 million).
December 2023, the weighted average finance cost was approximately
6.7% (2022: approximately 6.2%).

For the year ended 31

SHARE OF NET PROFIT OF JOINT VENTURES AND
ASSOCIATES

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s share of net profit
of joint ventures and associates amounted to approximately RMB58
million (2022: share of net losses of joint ventures and associates
amounted to approximately RMB272 million), mainly due to an increase
in our share of net losses of joint ventures during the prior period as a
result of the expected project impairment of joint venture in 2022.

TAXATION

Income tax expenses include enterprise income tax and land
appreciation tax. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recorded taxation charge of approximately RMB40 million (2022:
approximately RMB707 million), mainly due to the downturn in the
overall domestic real estate market in the past two years, the write off
of approximately RMB373 million of deferred income tax assets in
2022 led to an increase in income tax expenses for the prior period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LOSS FOR THE PERIOD

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group incurred a net loss
of approximately RMB863 million (2022: net loss of approximately
RMB2.45 billion).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Cash positions

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash amounted to approximately RMB1.09 billion (as at 31
December 2022: approximately RMB1.32 billion).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current ratio (current assets
divided by current liabilities) was approximately 1.3 times (as at 31
December 2022: approximately 1.4 times).

INDEBTEDNESS

As at 31 December 2023, the total indebtedness of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB7.21 billion (as at 31 December 2022:
approximately RMB7.33 billion). The indebtedness of the Group
primarily consists of shareholder loans, bank borrowings, senior notes
and EB-5 financing. As at 31 December 2023, total net debts* were
approximately RMB6.23 billion (as at 31 December 2022:
approximately RMB6.08 billion). As at 31 December 2023, the
proportion of short-term debts was approximately 27.3% (as at 31
December 2022: approximately 20.4%) and long-term debts was
approximately 72.7% (as at 31 December 2022: approximately 79.6%).
Long-term debt of the Group accounted for a greater proportion, and
the long term and short term debt continue to maintain a reasonable
structure.

# net debts = total debts less cash and cash equivalents (excluding restricted cash)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
S i 10 T

GEARING RATIO

The Group has been striving to optimize its capital and debt structure.
The Group’s debt to total assets ratio (total borrowings divided by total
assets) was approximately 37.3% as at 31 December 2023 (as at 31
December 2022: approximately 36.7%). In addition, the debt to assets
ratio of the Group net of advance payment received was approximately
89.3% as at 31 December 2023 (as at 31 December 2022:
approximately 86.4%). The management will monitor the capital and
debt structure of the Group on a regular basis with aim of mitigating its
exposure to the risk of gearing.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2023, bank borrowings of the Group were secured
by one or a combination of the following items: restricted cash,
property, plant and equipment, properties under development,
investment properties, property held for sales, leasehold land of
delivered properties, equity interests in certain subsidiaries of the
Group and guarantee provided by the Controlling Shareholders of the
Company. Senior notes were guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the
Company. EB-5 loans are guaranteed by a subsidiary.

Save as disclosed above, there were no charges on the group asset.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND CURRENCY RISK

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash were mainly denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong
dollar and United States dollar. The functional currency of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the United States is United States dollar while that of the
subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollar, and that of the
subsidiaries in Mainland China is Renminbi. As at 31 December 2023,
the corresponding exchange rate changes in the internal funds transfer
of the Group resulted in book exchange losses recorded by the Group
of approximately RMB49 million (2022: exchange gains of
approximately RMB189 million). As at 31 December 2023, the assets
of the Group denominated in US$ was approximately 1.5 times of the
liabilities denominated in US$ (2022: approximately 1.5 times). As
foreign currency assets are in line with the foreign currency liabilities,
no financial instrument is required for hedging purposes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INTEREST RATE RISK

As at 31 December 2023, the debts payable borne with fixed interest
rate accounted for approximately 53.8% (as at 31 December 2022:
approximately 35.9%) of the total debts of the Group. The Group will
continue to monitor the trend of interest rates in the market closely and
seek to adopt appropriate risk management measures for mitigating
the exposure to the interest rate risk. In this regard, the Group
considered the exposure to interest rate risk is low.

GUARANTEE

The Group cooperates with various financial institutions to arrange
mortgage loan facilities for the purchasers of its properties and
provides guarantees to secure such purchasers’ obligations of
repayment. As at 31 December 2023, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to approximately RMB726 million (as at 31 December 2022:
approximately RMB994 million). As at 31 December 2023, there were
certain corporate guarantees provided by the subsidiaries of the Group
for each other in respect of their borrowings. The management
considered that the subsidiaries had sufficient financial resources to
fulfill their obligations. Save as disclosed above, the Group had no
other material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI i T

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During FY2023, the Group had the following significant investments,
material acquisitions and disposals:

On 12 June 2023 (New York time), Landsea Holdings Corporation
(“LHC”), a company incorporated under laws of the State of Delaware
in the USA and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and B. Riley Securities, Inc. (“B. Riley Securities”) (as representative
of the underwriters) entered into an underwriting agreement (the
“Underwriting Agreement”), pursuant to which, subject to the terms
and conditions of the Underwriting Agreement, LHC agreed to sell, and
B. Riley Securities and Wedbush Securities Inc. as the underwriters (the
“Underwriters”) agreed to purchase, an aggregate of 2,956,522
shares of Landsea Homes Corporation (the “LSEA Stock”), at a public
offering price of US$7.5 for an aggregate consideration of
US$22,173,915. In addition, LHC agreed to sell additional 443,478
shares of LSEA Stock (the “Option Shares”) to the Underwriters and
the Underwriters, subject to the terms and conditions of the
Underwriting Agreement, have the right to purchase all or a portion of
the Option Shares, at the public offering price of US$7.5 (the “2023
Disposal”). Subject to the terms of the Underwriting Agreement, the
Underwriters agreed to sell, and Landsea Homes agreed to
repurchase, an aggregate of 443,478 shares of LSEA Stock
(representing approximately 1.11% of the issued and outstanding
shares of LSEA Stock (the “Share Repurchase”).

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
2023 Disposal (together with the Share Repurchase) was 25% or more
and all of such ratios were less than 75%, the 2023 Disposal (together
with the Share Repurchase) constituted a major transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and was subject to the
reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. Completion of the disposal of
2,513,044 shares of LSEA Stock and the Share Repurchase took
place on 15 June 2023. Completion of the disposal of the Option
Shares took place on 21 June 2023. 443,478 shares of LSEA Stock
have been sold to the public.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DETAILS OF AUDIT QUALIFICATION AND
RESPONSE FROM THE COMPANY

DETAILS OF AUDIT MODIFICATIONS

As at 31 December, 2023, excluding the balance of Landsea Homes
(which was separately managed for liquidity management purpose), the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded current assets by RMB5,287
million, and the Group’s current borrowings amounted to RMB1,973
million, while cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB141 million.
In addition, as at the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
(“Relevant 2023 Statements”), the Group was in default of a senior
note with principal amount of US$34 million (equivalent to RMB241
million) and interest of US$1 million (equivalent to RMB7 million) (the
“Defaulted Senior Note”).

The auditor does not express an opinion on the Relevant 2023
Statements due to the potential interaction of the multiple uncertainties
and their possible cumulative effect on the consolidated financial
statements as set out on pages 111 and 112 (the “Modifications”).

ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL IMPACT OF AUDIT
MODIFICATION ON THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
GROUP

The Modification themselves do not have any actual impact on the
Relevant 2023 Statements. As stated in the independent auditor’s
report, these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth
in note 2.1(c) to the consolidated financial statements, indicate that
material uncertainties exist that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
S i 10 T

MANAGEMENT’S POSITION

The management of the Company is of the view that combining with
the macro environment, the entire PRC real estate industry is
experiencing a liquidity crisis, and each lending institution has a large
number of loans for real estate projects maturing, and the Group’s
current situation is not an isolated case. Based on past experience in
debt handling and the national credit guideline policy, the Company is
in accordance with the principle that, for the maturing debts, it should
roll over as much as possible. Based on the guarantee of sufficient
collateralization ratio, the management is reasonably confident that the
Company can ultimately complete a blanket rollover agreement with
the lending institutions. The Company will continue to communicate
with the creditors in order to arrive at a mutually agreeable restructuring
plan. Meanwhile, the Group is practicing an asset-light model in the
PRC, and the development and construction service projects currently
in hand can cover the Group’s basic expenditure needs. Therefore, the
management believes that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concemn for the next 12 months.

OPINION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed and endorsed management’s
position on the action plan for addressing the Modification. The Audit
Committee has also discussed with management and the auditor to
understand the reasons for issuing the Modifications and the views of
the Board and the auditor. The Audit Committee agrees with the
management’s position and views on the Modification, agrees that the
Group will be able to generate sufficient funds to support its operations
and will have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern for the next 12 months.

PROPOSED PLAN TO ADDRESS AUDIT
MODIFICATION
The plans and measures of the Company:

(i) The Group proactively adjusts its sales and pre-sales activities to
better respond to market demand, and is striving to achieve the
contracted sales, pre-sales volume and amount under the latest
budget and to enhance collections.

(i) In 2024, the Group will maintain continuous communication with
major builders and suppliers to reach mutually agreeable
payment arrangements for the smooth commencement of pre-
sales and timely completion of property development.
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(i)

(v)

(vi)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group completed repayments of interest on the exchanged
senior notes in April 2023 and October 2023 and the early
repayment of part of the principal amount of the exchanged
senior notes in July 2023 in strict compliance with the terms of
the 2022 Exchange Offer (details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 September 2022). The Group is actively
discussing with the holders of the Defaulted Senior Note to reach
further agreements. Meanwhile, the Group will closely monitor
the progress of the performance of financial borrowings other
than the senior notes.

The Group has been actively negotiating with relevant financial
institutions to ensure that the Group could obtain development
loans for development projects in a timely manner and obtain
borrowings or seek rollover of existing borrowings by pledging
equity interests in certain subsidiaries.

The Group has been liaising with potential buyers for the disposal
of certain investment properties held by the Group’s subsidiaries,
as well as the equity interests in certain joint ventures and
associates holding the investment properties. In addition, the
Group will seek income from disposal of equity interests, dividend
income and advances from joint ventures and associates in a
timely manner, depending on their pre-sale status and cash flow
position.

The Group will also continue to accelerate the recovery of trade
and other receivables and take active measures to control
administrative expenses.

The Board (including the Audit Committee) have reviewed the above

plans and measures formulated by the management of the Company

and are of the opinion that the above plans could resolve the audit

issue and the Group will be able to generate sufficient funds to support

its operations and fulfill the related financial obligation for the year
ending 31 December 2024.

(i)

(iv)

(vi)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI i T

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

@)

On 8 January 2024 (New York time), Landsea Homes, Tommy
McAden, Lisa McAden and McAden Enterprises, Inc. (collectively,
the “Sellers”) and the Antares Acquisition, LLC (“Target
Company”) entered into the membership interest purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Landsea Homes conditionally
agreed to purchase, and the Sellers conditionally agreed to sell
all of the issued equity interests of the Target Company (the
“Acquisition”). The base purchase price for the Acquisition is
US$185,000,000.

Following LHC completed the disposal of 2,434,783 shares of
the common shares of Landsea Homes on 8 March 2024,
Landsea Homes is no longer a subsidiary of the Company. In
light of the above, the Acquisition no longer constitutes a very
substantial acquisition for the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules and is no longer subject to the reporting,
announcement, circular and Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

On 8 March 2024, the indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company , Shanghai Langxin Property Development Limited* (_£
HEAEEHERMZE AR AR, Suzhou branch of Shanghai
Landsea Investment Management Limited* (/& B 551% & & 12
AR A A& MDA "), Shanghai Langming Property
Development Limited* (L /BB EHEREER A A),
Shanghai Langxu Enterprise Management Co., Ltd* ( £ /&BA#l
£ EIEE R 2 F))and Shanghai Kunhong Co., Ltd* ( L /8RR E
% 5 BR A A)) (collectively, the “Group Members”) entered into
the property transfer agreement with Nanjing Landsea Property
Management Co., Ltd. (F R EAFF WX EIE R 2 F) (‘Nanjing
Landsea Property”) and Wuxi Huilin Yiju Real Estate Brokerage
Co., Ltd.* (4 £5 (& # B2 /5 = #h E A 42 B IR A &) (‘Wuxi Huilin
Yiju”) (collectively, the “Landsea Green Life Group Members”),
pursuant to which the Group Members shall transfer the target
property to Landsea Green Life Group Members (the “Property
Transfer”) at a consideration of RMB9,071,671, which shall be
settled by offsetting the equivalent outstanding amount payable
by the Group Members to Landsea Green Life Group Members.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Nanjing Landsea Property and Wuxi Huilin Yiju are both indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Landsea Green Life. Landsea
Green Life is indirectly held as to 40.20% by Mr. Tian. As
Landsea Green Life is an associate of Mr. Tian, it is a connected
person of the Company. The Property Transfer constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As the highest applicable percentage ratio in
respect of the Property Transfer is more than 0.1% but less than
5%, the Property Transfer is subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but is exempt from the circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

On 8 March 2024 (New York Time), LHC completed the disposal
of 2,434,783 shares of LSEA Stock, representing approximately
6.76% of the total issued and outstanding shares of LSEA Stock
as of 4 March 2024, via underwritten offering in respect of which
B. Riley Securities and BofA Securities, Inc., were acting as joint
bookrunning managers (each of them acting for itself and on
behalf of other underwriters, together the (‘2024 Underwriters”)),
at the public offering price of US$11.6 per share of LSEA Stock
(the “2024 Disposal”).

The highest applicable percentage ratios calculated pursuant to
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the 2024 Disposal
exceed 75%, the 2024 Disposal constituted a very substantial
disposal of the Company and was subject to the reporting,
announcement and Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
S i 10 T

In connection with the 2024 Disposal, LHC granted the 2024
Underwriters an option for a period of 30 days to purchase up to
365,217 additional shares of LSEA Stock (“Option Shares
2024"), at the public offering price of US$11.6 per Option Share
2024. On 8 March 2024 (New York Time), 43,362 Option Shares
2024 amounted to US$503,000, representing approximately
0.12% of the total issued and outstanding shares of LSEA Stock
as of 4 March 2024, were sold by the 2024 Underwriters to
Bruce Frank, Mollie Fadule, Tom Hartfield and Murong Xinyao (the
“Connected Disposal’).

Bruce Frank, Mollie Fadule, Tom Hartfield are the directors of
Landsea Homes. Murong Xinyao is the spouse of Mr. Tian. The
Connected Disposal constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. All of the
applicable percentage ratio(s) (as defined under the Listing Rules)
in respect of the Connected Disposal in the public offering are
below 5%, the Connected Disposal constituted a connected
transaction which is subject to reporting and announcement
requirements but is exempt from the circular, independent
financial advice and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules.

Save for the above, there is no other material subsequent event

undertaken by the Company or the Group after 31 December 2023

and up to the date of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintain corporate governance of high
standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place
governance practices with emphasis on the integrity to Shareholders
and quality of disclosure, transparency and accountability to
Shareholders for the sake of maximizing returns to Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has adopted and has complied with the code provisions
set out in part 2 of the CG Code as its own code of corporate
governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company was in compliance with all
the relevant code provisions under part 2 of the CG Code during
FY2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions were performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements and make
recommendations to the Board, to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director, to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors, and
to review the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has
reviewed the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management and reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently consists of two executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Huang Zheng (Chief Executive Officer)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Ms. Gu Jing
Mr. Cheng Yuan (resigned with effect from 28 April 2023)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Xu Xiaonian

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan

Mr. Rui Meng

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business
and family or other material/relevant relationship among members of
the Board, and in particular, between the chairman and the chief
executive. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 21 to
28 under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management”.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BOARD MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, 5 Board meetings were
held. All Directors were given an opportunity to include any matter in
the agenda for regular Board meetings and were given sufficient time
to review the documents and information to be discussed in Board
meetings in advance.
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EEREIHELE
BHE_Z_=F+_A=+—HLFE E=RY
BITAREZ - 2REFTHARENESZRERS
BRETMAEAHEEE  LEREARERR
EEREFRTAEMS TIm X RER

Number of
Name of Directors meetings attended EENA HESBRE
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) 5/5 HEAEE (F/E) 5/5
Mr. Huang Zheng 5/5 E=AE A& 5/5
Non-executive Directors: HHATESF -
Ms. Gu Jing 5/5 ezt 5/5
Mr. Cheng Yuan 0/1 TS 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors: BN TESE -
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 5/5 FFNE S A 5/5
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 5/6  BRFETLEKHE 5/5
Mr. Rui Meng 5/5 P HF ST 5/5
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT GENERAL MEETING
During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, 2 general meeting
of the Company was held

BRER A E HFE R
RE-F-=4+-A=+—ALHREE A2
A% BITWRBERAR -

Number of
Name of Directors meeting attended EENA HESBRE
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) 2/2 HREE (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Huang Zheng 2/2 =AEEAE 2/2
Non-executive Directors: FERITES -
Ms. Gu Jing 2/2 St 2/2
Mr. Cheng Yuan Mete ) 0/0 X TT 45 4 (HED 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors: BN TESE -
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 2/2 FFNE S A& 2/2
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 2/2 BRI TS A4 2/2
Mr. Rui Meng 2/2 A ST A& 2/2
Notes: BfsE -
1. Mr. Cheng Yuan resigned on 28 April 2023, and no general meeting of the 1. RTAERZTS_=FMA=-+/\HEE RE-ZT==

Company was held during his tenure of office in 20283.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, uses AGM or other general meetings to
communicate with them and encourage their participation. The
chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee attended the abovementioned
general meetings to answer questions and collect views of
Shareholders.
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DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well
as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the Group. The
Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
overall Group’s strategy, major acquisitions and disposals, annual
budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’
appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial matters. The
management was delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees.

Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year at
approximately quarterly intervals in addition to other Board meetings
that are required for significant and important issues, and for statutory
purposes. Appropriate and sufficient information is provided to Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the Group’s
latest developments and thus can assist them in discharging their
duties.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board
meetings and drafts of which will be circulated to all Directors for their
review, comments and approval after the meetings. The minutes books
are kept by the Company Secretary and will be open for inspection by
the Directors upon request. All Directors have access to the advice and
service of the Company Secretary who is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the procedures are followed and that all applicable laws
and regulations are complied with.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the
timely publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The responsibility statement of external auditor of the Company, Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited, about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 111 to 114.
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As disclosed in note 2.1 (c) to the financial statements, certain
conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties which may
cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The directors have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available sources of
financing in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. Certain plans and measure
have been formulated to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve
its cash flows. The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections for a period of 12 months from 31 December 2023 and are
of the opinion that, taking into account the certain plans and measures,
the Group will be able to generate sufficient funds to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within twelve months from 31 December 2023. Accordingly, the
directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis. Save as disclosed
above, the Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties which
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

To improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, the management
has taken and/or will take the following measures: (i) the Group
proactively adjusts its sales and pre-sales activities to better respond
to market demand, and is striving to achieve the contracted sales, pre-
sales volume and amount under the latest budget and to enhance
collections; (ii) the Group will maintain continuous communication with
major builders and suppliers to reach mutually agreeable payment
arrangements for the smooth commencement of presales and timely
completion of property development; (iii) the Group is actively
discussing with the holders of the Defaulted Senior Note to reach
further agreements. Meanwhile, the Group will closely monitor the
progress of the performance of financial borrowings other than the
senior notes; (iv) the Group has been actively negotiating with relevant
financial institutions to ensure that the Group could obtain development
loans for development projects in a timely manner and obtain
borrowings or seek rollover of existing borrowings by pledging equity
interests in certain subsidiaries; (v) the Group has been liaising with
potential buyers for the disposal of certain investment properties held
by the Group’s subsidiaries, as well as the equity interests in certain
joint ventures and associates holding the investment properties. In
addition, the Group will seek income from disposal of equity interests,
dividend income and advances from joint ventures and associates in a
timely manner, depending on their pre-sale status and cash flow
position; (vi) the Group will also continue to accelerate the recovery of
trade and other receivables and take active measures to control
administrative expenses.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
As required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed sufficient number of independent non-
executive Directors.

Mr. Xu Xiaonian is a famous Chinese economist and was granted the
highest award of economics study in China, the “Sun Yefang Economic
Science Award”. Mr. Xu has more than 38 years’ experience in
economics analysis.

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan is a tenured Full Professor of Accounting at the
School of Business and Management at Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. He has more than 15 years of experiences of
teaching financial and managerial accounting to MBA and EMBA
students, and in executive education programs.

Mr. Rui Meng is professionally designated as a Certified Financial
Analyst by the Association for Investment Management and Research
since September 2000 and a Financial Risk Manager by the Global
Association of Risk Professionals since April 2010. He currently acts as
independent non-executive directors for several listed companies.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

The Group attaches great importance to gender diversity in its staff and
management team and has established a comprehensive recruitment
system, such as eliminating gender discrimination in the recruitment
process, providing equal employment opportunities, career paths and
training opportunities for employees, and protecting the health and
safety of female employees in strict compliance with relevant national
policies. The gender ratio of the Group’s employees as at 31 December
2023 is as follows:
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POLICY TO ENSURE INDEPENDENT VIEWS
AND INPUT

The Company has adopted a policy to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board, and will review the implementation and
effectiveness of such policy on an annual basis, which includes:

(1)  The Chairman should be responsible for ensuring that directors
receive, in a timely manner, adequate information, which must be
accurate, clear, complete and reliable.

(2)  The Chairman should at least annually hold meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors. The meeting should include reviewing the
performance of the Board and the flow of information of between
management and the Board.

(8) The Directors may seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

(4) The Company will, upon reasonable request, provide separate
independent professional advice to Directors to assist the
relevant Directors to perform their duties to the Company.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The Board or Board committee shall be supplied with adequate
information, in a timely manner, by the senior management, to enable it
to make informed decisions. Such information supplied shall be
complete and reliable. Where any Director requires more information
than is volunteered by the management, each Director has the right to
separately and independently access the Company’s senior
management to make further enquiries, if necessary.

Directors are entitled to have access to board papers and related
materials in a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board to make
informal decisions on matters placed before it. Directors will receive a
prompt and full response to his/her enquiry, if any is raised.

In addition to convening Board meetings and Board committee
meetings, the Company also submits regular reports to all Directors,
including project expansion, reasons for changes in management
statements and major indicators, content of external announcements,
and corporate governance-related content, so that all Directors keep
abreast of the Company’s operations and development status.

n Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023

BEBLERRRANBE

RARERM—EBR  BRAESHREB LN
BEAMEZIBEFRAZBRORTEEBNL
% B

(1) TFEEAEERRETAREUTRER B
FAERM /AR B - EBRASE -

@ IREELEFEBBIYIFATEEEIT KX
EF MIBEGMESER SZATEE
RELTEZRNRENNEEEREZRZ
BREMRE

@R BEFAAEEBATSKBINEESZER
A Al AE -

4) ARABEAEERAERRMUBIMEE
BR OBHERETEIREHARAALE
HEBE -

EEREM

EXZRNEFRZEQERLAKASREREER
RREM  AEEEMIELFMBEHORE - FAREH
RMEARSTENAE -HEMNEETFEEZHNE
A RIEEET MR SREFHERER R
BUEKBARTNSREERE  URNEFTEREL
E—TEH

EFEREHMFALRRERNZESTRAEHE
HIFEHHBERENES R BB - WES
REEMAERR  REFIARRZEAEE -

REFREZREZREERZTEGEHIN  ARF
NRASMNEBEFRIENRE  AFEEREBBRE
N BEERRRNTIZEENEHREAE HINAEK
NAERARDREMEBEAR  WESUESZLEEM
NEIMEE RBERBEM -



DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
by attending seminars or in-house briefing relating to their role as
Director/taking part in business-related training/acting as speaker for
seminars and refreshed their knowledge and skills and provided to the
Company a record of training they received for the financial year ended
31 December 2023.

The Company has also continuously updated Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year
ended 31 December 2023 is summarized below:

Attending or
participating in
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seminars/in-house HESSH
briefing relevant BREK
to the business, RIEEERR
regulatory updates EERE2
and director’s g/
Name of Directors duties EEfNZ Rk
Executive Directors: HTEE:
Mr. Tian Ming v HALE v
Mr. Huang Zheng v BitRAE v
Non-executive Directors: HHTEE
Ms. Gu Jing v EBEXL v
Mr. Cheng Yuan (resigned with effect from 28 April 2023) N/A RILAE(RZEZ=FMHA=+N\BEIE) TER
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHTEE -
Mr. Xu Xiaonian v  iHNERE v
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan v BRETLE v
Mr. Rui Meng v  RHEEE v

All Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in suitable training to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Tian Ming is the Chairman and
Mr. Huang Zheng is the chief executive officer of the Company. The
Company considered that the division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive officer is clearly established.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term of three
years and they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at least
once every three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws and the CG
Code.

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific
terms of reference, which is responsible for, among others, identifying
suitable individuals to become Board members and reviewing the
structure, size and diversity of the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees under the Board,
namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee, Executive Committee and the ESG Committee, to oversee
different aspects of the Group’s affairs and to assist in the execution of
the Board’s responsibilities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange
and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Rui Meng (as chairman), Mr. Chen Tai-yuan and
Mr. Xu Xiaonian. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
currently made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
its resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim and
annual reports and financial statements of the Group; and overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in charge of the
Company’s financial reporting function and their training arrangement
and budget, and to review the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews the
interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit
Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
reporting and accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee held 3
meetings. Each committee meeting has supplied with the necessary
financial information of the Group for committee members to consider,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
S

EVZESTIRAENEME BERERINERH
BD - HOESNE R EE 2 B R R IGTIA R A BZ
BB ERERcENFEREERRLES &
BIAEEZH RS FHREMBRR  REER
NEAZMBERRS  BREERAEM AEAR
AP HERCETERRERARBEE 2FlR
BRFAE - A RiRE R EIE M AR R -

EREZESTHEIINEZHAMESME - L REZB
BHEMEIEE BEREECRNEZRREEFH
RERFRASETEN -BEREZESTERES
STBORREAEE w8 REHAR TZEPH)ﬁE
ERERBTEERLCBTHRE S ER
T8 B BOEBIARRE o

TE_=Ft-_A=+t—HLFE BXEE8
RIIBREH - BRZEGEZIVRUBEL

AEBEMBER  UAHZEEKEZE  BHENF

@5
& th 82
=

review and access significant issues arising from the work conducted. HATETIIEEECEREE -

Number of
Name of Members meetings attended REHA HESE R
Mr. Rui Meng (Committee Chairman) 3/3 NBEEE(ZEEFE) 3/3
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 3/3 PRITITI A 3/3
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 3/3 FTNE S A 3/3
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During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the
following work:

—  reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2023;

— discussed with the management of the Company over the
completeness, fairness and adequacy of reporting and
accounting standards and policies of the Group in the
preparation of the 2023 interim and annual financial statements;

— reviewed and discussed with the external auditor over the
financial reporting of the Company;

— recommended to the Board, for the approval by shareholders, of
the re-appointment of auditor;

— reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the Group
and relevant reports from external auditor; and

— reviewed the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee in accordance with requirements of the
Stock Exchange and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code. The Remuneration Committee shall comprise at least three
members with majority of independent non-executive Directors, and an
independent non-executive Director should take up the role of
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (as chairman), Mr. Xu Xiaonian
and Mr. Rui Meng. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are currently made available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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The main functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy, to review
and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management, to approve the
terms of executive directors’ service contracts, to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors, and to review and/or approve matters relating to the share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration
Committee held 1 meetings. At the meetings, the committee members
reviewed and determined the remuneration policies and structure of
the Directors and senior management and recommended to the Board
the proposed remuneration of the Directors and senior management,
assessed the performance of executive Directors, approved the service
contract of executive Director and discussed the assessment plan of
the management for the year 2023.
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Number of
Name of Members meetings attended REHAE HEEERE
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (Committee Chairman) 1/1 BRETEE(ZESEE) 11
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 1/1 FNERE 1/1
Mr. Rui Meng 1/1 SEEpes 1/

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee in accordance with requirements of the Stock Exchange
and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee shall comprise at least three members with a
majority of independent non-executive Directors, and the Chairman or
an independent non-executive Director should take up the role of
chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The Nomination Committee currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Xu Xiaonian (as chairman), Mr.
Rui Meng and Mr. Chen Tai-yuan. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are currently made available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review and monitor
the structure, size and diversity of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s strategy; to identify qualified individuals to
become members of the Board; to assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and to make recommmendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-election of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
as well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered
necessary), including periodical review of such plans. The appointment
of a new Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy
as and when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for
decision by the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed
candidate by the Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as
well as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities
which, in particular, are set out as follows:

(@ participating in Board meetings to bring an independent
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

a Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023
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(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

(c) serving on the Audit Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (in the case of
candidate for non-executive Director) and other relevant Board
committees, if invited;

(d) bringing a range of business and financial experience to the
Board, giving the Board and any committees on which he or she
serves the benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied
backgrounds and qualifications and diversity through attendance
and participation in the Board/committee meetings;

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in
accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made
by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the totality
of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall also
be evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise for filling the office of an independent non-
executive Director with such qualifications or expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee
held 1 meetings. At the meetings, the committee members reviewed
the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services) of the Board;
recommended candidates for directorship to the Board; assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
considered the election and re-election of Directors.
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Number of
Name of Members meetings attended REHA HESE R
Mr. Xu Xiaonian (Committee Chairman) 1/1 HNEERE(ZEESEE) 11
Mr. Rui Meng 1/1 A A 1/
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 1/1 PR Z= T 5 A 1/
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ESG COMMITTEE

The ESG Committee was established on 30 June 2021 with written
terms of reference to take over the Company’s sustainable
development supervision committee, which was established on 19
December 2016. The ESG Committee currently consists of two
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tian Ming (as chairman) and Mr.
Huang Zheng, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Xu Xiaonian, Mr. Rui Meng and Mr. Chen Tai-yuan. The terms of
reference of the ESG Committee are currently made available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the ESG Committee held 1
meeting. At the meeting, the committee members reviewed and

ESGZEE
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EEBIEHE uaa_? NETF-A+NBK
VY AARHERREEES®T(E-ESGEE
%E%mﬁ%ﬁﬂ§$'%5%%$K%EIf)
&%ﬁ%iu&:%ﬁzﬁﬂﬁ%$v%ﬂ¢¢%
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discussed the ESG work progress in the year of 2023 and future work 70 T AR AR ZF = = FEHESGHE B & K 2K
plan. KT {EETE -

Number of
Name of Directors meeting attended EENA HESBRHE
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) 1/1 HEAEE (F/E) 1/1
Mr. Huang Zheng 1/1 E=AEEAE 1/1
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 1/1 RN A 1/1
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 1/1 BRFET R A 1/1
Mr. Rui Meng 1/1 NER A 1/1
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE HITEES
The Executive Committee (formerly named as “Operational H{TZE2 (FIBA[EEZES )N _ZTTHF

Committee”) was established on 18 March 2005, was reformed and
renamed to “Executive Committee” with all of the executive Directors
as its members and a new set of terms of reference was adopted on
31 July 2013, which has been subsequently amended to reflect the
powers, authorities and discretions delegated by the Board from time
to time.

The Executive Committee meets on ad hoc basis in accordance with
its written terms of reference.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Gao Yuan (“Ms. Gao”) was appointed as the board secretary, the
Company Secretary and the Authorised Representatives. The
biographical details of Ms. Gao are set out under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”. During the
year, Ms. Gao has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and
taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.

The Company confirms that, having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors have complied with the required standards as
set out in the Model Code for FY2023.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the development and
maintenance of risk management and internal control of the Company
and evaluation of their effectiveness. The Company adopts a
comprehensive risk management and internal control structure to
handle and manage its risks. The Company has set up strict
procedures to ensure that no assets would be subject to unauthorized
use or disposal and appropriate accounting records are kept for the
preparation of reliable financial reports in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the risk management,
internal control and financial control systems, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. It
discusses with the management regarding the risk management and
internal control systems to ensure they have performed their duties to
establish effective risk management and internal control systems,
which is reviewed annually. The Audit Committee is also responsible for
ensuring that the internal review function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate stand within the Company, and reviewing the
adequacy of qualifications and experience, training programs and
relevant budgets of staff in charge of accounting, financial reporting
and internal audit of the Company.
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Based on the information and confirmation of the management and
internal audit department, the internal control system of the Group
covers all of its activities and transactions, and the management shall
conduct regular risk assessment (at least annually) and monitor and
report the progress of actions taken to cope with significant risks from
time to time. The Audit Committee considers that, for the year ended
31 December 2023, the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company were comprehensive and effective. The Company has
set up a supervisory and audit office which carries out audit and
supervisory work independently under the guidance and supervision of
the Board, and directly reports to the Chairman and the Audit
Committee. The accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
personnel have sufficient qualifications and experience and have
received adequate training within the review period. Therefore, the
Board considers the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company are effective and adequate.

The Company has improved a number of systems and guidelines,
issued a number of regulation systems and management measures
such as “Management Measures on Product Differentiation Design ({2
= ERETEIE X)), “Engineering Standardization Achievement
Documents (Standards, Guidelines) ( TR2fZ#{b ik R X {4 (122 - 5
3| 48)))”, “Project First Opening and Delivery Special Assessment
Management Measures ({18 B B - RN HIEBEZSZEEIHE)), and
further refining the operation guidelines of each module, improving the
business risk management mechanism, standardizing business
process management, improving the Company’s operating efficiency
while strengthening project progress management and quality
management, preventing project risks, achieving project business
objectives, and ensuring the stable operation of business management.

Based on the characteristics of different risks and business segments,
the Company adopts various specific measures in respect of market
risk, financial risk, product risk, operational risk and information system
security in order to enhance the internal control standards. The
Company has also formulated the Cultural Strategy Handbook ({321t
By B% F 1)), the Landsea Brand Handbook (575 & k2 3 ) and the
Staff Handbook to strengthen the behavioral management and
regulatory guidance of staff.
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Through a series of systemized and standardized measures including
the revision of Handbook of Authorities and Responsibilities ({1 & F
fit)), the Company has strengthened the daily authorization
management and the authorization system, which has laid the
foundation of the existing authorization management system of the
Company.

The Company attaches high importance in the prevention, control and
investigation of significant risks. Pursuant to the principle of “Full
Coverage and Comprehensive Investigation to Control Risk”, the
Company conducts investigation with focuses on major areas including
tender and procurement, housing maintenance and marketing, and
implements rectification measures against each of the problems
identified for effective prevention and solution.

Through communication with the business departments, the internal
control department classifies the various risks arising from the
company’s operation process according to “risk factors, risk paths and
risk levels”, establishing a “risk list” which is published on the “Sunshine
Landsea (5 Yt BB &) platform. It is not only an evaluation tool for audit
and supervision, but also a risk management tool suitable for use by all
staff in daily management and operation.

The internal audit department of the Company has conducted audit on
the financial and internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries,
including the financial management, budget management, cost
management, procurement management and expense management,
and provide advice on risk prevention aiming to improve systems,
standardize procedures and optimize mechanisms; provide rectification
of material internal control defects, if discovered. Improvement has
been made in response to the rectifying opinions for the year.
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The Company continues to build and iteratively update the reporting

system. During the year, on the basis of the original reporting hotline,

reporting mailbox, and WeChat reporting platform, the Audit and

Supervision Department of the Company relied on the integrity culture

and the development of information tools to update the working

mechanism as follows:

(1)

Updated the internal reporting management system, and
introduced a special reporting process specification to ensure
that all reports are stored in the warehouse with traces, clear
nodes, clear circulation, and controllable timeliness;

Updated the handling methods for reporting and follow-up work,
issued “Regulations on Judicial Coordination and Unified
Management (K 71)% 1 Al 48 — & I #9 #2 7E))”, “Regulations on
the Management of Integrity Funds and Articles ((BEIEE & * ¥
AR EE IR TE))”, etc., and incorporated reporting and related
work into the scope of institutionalized overall management;

Updated the reporting management information tool. Relying on
the “Sunshine Landsea (F% ¥t B 5%)” platform, developed the
“integrity face-to-face (J§& IE [ %/ T )” function, using the “I have
something to say, | want to report (7B shat © & 22 3R)” port
as a new form of reporting, and it was launched simultaneously
on the computer and mobile terminals.
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With strict legal compliance adhering to the core value of “people-
oriented, positive and green”, all of the Company’s employees ought to
develop sound legal awareness and act in compliance with laws and
regulations. The Company has established the Code of Anti-corruption
and set up the Work Ethics Committee as the highest executive
function for the Group’s anti-corruption work, with duties mainly
including promotion of anti-corruption measures, coordination of anti-
corruption work and handling and making decisions in relation to
relevant issues. The Work Ethics Committee is chaired by Mr. Tian
Ming, the Chairman of the Board, with members comprising all
executive Directors, senior management and staff representatives. The
Company’s monitoring department is a dedicated function operating
under the Work Ethics Committee to carry out investigation in
corruption-related matters and reports directly to the Chairman of the
Company. Cases will be filed, investigated and handled in an
independent, objective and just manner. The Company has set up
reporting email, reporting hotline and WeChat reporting platform, and
announcements are made to the relevant internal and external units
and personnel. The Company encourages autonym whistleblowing,
and all such cases will be filed and investigated, while the
whistleblowers will be informed of the result under various measures
that safeguard their legal rights. The Company has zero tolerance
towards corruption. Therefore, in the event of any corruption, the
Company will impose penalty in accordance with the Code of Anti-
corruption, including dismissal and reporting to judicial authority.

Appropriate policy and supervision have been designed and put in
place to safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposal, ensure
compliance with relevant rules and regulations, maintain reliable
financial and accounting records pursuant to applicable accounting
standards and regulatory requirement on reporting and properly identify
and manage the major risks which may affect the performance of the
Group. The relevant system and internal control can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss as they are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business targets.
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The internal audit department of the Group carries out auditing work
aiming to control risks. Its annual working plan covers all major works
and procedures of the operational, business and service units of the
Group and special review will be conducted in accordance with the
requirement of the management. The results of audit shall be submitted
to the Audit Committee. The internal audit department will review and
follow up on issues raised during the audit to ensure effective
implementation and regularly report the progress to the Audit
Committee.

The internal audit department of the Group shall independently confirm
to each of the Board, the Audit Committee and the administrative
management of the Group that the internal control system of the Group
is sufficient and effective. The head of the internal audit department of
the Group shall directly report to the chairman of the Audit Committee,
the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of the Group.

The management is responsible for the design, implementation and
supervision of risk management and internal control system, and shall
regularly report to the Board and/or the Audit Committee regarding the
effectiveness of the relevant system.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the internal control system of
the Company was comprehensive and effective, and was neither
subject to any significant or major internal control deficiency nor
material issues which may affect the financial control, operational
control, compliance control and risk management function of the
Company.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company’s auditor, Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited is set out
below:
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Services rendered by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited KEEBSSAMEBIAERARMEZ R
Audit services ZE R 2,800
Non-audit services IEZ BRI =
2,800

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 30 August 2013
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company recognises that increasing
diversity at the Board level will support the attainment of the
Company'’s strategic objectives and sustainable development. The
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity and better succession
planning through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Company will also take into consideration its own business
model and specific needs from time to time in determining the optimum
composition of the Board.
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The Board composition reflects the current management of the Group
and comprises seven members, including a female non-executive
Director. The Directors of the Company have a balanced mix of
experiences, including business management, property investment,
real estate development, economics and finance, risk management
and accounting and audit experiences. Furthermore, the ages of the
Directors of the Company range from 40 years old to 70 years old. The
Company have taken and will continue to take steps to promote
gender diversity at all levels of the Company, including but without
limitation at our Board and senior management levels. As it is not a
single gender board, the Board considers gender diversity has been
achieved and will continue to review the Board composition.

The Board has delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity
Policy to the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will
discuss and review the necessities to set measurable objectives for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure
their appropriateness and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives will be ascertained.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An AGM of
the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM,
shall be called a special general meeting.
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Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company

according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the

Companies Act of Bermuda. The procedures shareholders can use to

convene a special general meeting are set out in the document entitled

“Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for Election as a

Director”, which is currently available on the Company’s website.

A summary of which is also included below:

If Member(s) would like to propose a person for election as a Director

other than in a general meeting appointed for election of director(s), the

relevant Member(s) can request to convene a special general meeting

of the Company in the following manner:

M

(i)

(i)

Members holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company may send a written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary of the Company to convene a general
meeting.

The requisition must include the information as stated in items 1,
2 and/or the Note (where appropriate) above, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with
the necessary procedures for appointment of Director including
the convening of a general meeting.

A general meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of the requisition. If the Board does not within twenty-one
(21) days from the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene a general meeting, the requisitionists, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a general meeting, but any
general meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three (8) months from the said date.
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The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward
a proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@  any number of members holding not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
requisition carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be
deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any
necessary statement, at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong addressed to the Company Secretary at Unit 406, 4/F, 8
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, in the case of:

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the
necessary procedures.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands.
As such, all the resolutions set out in the notice of the 2023 AGM will
be voted by poll.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Bye-Laws were amended (the “Amendment”) in order to comply
with the new Listing Rules requirements regarding the adoption of Core
Shareholder Protection Standards for shareholders’ information and
protection. The special resolution in relation to the Amendment was
passed on 30 June 2023. For further information, please refer to the
circular of the Company dated 28 April 2023.

To ensure effective communications between the Board and the
shareholders and the investment community at large, the Company
has adopted a set of shareholders communication policy (the “Policy”)
on 12 March 2012. Under the Policy, the Company’s information shall
be communicated to the shareholders and the investment community
mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim reports and
annual reports), and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. Shareholders and the investment community may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available.

The Company’s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to
communicate directly with the shareholders. The Chairman as well as
the chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee together with the
external auditor are present to answer Shareholders’ questions. The
annual report together with AGM circular is distributed to all the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

Any esquires put to the Board shall be first directed to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Unit 406, 4/F, 8 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

With reference to the Policy, the channels for distribution of the
Company’s updates and putting esquires to the Board, and two-way
communication between the Company and the Shareholders at the
AGM, the Board is of the view that the implementation of such
shareholders’ communication policies is effective, and will continue to
monitor and review the shareholders’ communication policies.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The amount of any dividends that the Company may declare and pay
in the future will be subject to the discretion of the Board and will be
based upon the Group’s overall results of operation, financial condition,
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, liquidity
position, future expansion plans, amount of retained earnings,
distributable reserves and any other conditions that the Directors
consider relevant. Any declaration and payment of dividends may also
be limited by restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s
constitutional documents, the Listing Rules and any other applicable
laws and regulations. The amounts of dividend distributions that the
Group has declared and made in the past are not indicative of the
dividends that the Company may pay in the future.

The Directors may recommend a payment of dividends after taking into
account the general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and any other internal and external factors that may affect the
business and financial performance and position of the Group in addition
to the above-mentioned criteria. Any future declaration of dividends may
or may not reflect the historical declarations of dividends and will be at
the absolute discretion of the Directors.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy on a regular basis and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy from time to time. The Dividend
Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company. As at 31 December 2023, there was no arrangement
pursuant to which the shareholders of the Company waived or agreed
to waive their dividends.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group issued an Inside Information Disclosure Policy in January
2022 to regulate the acquisition, dissemination and use of inside
information by employees, to prevent insider trading and other market
misconduct, and to ensure that shareholders and the public receive
comprehensive, accurate and timely information or data about the
Company’s business and its financial position. The policy sets out the
practices and procedures for monitoring business and corporate
developments and events so that any potential inside information can be
identified and reported to the Board of the Company as soon as possible
to ensure that the Board can make timely decisions on disclosure, if
required; and for taking appropriate steps to maintain the confidentiality
of inside information until such time as it is formally released in
accordance with the regulations. The Board may, where appropriate,
apply for suspension of trading in the securities of the Company pending
disclosure of inside information in order to maintain fair trading in its
securities and to address any matters about the disclosure.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 43
to the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 115to 117.

The Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend in
FY2023 (no final dividend paid for the year ended 31 December 2022).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any shares during the year ended 31
December 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Particulars of a discussion and analysis on the activities specified in
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance including a fair review of the
Group’s business, a discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, future development in the Company’s business and
analysis using financial key performance indicators, are set out in the
sections headed “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT”, “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” and “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT” in this annual report. The above sections form an integral
part of this Directors’ report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The ESG report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023 containing the information required under Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules will be published on the Stock Exchange’s website and at
the section headed “Sustainability” of the Company’s website
http://www.landsea.hk/ the same time as this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and therefore the
Company is subject to relevant laws and regulations in Bermuda. In
addition, the Company is registered as a non-Hong Kong company
under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance and therefore is subject to
the relevant provisions under the Companies Ordinance.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange and therefore the
Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules including
the disclosure requirements and corporate governance provisions
therein.

Under the SFO, the Company is required to maintain a register of
interests in shares and short positions and a register of directors’ and
chief executives’ interests and short positions and is obliged to disclose
price sensitive or inside information.

The Group is principally engaged in properties development in the PRC

and the United States and therefore is subject to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and the United States.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As at 31 December 2023, the total number of employees of the Group
was 1,506. Employees are our valuable assets, thus, the Group
provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate the
employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the
market standard. The Group also understands that it is important to
maintain good relationship with business partners and bank enterprises
to achieve its long-term goals. Accordingly, the management has kept
good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared business
update with them when appropriate. During the year under review,
there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and
its business partners or bank enterprises.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders entitle
to attend and vote at the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on Friday, 14 June 2024, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 11 June 2024 to Friday, 14 June 2024,
both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. All transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 7 June 2024.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at the year-end
date. The net decrease in fair value of RMB11 million has been credited
directly to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Details of the movements in the investment properties and property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in notes
19 and 20 to the financial statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the amount standing to the credit of the
Company’s share premium account in the amount of RMB24,366,000
may be distributable in the form of fully paid bonus shares. Under the
laws of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed surplus account may be
distributed under certain circumstances, as at 31 December 2023, the
balance of the account was RMB484,415,000.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Huang Zheng (Chief Executive Officer)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Ms. Gu Jing
Mr. Cheng Yuan (resigned on 28 April 2023)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Xu Xiaonian

Mr. Chen Tai-yuan

Mr. Rui Meng

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 87(1), Mr. Huang Zheng,
Ms. Gu Jing and Mr. Rui Meng will retire by rotation at the 2024 AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined
by reference to the experience, qualification, position and performance
of each Director and senior management and the goals, strategies and
performance of the Company. The remuneration also aligned with the
market practice and conditions. The Group also has in place the Share
Option Scheme 2022 and the Share Award Scheme as long term
incentive for performance.

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements
in this report, respectively.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, none of the
Directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

There was no inducement paid or receivable by Directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company; nor was there compensation paid during the financial year
or receivable by Directors or past Directors, or the five highest paid
individuals for the loss of office.
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DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

() LONG POSITION IN ORDINARY SHARES OF
HK$0.01 EACH OF THE COMPANY

EERTETRAERKRSG - HER
R ES zER

R-B_=F+_A=1t—H EFHARFATE
TTHRABRARBSETMBREE (EERES
REIEGRPIFEXVER) 2 Bt - HHEB D REHS
BRAEREBEES MR ROIEXVEE7 28D FAX
SARP MBIz EELRE  HBRBEES LS
B 1R P15 352 fiR7A R SR a% IR B P 2 B RC i 70 2
BmOAR  IRBRETASTHEARRA LA
Rz EmMORBINT

) REQXFASBREEOIETEERZ
"R

Approximate
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Number of percentage in
ordinary shares total number of
Name of Director Capacity held issued shares
HERTROEH
EENR 5145 FrisiR 08B WA BED T
Mr. Tian Interest of controlled corporation 2,755,445,866 58.34%
A%k 4E REHEE S (Notes 1 and 2)
(ffsE1 2 2)
Beneficial owner 8,901,500 0.19%
EnEAA
Mr. Huang Zheng Beneficial owner 20,000,000 0.42%
E=EEE EREAA (Note 3)
(M43E3)
Ms. Gu Jing Beneficial owner 36,000 0.00%
FEEZ+ EnAA



Notes:

1. These include (i) 2,011,513,187 Shares held through Greensheid; (ii)
376,017,785 Shares held through Easycorps; and (i) 367,914,894 Shares
held through Landsea International.

2. Greensheid is wholly-owned by Landsea International, which is in turn
wholly-owned by Landsea Group. Landsea Group is owned as to 34.15%
by Nanjing Ding Chong Investment Management Consultants Ltd. (“Nanjing
Ding Chong”) and 15.85% by Mr. Tian. Nanjing Ding Chong is a company
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian. Mr. Tian is regarded as the
controlling shareholder of Landsea Group. Easycorps is a company wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian. Therefore, Mr. Tian is deemed to be
interested in these 2,755,445,866 Shares pursuant to the SFO.

38 These are restricted shares granted by the Company pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme adopted by the Board on 2 July 2014. For details, please
refer to the section headed “Restricted Share Award Scheme” below.

Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company and their respective associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which
they are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or which were required
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” below and
“Related Party Balances and Transactions” in note 40 to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, no contracts of
significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries were a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Each of the Directors has confirmed that none of them is engaged in,
or interested in any business which, directly or indirectly, competes or
is likely to compete with the business of the Group.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'’S INTERESTS
IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Other than those disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” below and
“Related Party Balances and Transactions” in note 40 to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, at no time during
the year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the Controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of
significance or any contract of significance for the provision of services
by the Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year, the Group had charitable donation of RMB100,000
(2022: RMB100,000).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and the restricted share award
scheme of the Company as set out below in this report and also note
34 to the financial statements, there was no equity-linked agreement
entered into by the Group during the year or subsisting at the end of
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 2 July 2014, the Board adopted the Share Award Scheme as an
incentive to recognise the contributions by employees and to give
incentives to retain them for the continuing operation and development
of the Group, as well as attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. The Directors strongly believe that the
continued success of the Group is closely tied with the commitment
and efforts of the employees of the Group. The Restricted Shares can
serve as an incentive to motivate them to further contribute to the
Group. The Restricted Shares to be awarded will be with reference to
the performance, operating and financial targets and other criteria
determined by the Board from time to time. The Share Award Scheme
is effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the date of adoption
subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board.
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The summary of the principal terms and conditions of Share Award
Scheme were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 2 July
2014 and included in the section headed “Summary of Share
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Schemes” below. Details of movement of the Restricted Shares during #7201 :
the year are set out as below:
Restricted Unvested
Unvested Shares Restricted Restricted Restricted
Date of award Restricted awarded  Shares vested Shares forfeited/ Shares as at
Category of of Restricted Shares as at during the during the lapsed during 31 December  Vesting period/
awardees Shares 1 January 2023 2023 year 2023 year the 2023 year 2023  conditions
R=B==% R-B=-=&
—A-B RIBZ=fR R-B-ZFR RZTZ=FR +ZA=t+-H
RER A ABEEZ i-d BEZ L VS AEBZ
ERBALZER 813 B 5 R 6 14 R 4 PRI AR 43 PR B £ PR 4 B 43 REMRG BEE/ e
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Huang Zheng 31 March 2020 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000  Note, vesting
BEEE 3 conditions (i)
=A=t—H PR - 5308 It i
Sub-total of Directors 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
Bt
Employee participants 19 November 2014 980,000 - - - 980,000  Note, vesting
EEZHE —T-mF conditions ()
T—A+NE BiEE - BRI ()
8 April 2016 309,750 - - - 309,750  Note, vesting
3 conditions (i)
mANE B EE BRI MR (i)
31 March 2020 69,700,000 - - - 69,700,000  Note, vesting
—TCTE conditions (i)
Ef=Er—H PR~ 558 {6 1 i)
Sub-total of Employee participants 70,989,750 - - - 70,989,750
EESHE G
Total 90,989,750 - - - 90,989,750
Mt

e EHEARAT —— “F=FEHR a
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Notes:

Subject to the fulfilment of the vesting conditions, half of the Restricted Shares granted are
exercisable into Shares at HK$0.66 each, and half of the Restricted Shares are exercisable
at nil consideration. Such Restricted Shares are held by Core Pacific — Yamaichi
International (H.K.) Nominees Limited, the trustee appointed by the Company for the
administration of the Scheme, before they are vested.

The number of Restricted Shares that are available for grant under the
Share Award Scheme at the beginning of the 2023 financial year was
342,102,755 and at the end of the 2023 financial year was
342,102,755, representing approximately 7.24% of the issued Shares
of the Company as at the date of this report.

Vesting Conditions:
(i) Restricted Shares granted on 19 November 2014:
(1)  Subject to fulfilment of the year’s preset performance,
operation and financial targets at the discretion of the

Board

(2)  After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of two years
is required

(i) Restricted Shares granted on 8 April 2016:
(1)  Subject to fulfilment of the year’s preset performance,
operation and financial targets at the discretion of the

Board

(2)  After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of five years is
required

(i)  Restricted Shares granted on 31 March 2020:
(1)  Subject to fulfillment of the year’s preset performance,
operation and financial targets at the discretion of the

Board

(2)  After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of five years is
required

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION OF
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER UNDER RULE
13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company did not have any disclosure
obligations under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme was adopted and became effective upon
passing relevant ordinary resolution at the AGM of the Company held
on 25 April 2012 (the “Share Option Scheme 2012”) . Summary of
the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme 2012 were set out in
the circular to the Company’s shareholders on 22 March 2012 and
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included in the section headed “Summary of Share Schemes” below.  HZ|#EE | — &7 c R E RN EEIERE 2 @555 0
Movement of the share options during the year are set out as below: T :
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise options Exercised options
price per asat Granted during  Cancelled Lapsed as at 31
Share 1January  during the the 2023  duringthe  during the December  Vesting Exercise
Category Date of grant (HKS) 2023 2023 year year 2023 year 2023 year 2023  period period
i i
= =t i i i R b St
SRTHEE -B-Hz IZB-=% IZB-=f CBZZ=f CZF-=fF +ZA=t-H
5l BRTEH (Br) RTEBRE AR [ Eiid WL RE¥ ZRTEBRE BES TR
Executive Directors
HTES
Mr. Huang Zheng 1 April 2022 0242 5,000,000 = = - 5,000,000 - Note  Note
BERE “ZZZFNA-H i i
Sub-total of Directors 5,000,000 = = - 5,000,000 =
BE it
Employee participants 1 April 2022 0.242 45,300,000 - - - 45,300,000 - Note Note
EE2HEE —Z-ZFMA-H i iz
Sub-total of Employee participants 45,300,000 - - - 45,300,000 -
EESEE N
Total 50,300,000 - - - 50,300,000 - (Note)
il (&)
Note: BfsE -

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 25 April 2012 had been canceled
on 24 July 2023 due to the vesting condition not be satisfied.

The closing price of the shares on the date of grant was HK$0.220 and immediately before
the date of grant was HK$0.26.

Please refer to note 2.27 headed “Share-based Payment” and note 34 headed “Employee
Share Scheme” in notes to consolidated financial statements for the fair value as at the date
of grant and the accounting standard and policy adopted.
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Vesting Conditions:
(1)  awaiting period of one year is required

(2)  Subject to fulfillment of the year’s preset performance, operation
and financial targets at the discretion of the Board

Since the Share Option Scheme 2012 has expired on 25 April 2022,
the shareholders of the Company has approved to adopt the new
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme 2022") at the AGM
held on 30 June 2022. Summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme 2022 were set out in the circular to the Company’s
shareholders on 27 May 2022 and included in the section headed
“Summary of Share Schemes” below. No share option was granted
under the Share Option Scheme 2022 during the year ended 31
December 2023. As at 31 December 2023, the number of share
options that are available for grant under the Share Option Scheme
2022 was 472,230,754, representing approximately 10% of the issued
Shares of the Company as at the date of this report.
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SUMMARY OF SHARE SCHEMES

Share Option Scheme 2012 Share Option Scheme 2022
R - ERREH R ERBAH Y
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B An T B E

Share Award Scheme

J 42 R Ryt 8

Purpose

BH

Participants

Maximum entitlement

&= A R D

To grant options to the eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group.

EAKEARAER2BEERNBRE FARTHAREELERZ
REKEH -

Directors of the Group and employees (whether full time or part time) of the
Group.

FEEEZNAKERE (TH2BAFE) -

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options and the options granted under other schemes
(including both exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company for the time being.

RE12{EA R - BITERRERREE A SR 2 BEE (BEE
TERERTEZBRE) MEBETRAFETTEARAZRD B -
TERBAARARIEREBITRA1% -

[t

As an incentive to recognize the
contributions by employees and to give
incentives in order to retain them for the
continuing operation and development of the
Group, as well as to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the
Group.

RaEECZBR BBRERNEENF
BRENERBEE N YAREEE—
FEERSEE AT -

Any employee or director (including, without
limitation, any executive directors, non-
executive directors or independent non-
executive directors) of any member of the
Group.
AEBEZEMKEZENEERES (B
BETRNEMBITES  FRTEFH
BUFRITES) -

The Board shall not make any further award
of the Restricted Shares which will result in
the aggregate number of the Restricted
Shares awarded by the Board throughout
the duration of the Scheme to be in excess
of 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.
EERTFE—SRERBIMRG - BX
EERAERGEBENK L 2 RHHERD
BERBARRTMEHZEBITRAN
10% °
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Share Option Scheme 2012
ZE-C—FRRETE

Share Option Scheme 2022
SR CEBERESE

Share Award Scheme

R4 R B8

Exercisable period

A period (which may not be later than 10 years from the offer date of that

option) to be determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee thereof
and, in the absence of such determination, from the offer date to the earlier

of:

RERBRENS  HEFATLBAARAZHE (T ERBXBRE

ENEMESFTF)  DESRBELZRT  WRARNEHERZNAT

ZBRAH:

(i) the date on which such option lapses under the rules of the Scheme; and
() REZAERAZBRERRCBH: K

(i) 10 years from the offer date of that option.
(

i) ZERENELBE SR TE-
Vesting period The Board has the authority to set
terms and conditions in the grant of
the options (i.e. to set conditions in
relation to the minimum period of the
opt ions to be held and/or the
performance targets to be achieved
before such options can be exercised
and the requirement for a minimum
subscription price).

FEHY EERARERTRERERREN
fER R R Sk A (DR 2 245 A BRI AE 0
BB R/ KT R ERER
VAZBNRE B RA B HENU
RERERBEOER) -

Unless otherwise determined by the
Directors and stated in the offer to
an eligible participant who accepts
an offer, there is neither any
performance targets that need to be
achieved by the eligible participant
before an option can be exercised
nor any minimum period for which
an option must be held before the
option can be exercised.

The Board may, however, at its
absolute discretion, fix any minimum
period for which an option must be
held, any performance targets that
must be achieved and any other
conditions that must be fulfilled
before the option can be exercised
upon the grant of an option to an
eligible participant.
RIESZARELEHERAE E
B2REFRN 2 END - BRIBDZ
ARTRERZEZETRER
BZAVREINRRBR  TE
REETRBEREZALERE
i R A e 2 AR o

Al EZRAEERNBEEET LA
RERRR REHR  LEER
ZEMKRBARARKERAGER
SEERHBERERTEBRE
Al A28 8 (AT B A e 1
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N/A
NEH

When the relevant selected grantee has
satisfied the two vesting conditions specified
by the Board at the time of making the
award, upon satisfaction of the first vesting
conditions, the selected grantee shall entitle
to the related income or distribution derived
(such as the dividend arising therefrom) from
the Restricted Shares under the award; and
upon satisfaction of the second vesting
condition, the selected grantee shall become
entitle to the Restricted Shares, the Trustee
shall transfer the relevant Restricted Shares
to that grantee.

FREEARANEKESZRNEL REE
PR TE < MR 57 B AT - T AR S — B
B R 1F - AR A AT ER IR B 1 B A0 P EE
ERRBRA RS K - 1208 {5 AL %R 5
ERDMELEZRE  YHERS —ER
BiarR BARESRHIERD X7
AREZZARRBERD FARA -



Share Option Scheme 2012
“E-C—FRRETE
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Share Option Scheme 2022 Share Award Scheme
SECCEBRESE FR 43 82 B =t &1

Acceptance

Basis of determining the
exercise price of
options/purchase price
of shares awarded
ErBERETEE /&
Bk EEE 2 KE

Remaining life of the
scheme

of PALE

By remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof
within such time, which shall not be
later than 21 days from the offer date.

ARAREBEAR (MEEREDHAE
MEF218) XN FARRZER
1.00BTERERBEE L RE -

By remittance in favour of the N/A
Company of HK$1.00 by way of “FiEH
consideration for the grant thereof

within such time, which shall not be

later than 21 days from the offer

date.

ARRREBHR (MFERED
BHEH21B) XN FARAZE
F100BTAERERBRE 2 (KB -

Determined at the discretion of the Directors, provided that it shall not be less  N/A

than the highest of:

HEFBRAE  BETEIRNATZR

NER

=)

(1) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the Shares on the

offer date;

() RENBEH MM ERRERAEE-—FIAZTROAB KN

Y fE

(2) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding

the offer date; and

@ BEREBHAHMAELXA BXMEAREXRMR RO FHUD

B R
the nominal value of a Share.
RHEE o

(SR

The Share Option Scheme 2012 has
been valid and effective for 10 years
from the adoption date on 25 April
2012, and expired on 25 April 2022.
T FRRES B RMBEH (=
Z-_ENAZ+THhA)BHERN
BE10F TR -_ZT-_-FMWA
—t+HHER -

Remains valid and effective for 10 Remains valid and effective for 10 years from
years from the adoption date on 30 the adoption date on 2 July 2014, until 1
June 2022, until 29 June 2032. July 2024,

BRMEM(CF__FR A=t BRMAH(CT-EFELA=H)EH10

B)BI0OFALBFEN EE2- FALBERITER BEE-_ZT_NFt
EZ=—FX A-thH- A—HB-

e EHEARAT —— “F=FEHR
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Under the Share Option Scheme 2012, the Scheme Option Scheme
2022 and the Share Award Scheme, there are no:

(i) participants with options or awards granted that is in excess of
the 1% individual limit;

(i)  options and awards granted and to be granted to any related
entity participant or service provider in any 12-month period
exceeding 0.1% of the relevant class of shares in issue; and

(i) clawback mechanism.

No share options were granted to the five highest paid individuals
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

No restricted share awards were granted to the five highest paid
individuals during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Saved as disclosed in this report and in note 34(C) under “STOCK
INCENTIVE PLAN OF SUBSIDIARIES”, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries had any other option schemes during the year ended 31
December 2023.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Restricted Share Award Scheme” above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Company’s Directors or chief executives to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2023, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain Directors and chief executives, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of
the Company:

a Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023
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R
ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.01 EACH OF THE AARBREECOIETHERR
COMPANY
Approximate
percentage in
total number
Long Position/ Number of of issued
Name of Shareholders Short Position  Capacity Shares held Shares
EEeRTRG
BRREEAE BE/RR L) FEROHE BHBNEIL
LLandsea Group Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Long position Interest in controlled corporation 2,379,428,081 50.39%
AFEBBRNERAA (1) e X EE
LLandsea International (Note 1) Long Position Interest in controlled corporation 2,011,513,187 42.60%
Landsea Internationa (| Fff5£ 1) 58] X EEE R
Beneficial interest 367,914,894 7.79%
EalEn
Nanjing Ding Chong (Note 1) Long Position Interest in controlled corporation 2,379,428,081 50.39%
ARSE (1) e REh)EEER
Greensheid (Note 1) Long position Beneficial interest 2,011,5613,187 42.60%
Greensheid (FfzE 1) 50-) EanlEn
Easycorps (Note 2) Long position Beneficial interest 376,017,785 7.96%
Easycorps (Ffi5£2) HE EnEn
Ping An Insurance (Group) Long position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
Company of China, Ltd. (Note 3) HE X EEER
PETZRE (SE)ROFRAA
(HFES)
Short position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
KB RghEE R
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Approximate
percentage in
total number

Long Position/ Number of of issued
Name of Shareholders Short Position  Capacity Shares held Shares
HEBRTRG
RREE/ BB #E/ KR a4 FrEROHE SH2HATEILT
Ping An Life Insurance Company of Long position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
China Ltd. (Note 3) e REtEEER
FEFZ ASRBRRHEBR DA (FE3)
Short position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
KR Rt ER
Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance Long position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
Company of China, Ltd. (Note 3) A A
PET M ERERDARR R (FE3)
Short position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
KE REEh)EEER
Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd. (Note 3)  Long position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
FeAeERR AR (HE3) iE REHEE
Short position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
WA FislE B
Pingan Real Estate Capital Ltd. (Note 3) Long position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
TRIGEEAERAT (M) R RiEnlEEER
Short position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
KE REHEEER
Fuji Investment Management Limited Long position Beneficial interest 327,002,604 6.92%
(Note 3) He EnEn
EEREEEARRAA (HE3)
Short position Interest in controlled corporation 327,002,604 6.92%
KE REHEE
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Approximate
percentage in
total number

Long Position/ Number of of issued
Name of Shareholders Short Position  Capacity Shares held Shares
HERTRE
RREE/ BB #E/ KR L) FrEROHE SZ2HATEIL
Ting Wang (Note 4) Long Position Interest in controlled corporation 331,376,970 7.02%
T & (fiz4) e RphEE R
State-owned Assets Supervision Long Position Interest in controlled corporation 314,507,927 6.66%
And Administration Commission A A E
of Nanjing Municipal Government
(Note 5)
HRMARBNEEEEEEER
Z82(fMaEs)
Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Long Position Interest in controlled corporation 314,507,927 6.66%
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. (Note 5) A XS EE S
MRmEmERREER (£H)
BREMFAR ([H5)
Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment Long Position Interest in controlled corporation 314,507,927 6.66%
& Management Holding (Group) A X EEE R
Co., Ltd. (Note 5)
ERTEEEEREERER (£E)
BEREFEAA (FizE5)
Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd. (Note 5) Long Position Interest in controlled corporation 314,507,927 6.66%
ERkEEEAREELAE (ME5) A R EEER
Nanijing Textiles Import & Export Long Position Interest in controlled corporation 314,507,927 6.66%
Corp., Ltd. (Note 5) A XS EE
MRS B mEL ARG ERAR (F5S5)
Hong Kong Newdawn International Long Position Beneficial Interest 314,507,927 6.66%
Co., Limited (Note 5) A EniEn

Hong Kong Newdawn International
Co., Limited (Hi 3£ 5)

e EHEARAT —— “F=FEHR ﬂ
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Notes:

These include (i) 2,011,513,187 ordinary shares held through Greensheid and (i)
367,914,894 ordinary shares held through Landsea International. Greensheid is
wholly-owned by Landsea International, which is in turn wholly-owned by Landsea
Group. Landsea Group is owned as to 34.15% by Nanjing Ding Chong, a company
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian, and as to 15.85% by Mr. Tian. Therefore,
Landsea International is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Greensheid,
and Landsea Group is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Landsea
International and Greensheid, as well as Nanjing Ding Chong is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Greensheid and Landsea International pursuant to
the SFO.

Easycorps is a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian.

These include (i) 327,002,604 ordinary shares held by Fuiji Investment Management
Limited. Fuji Investment Management Limited is wholly-owned by Pingan Real
Estate Capital Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by Ping An Real Estate
Company Limited. Ping An Real Estate Company Limited is owned as to 49.5% by
Ping An Life Insurance Company of China Ltd. and 35% by Ping An Property &
Casualty Insurance Company of China, Ltd. Each of Ping An Life Insurance
Company of China Ltd. and Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance Company of
China, Ltd is owned as to 99.51% by Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China,
Ltd. Therefore, each of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd., Ping An
Life Insurance Company of China Ltd., Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance
Company of China, Ltd., Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd. and Pingan Real Estate
Capital Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fuji Investment
Management Limited pursuant to the SFO.

These include 252,608,635 ordinary shares beneficially owned by Mr. Ting Wang
(“Mr. Ting”) and 78,768,335 ordinary shares held through Ding Capital
Management Limited (“Ding Capital”). Ding Capital is wholly-owned by Mr. Ting.

Hong Kong Newdawn International Co., Limited is wholly-owned by Nanjing Textiles
Import & Export Corp., Ltd. Nanjing Textiles Import & Export Corp., Ltd. is owned
as to 34.99% by Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd. Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd.
is owned as to 60% by Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd. and 40% by Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & Management
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & Management
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. and Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Holding
(Group) Co., Ltd. are both wholly-owned by State-owned Assets Supervision And
Administration Commission of Nanjing Municipal Government. Therefore, each of
State-Owned Assets Supervision And Administration Commission of Nanjing
Municipal Government, Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & Management
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd., Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd., Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd. and Nanjing Textiles Import & Export
Corp., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Hong Kong Newdawn
International Co., Limited pursuant to the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the other Directors was a director or
employee of a company which had, or was deemed to have, an
interest or a short position in the Shares and underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, and no other person (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) had an interest
or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31 December 2023.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements. Some of those transactions constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions and have complied
with the relevant disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has the following
connected transactions:

(1)  On 31 December 2015, the Company entered into the
shareholder loan framework agreement (“Framework
Agreement”’) with Landsea Group, pursuant to which Landsea
Group agreed to grant shareholder loan(s) in an aggregate
principal amount of not exceeding RMB4,000,000,000 (or Hong
Kong Dollar equivalent) to the Company and/or its subsidiaries
during the two-year period up to 31 December 2017 at an
interest rate of 5.5% per annum and the amounts are interest
free since 1 January 2018. As at 31 December 2023, Landsea
International, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Landsea Group has
granted shareholder loan to the Company which has been
settled.

(2)  Apart from the grant of shareholder’s loan under the Framework
Agreement above, Landsea Group has also granted to Landsea
Holdings Corporation, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, certain loans in an aggregate principal amount of
RMB1,665,000,000 with interest rate ranging from 5.294% to
6.6345% per annum repayable in 5 years from the respective
date of drawdown. As at 31 December 2023, an aggregate of
RMB367,043,000 remain outstanding.
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1) RZZE—AHF+_-_A=+—8 AQaHEHH
FEBEITRREFIEL G ([EEHR])
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ZARMFERBARRR K EN B R R
HE HAR S E B A K ¥ 4,000,000,000 7T
(REEBT) CBRRER  REMEE55%5T
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E=F+ZA=+—H BAFEEZ2ENR
J& A & Landsea International [a] 4% 2 &) #% ) &Y
BREREEE -
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has the following
non-exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

1. Nanijing Xinbeisheng Investment Management Limited (F =22 B
EEEEEERRA) (“Xinbeisheng”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as landlord and Nanjing Landsea
Apartment Commercial Management Limited (F & B 3% 55 7 %
& A R A A (“Nanjing Landsea Apartment”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Shanghai Landsea Apartment Industry
Development Co., Ltd.* (E/EBAFFEEXER AR A F)), as
tenant, entered into the rental agreement (the “Rental
Agreement”) on 1 February 2017, pursuant to which
Xinbeisheng agreed to lease the property at the 11 buildings at
Chang Ying Cun, Mai Gao Qiao to Nanjing Landsea Apartment
for a term of 15 years from 1 February 2017 to 30 January 2031.

Nanjing Landsea Apartment is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Landsea Group, and therefore a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being an associate of Landsea Group.

The rental paid/payable to Nanjing Landsea Apartment under the
Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
RMB2,770,000 (tax inclusive).

2. On 28 December 2020, the Company (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) and Nanjing Landsea Property Management
Limited* (B B W EEE B R 2 7)) (“Nanjing Landsea
Property Management”) (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) entered into the framework agreement (“New
Properties Services and Properties Consulting
Agreement”), pursuant to which Landsea Group and its
subsidiaries shall provide property management services and
property consulting services to the Group for a fixed term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023
at the respective annual caps of RMB75 million, RMB78 million
and RMB82 million.
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The services include (i) property management services, including
but not limited to, preliminary property management services for
property projects prior to their delivery to the property owners,
management services for property units and car parking lots
which remain unsold and house repairing services; (i) sales
agency services for residential properties, commercial properties
and car parking lots of property projects which remain unsold;
and (iii) pre-delivery property consultancy and management
services, including but not limited to, preliminary planning and
design consultancy services and display units managements
services.

Nanjing Landsea Property Management is indirectly held as to
49.5% by Mr. Tian, and therefore is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Tian.

The actual transaction amount under the New Properties
Services and Properties Consulting Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2023 is approximately RMB11,426,000.

On 28 December 2020, the Company entered into the project
management services agreement with Landsea Group (“2020
Project Management Services Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Group shall provide development and construction
management services and sales agency services to Landsea
Group and its subsidiaries for a term of three years commencing
from 28 December 2020 to 27 December 2023. The respective
annual caps are as follows:
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Period Annual cap

S FE LR

RMB’ million

AREBET

28 December 2020 to 27 December 2021 —ZE-_ZTF+ A -+ \HE-_ZT-_—F+_A_-++H 85

28 December 2021 to 27 December 2022 —T-—*F+_-_A-+ N \BE-_Z-_—_F#+-_A=-++H 85

28 December 2022 to 27 December 2023 —E-—F+-_A-+/N\BZ-_E-_=F+=-_A=-++H 85
The actual transaction amount under the 2020 Project HE_ T _=F+_A=+—HLEFE =

Management Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2023is approximately RMB3,382,000.
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4. On 28 December 2020, the Company entered into the green 4.
architecture technological services agreement (“2020 Green
Architecture Technological Services Agreement”) with Landleaf
Architecture Technology, pursuant to which Landleaf Architecture
Technology shall provide green architecture technological services
to the Group for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2023 at the respective annual caps of
RMB25 million, RMB28 million and RMB31 million.

The actual transaction amount under the 2020 Green
Architecture Technological Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2023 is approximately RMB28,646,000.

5. On 13 October 20283, the Company (for itself and on behalf of its 5.
subsidiaries) and Landsea Green Life (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) entered into the framework agreement in relation
to the provision of properties services and property consulting
services by Landsea Green Life and its subsidiaries (“Landsea
Green Life Group”) to the Group (the “2023 Properties
Services and Properties Consulting Agreement”), pursuant
to which Landsea Green Life Group shall provide properties
services and property consulting services to the Group for a term
of three years commencing from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2026 at the respective annual caps of RMB40 million,
RMB40 million and RMB40 million.

6. On 13 October 2023, the Company (for itself and on behalf of its 6.
subsidiaries) and Landsea Group (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) entered into the framework agreement in relation to
the project management services provided by the Group to
Landsea Group (the “2023 Project Management Services
Agreement”) with Landsea Group, pursuant to which the Group
shall continue to provide project management services to
Landsea Group and its subsidiaries for a term of three years
commencing from 28 December 2023 to 27 December 2026.

The respective annual caps are as follows:
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The actual transaction amount under the 2023 Project
Management Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2023 is approximately RMBO.

On 18 October 2023, the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) and Landleaf Architecture Technology (for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into the green architecture
technological services framework agreement (the “2023 Green
Architecture Technological Services Agreement”), pursuant
to which Landleaf Architecture Technology and its subsidiaries
shall continue to provide green architecture technological
services to the Group for a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 at the respective annual
caps of RMB35 million, RMB35 million and RMB35 million.

Connected Parties Relationship

U

(i)

(v)

Landsea Group through its direct and indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries, is interested in 2,365,876,081 Shares, representing
approximately 50.1% of the total number of Shares in issue. Mr.
Tian, the Chairman and an executive Director of the Company, is
beneficially interested in 50% of Landsea Group, Landsea Group
is regarded as an associate of Mr. Tian. Landsea Group, being
the Controlling Shareholder of the Company and an associate of
Mr. Tian, is regarded as a connected person of the Company;

Nanjing Landsea Property Management is indirectly held as to
49.5% by Mr. Tian. Therefore, Nanjing Landsea Property
Management is a connected person of the Company by virtue of
being an associate of Mr. Tian;

Landsea Green Life is indirectly held as to 40.20% by Mr. Tian,
the Chairman of the Company and an executive Director.
Landsea Green Life, being an associate of Mr. Tian, is therefore a
connected person of the Company; and

As Mr. Tian controlled approximately 65.67% of Landleaf
Architecture Technology, Landleaf Architecture Technology was
regarded as an associate of Mr. Tian. Landleaf Architecture
Technology, being an associate of Mr. Tian, was also regarded
as a connected person of the Company. On 23 November 2023,
Shanghai TongDa Venture Capital CO., LTD (/& B3 Al 8 &
% 1% A BR A &) (stock code: 600647), the share of which are
listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange (“Shanghai TongDa”),
Shanghai Chunming Investment Company Limited* (/&% BF3%
& B R A 7)) (“Shanghai Chunming”), Shanghai Chongchuang
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Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (_E /&= AR & &
Z (AR A %) (“Shanghai Chongchuang”, together with
Shanghai Chunming, the “Donors”) and Landleaf Architecture
Technology entered into a grant agreement, pursuant to which
the Donors granted approximately 51.02% of the total number of
the issued shares of Landleaf Architecture Technology to
Shanghai TongDa (the “Grant”), due to strategic cooperation
between Shanghai TongDa and the controlling shareholder of
Shanghai Chunming, Landsea Group. Upon completion of the
Grant, Mr. Tian and its associates control approximately 14.65%
of Landleaf Architecture Technology and Landleaf Architecture
Technology is no longer an associate of Mr. Tian, and therefore,
no longer a connected person of the Company.

Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under each of (1) the
Rental Agreement, (2) the New Properties Services and Properties
Consulting Agreement, (3) 2020 Project Management Services
Agreement, (4) 2020 Green Architecture Technological Services
Agreement, (5) the 2023 Properties Services and Properties Consulting
Agreement, (6) the 2023 Project Management Services Agreement and
(7) the 2023 Green Architecture Technological Services Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.

The Company has engaged the auditor of the Company to report on
the continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2023. Below was set out in the letter from the auditor containing their
findings and conclusions of the review in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this report.

(1) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

(2)  for the transactions that involve the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the transactions were not
conducted, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

(8) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not carried out, in all
material respects, in accordance with the Relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and
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(4)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to the auditor’s
attention that causes the auditor to believe that the amounts of
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the annual caps set by the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary course and usual course of business of the
Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board would like to confirm that the connected transactions and
the continuing connected transactions carried out during the year
ended 31 December 2023 and as disclosed in this report have
complied with the requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EXEMPTED CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
On 22 November 2021, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement”) with Landsea
Green Life pursuant to which, the Company agreed to engage Landsea
Green Life Group as the exclusive sales agent to provide property
agency services for the properties held by the Group from the date
immediately after the fulfilment of all conditions set out in the Exclusive
Sales Agency Agreement to 31 December 2023. Pursuant to the
Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement, Landsea Green Life Group shall
pay the Group Security Deposit (as defined below) for the performance
by Landsea Green Life Group of its obligations under the Exclusive
Sales Agency Agreement.
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Under the Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement, the Group on one hand
and the Landsea Green Life Group on the other hand will enter into
individual property agency agreements under which it will be agreed on
certain pre-determined minimum prices for the properties held the
Group for sale by the Landsea Green Life Group as the exclusive sales
agent and Landsea Green Life Group shall not sell the relevant
properties at less than the relevant pre-determined minimum prices.
Landsea Green Life Group shall, within fifteen (15) business days of the
execution of the relevant individual property agency agreement, pay
the Group a refundable security deposit (“Security Deposit”) equal to
the pre-determined minimum prices for the properties subject to the
relevant individual property agency agreement. The proposed annual
caps for the aggregate Security Deposit paid by Landsea Green Life
Group under the Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2021 and for the two years ending 31 December 2022
and 2023 are RMB4 million, RMB6 million and RMB3 million
respectively.

The Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement was approved by the
independent shareholders of Landsea Green Life at its extraordinary
general meeting held on 31 December 2021.

No Security Deposit received under the Exclusive Sales Agency
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, Landsea Green Life is indirectly held as to
40.20% by Mr. Tian. The Security Deposit constitute continuing
connected transaction of receiving financial assistance from a
connected person under Rule 14A.24(4) but is exempted from the
notification, annual review, announcement, circular and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.90.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchased from the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 16.43% of the Group’s total purchases
and purchased from the largest supplier included therein accounted for
approximately 6.27% of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the Group’s revenue from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 0.7% of the Group’s total revenue and
revenue from the largest customer included therein accounted for
approximately 0.2% of the Group’s total revenue.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company, their
close associates, nor any shareholder which to the best knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers
and suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company or any of its subsidiaries (other than the trust of the
share award scheme adopted on 2 July 2014) did not purchase, sell or
redeem any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2023.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
when the Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

SUFFICIENT OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares. Intending
holders and investors of the Company’s shares are recommended to
consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt as to the
taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing for, purchasing,
holding, disposing of or dealing in shares. It is emphasized that none of
the Company or its Directors or officers will accept any responsibility
for any tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of shares in the Company
resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding, disposal of or
dealing in such shares.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PWC”) has resigned as the auditor of the
Company upon the request of the Company with effect from 27
October 2023 as the Company and PWC were unable to reach a
consensus in respect of the audit fee for the year ending 31 December
2023. At the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board
resolved to appoint Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly”) as
the new auditor of the Company with effect from 27 October 2023 to
fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of PWC and to hold
office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company.

A resolution will be submitted to the 2024 AGM for the re-appointment
of Baker Tilly as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Landsea Green Management Limited

Huang Zheng
Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Landsea Green Management Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Landsea Green Management Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 115 to 317, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policies information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. Because of the potential interaction of the multiple
uncertainties and their possible cumulative effect on the consolidated
financial statements as described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
section of our report, it is not possible for us to form an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion,
the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

MULTIPLE UNCERTAINTIES RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

As described in note 2.1(c) to the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that as at 31 December 2023, excluding those
balances of Landsea Homes Corporation (“Landsea Homes”, the
Company’s listed subsidiary), the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB5,287 million and the Group’s current
borrowings amounted to RMB1,973 million while its cash and cash
equivalents was RMB141 million only. On the same date and up to the
date of approval of the consolidated financial statements, the Group
was in default of a senior note (the “Defaulted Senior Note”) with
principal amount of US$34 million (equivalent to RMB241 million) and
interest amount of US$1 million (equivalent to RMB7 million) because
of non-payment at its due date. In addition, the Group incurred a net
loss of RMB863 million for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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These events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in
note 2.1(c) to the consolidated financial statements, indicate that
material uncertainties exist that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have been formulating a number of
plans and measures to mitigate the Group’s liquidity pressure and
improve its financial position, which are set out in note 2.1(c) to the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity
of which depends on the outcome of these measures, which are
subject to multiple uncertainties, including whether the Group is able to
(i) successfully adjust sales and pre-sales activities to achieve budgeted
sales and pre-sales volumes and timely collection of sales proceeds; (i)
successfully arrange payments to constructors and suppliers on
schedule and meet all of the necessary conditions to launch the pre-
sale and complete the development of the properties on schedule; (iii)
successfully negotiate with the holders of the Defaulted Senior Note
and comply with financial covenants and other terms and conditions of
the other borrowings, successfully and timely secure or extend the
loans from financial institutions when necessary; (iv) successfully
dispose of certain investment properties held by the Group’s
subsidiaries, and equity interests in certain joint ventures and
associates which hold investment properties, and timely receive the
proceeds; as well as successfully receive dividends and advances from
certain joint ventures and associates; and (v) successfully generate
operating cash flows through speeding up the collection of trade and
other receivables and controlling administrative costs.

As a result of these multiple uncertainties, the potential interaction of
these uncertainties, and the possible cumulative effect thereof, we
were unable to form an opinion as to whether the going concern basis
of preparation is appropriate.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the above-mentioned plans
and measures and operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the carrying values of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The
effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 were audited by another independent auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion with material uncertainty related to
going concern paragraph on those consolidated financial statements
on 31 March 2023.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
J8) 7 A% BB

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“‘HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s
report. We report solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. However, because of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, it
is not possible for us to form an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements due to the potential interaction of the multiple uncertainties
and their possible cumulative effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Sai Ho.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024

Chan Sai Ho
Practising certificate number PO7705
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

EET—

A i S H At 4 TR A 3R

=E+-A=+—HILEE

2023 2022
—_EgE-= —_E-

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

=2 AR® TR ARBTIT

Revenue 'ON 5 9,039,797 14,018,521
Cost of sales and services $H & M AR AL AN 9 (7,929,178) (12,664,689)
Gross profit EF 1,110,619 1,353,832

Other income H b U 7 7 18,685 28,181
Selling expenses HEE M 9 (547,287) (694,776)
Administrative expenses THER 9 (972,727) (893,237)

Net impairment losses on financial SRMENEERBERKLFHE

and contract assets 3.1(b) (194,315) (479,215)
Fair value losses — net RNABEEEFE 10 (29,979) (60,110)
Other losses — net H M EEFE 8 (53,416) (342,522)
Operating loss rEEE (668,420) (1,087,847)
Finance income B IS U A 11 18,997 4,849
Finance costs BB E A 11 (232,099) (391,166)
Finance costs — net B 75 B FF 58 11 (213,102 (386,317)
Share of net (loss)/profit of associates FE(REE & N F)FE (B1E) &BF 17 (94,087) 31,507
Share of net profit/(loss) of joint ventures A DEFRN(EE) 18 152,291 (303,767)
Loss before income tax BRAT SR AT B 18 (823,318) (1,746,424)
Income tax expenses Fri5ti & A 12 (40,001) (707,328)
Loss for the year FEF#EA (863,319) (2,453,752)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FR A 1R A S At 4 T R A R
For the year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-T-_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2023 2022
—E-= -
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR®T R ARET T
Loss for the year FRER (863,319) (2,453,752)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEU =
Item that may be reclassified to AR E P EE B AR
profit or loss:
— Exchange difference on translation of — MEINEEEER
foreign operations PE i =& (8,353) 454
Items that will not be reclassified to BT EEN D EE B EE
profit or loss:
— Exchange difference on translation of — BERARRNBED 4
functional currency to presentation BEEREEEREL 25
currency of the Company (16,491) (98,577)
— Exchange difference on translation of — BB s E
functional currency to presentation ThRE 14 & s B B &
currency of non-controlling interests e i =& 24,948 128,226
Other comprehensive income FEHME2EKE  HNKRHE
for the year, net of tax 104 35,103
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE2HEESEHALE (863,215) (2,418,649)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B gt S HAth 4 T U A 3%
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZEZE T -_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

AN
A%/T\ll

2023 2022
—E=-= -z
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
=2 AR® TR ARBTIT
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: FE (E5#8) FEEERN :
— The shareholders of the Company — RRAAEE (860,793) (2,588,642)
— Non-controlling interests — PGS (2,526) 134,890
(863,319) (2,453,752)
Total comprehensive (loss)/profit for FEZM(BR) ABEERERN:
the year attributable to:
— The shareholders of the Company — KRR E (885,637) (2,681,765)
— Non-controlling interests — FEFEHI A 22,422 263,116
(863,215) (2,418,649)
RMB RMB
ARE AR
Loss per share attributable to the RN AATIRRNEESRER
shareholders of the Company
for the year
Basic loss per share FRENEE 13 (0.189) (0.569)
Diluted loss per share R mESE 13 (0.189) (0.569)

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
R B AR PR

As at 31 December 2023 RN=—ZT-_=F+-HA=+—H

2023 2022
—Eg-= T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ART T ARET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties B MY 19 321,600 332,500
Property, plant and equipment W - WE R 20 251,898 186,319
Right-of-use assets ERREEE 21 85,325 113,414
Interests in associates RN e 17 1,074,737 1,186,685
Interests in joint ventures RELELENER 18 2,315,077 2,194,260
Trade and other receivables, JE UK BR 3R N H A R U R
prepayments and deposits MR RES 27 29,603 34,164
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSTHREE 32 409,501 283,051
Goodwill EES 22 486,148 478,041
4,973,889 4,808,434
Current assets RBEE
Properties held for sale FESHE Y 23 605,541 699,332
Properties under development kiR ES 25 9,095,550 8,959,234
Inventories ETF 24 30,448 30,059
Contract assets SREE 5.2 280,720 278,697
Trade and other receivables, LA AR R R A MR
prepayments and deposits N8 & 27 3,279,961 3,891,475
Restricted cash Z PR HIER 28 99,315 67,505
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEY 28 988,161 1,252,056
14,379,696 15,178,358
Total assets BEEHAE 19,353,585 19,986,792
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

o a B IR DL 3%

As at 31 December 2023 RN=—_ZT=-_=F+=-HA=+—H

2023 2022
—E_-= -
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
=2 AR® TR ARBTIT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Trade and other payables ST AR SR M E A A5 3R 29 351,662 338,389
Financial liabilities at fair value BEAREBEFTARRAN
through profit or loss == 30 39,047 10,272
Lease liabilities HEARE 21 73,879 84,112
Borrowings B 31 5,241,915 5,836,754
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFGHRAEE 32 190,497 191,015
5,897,000 6,460,542
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables JE 15T AR SR N LA JE ST SR 29 8,082,921 8,231,904
Financial liabilities at fair value BRANRBEGFABEANEH
through profit or loss =R 30 311,840 315,931
Contract liabilities sRAE 5.2 248,606 201,268
Lease liabilities HEBE 21 26,646 36,659
Borrowings B 31 1,972,978 1,494,321
Current income tax liabilities BVERFT B B (& 741,310 552,809
11,384,301 10,832,892
Total liabilities BEHAE 17,281,301 17,293,434
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

o a B IR DL 3%

As at 31 December 2023 RN=—ZT-_=F+-HA=+—H

2023 2022
—Eg-= —_E-
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR®T R ARBTIT
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to BERAATRRNERR #E
the shareholders of the Company
Share capital A& A 33 38,702 38,702
Reserves 1 35 (49,729) 678,158
(11,027) 716,860
Non-controlling interests FE PR I 1 A 36 2,083,311 1,976,498
Total equity ERAE 2,072,284 2,693,358
Total liabilities and equity ERRABEE 19,353,585 19,986,792

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on

pages 115 to 317 were

approved by the board of directors on 28 March 2024 and were signed

on its behalf.

Tian Ming
HEA
Director

EF

ESRAR A BTSN IR e B B B o — GBI -

FUSESITEMHMNPERERER T _MF =
A+ N \BEES=/HE  WAATATRERE -

Huang Zheng

43

Director

EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

AR i E R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZEZE T -_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

Attributable to the shareholders

of the Company
HERARARE
Non-
Share controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests equity
JER |1
B f &5t s BEn
(note 33) (note 35) (note 36)
(F3E33) (F¥3£35) (Fi3E36)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARBTr ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETx
At 1 January 2022 R-ZZE-Z_#-8-H 38,702 3,885,805 3,924,507 1,656,755 5,581,262
(Loss)/profit for the year EE(FR) /7B - (2588642 (2,588,642 134,890  (2,453,752)
Other comprehensive Hit2mE (B8) /K
(loss)/income
Exchange differences on BMEBINEBELER
translation of foreign operations I =R = (93,129) (93,123) 128,226 35,103
Total comprehensive (loss)/ EERE(KE)/
income for the year WA - (2,681,765) (2,681,765) 263,116 (2,418,649
Movement of employee share EERGETREE
trust account 34 - (1,267) (1,267) - (1,267)
Employes share based compensation 1& S 1 5; 8 34 = 6,734 6,734 = 6,734
Transfer the shares to employees [ 28 AR RE 3 B
related to share based EEEZKRH
compensation 34 - (11,116) (11,116) 30,045 18,929
Repurchase of shares by a subsidiary &7 &) §8 i 17 35 - 33,322 33,322 (101,760) (68,438)
Retirement of shares of a subsidiary B B2 B 3B T 35 = (92,789) (92,789) 92,789 =
Acquisition of non-controlling B SEPE M i
interests 35 - (23,990) (23,990) (58,765) (82,755)
Distribution to non-controlling IR B R D R
interests 36 - - - (370,026) (370,026
Disposal of shares of a subsidiary ~ EREREHIEEIER T
without losing control HERBRARIRN 35 - (436,776) (436,776) 464,344 27,568
Subtotal of transactions with HBRRRZ /st
shareholders - (525,882) (525,882) 56,627 (469,255)
At 31 December 2022 R=-2=Z
+=-A=t+—-H 38,702 678,158 716,860 1,976,498 2,693,358
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

AR TE I A B 2R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-T-_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to the shareholders

of the Company
BEREATRR
Non-
Share controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests equity
FEFIM
R e @t B HER
(note 33) (note 35) (note 36)
(PE 33) (Ht535) (Fff= 36)

Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
M AR®TR AR®TR ARBTR AR®TR AR%TR

At 1 January 2023 R-E-=%-A—H 38,702 678,158 716,860 1,976,498 2,693,358
Loss for the year FEFR - (860,793) (860,793) (2,526) (863,319)
Other comprehensive Hitv2 M (B1]) ki

(loss)/income
Exchange differences on BREBIINEBEED

translation of foreign operations BEHEE - (24,844) (24,844) 24,948 104

Total comprehensive (loss)/ EERE(FE)/ Kl HE

income for the year - (885,637) (885,637) 22,422 (863,215)
Movement of employee share EERHETREZS

trust account 34 - (209) (209) - (209)
Employes share based compensation 1& 2 A1 53 8 34 - 8,277 8,217 - 8,277
Transfer the shares to employees a5 AR i B

related to share based EEEEkRH

compensation 34 - (2,896) (2,896) 19,776 16,880
Repurchase of shares by a subsidiary Fii B2 &) B &R 7 35 - 84,266 84,266 (304,591) (220,325)
Release b3 35 - 289,747 289,747 - 289,747
Disposal of shares of a subsidiary AR EREHIENEB R T

without losing control HERBRRRN 35 - (221,435) (221,435) 369,206 147,77

Subtotal of transactions with HERRR Z
shareholders

157,750 157,750 84,391 242,141

At 31 December 2023 iy
. 38,702 (49,729) (11,027)  2,083311 2,072,284

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read |+ #lL47 & #E 5 55 B 2% JiE B2 8 B Ff 5F — TG -
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

122 Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
G Bl il AR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZEZE T -_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

2023 2022
—E-= g

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Y 5E AR®T T ARBFIT

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations

Taxes paid

Interest paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Capital injection to joint ventures

Capital injection to associates

Collection of investment in associates

Dividend from joint ventures

Dividend from associates

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries,
net of cash and cash equivalents

Proceeds from partial disposal of shares
of joint ventures

Proceeds from disposal of associates

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit and loss

Proceeds from/(payment for) acquisition of
subsidiaries, net of cash and cash
equivalents

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Funding to related parties

Collection of funding to related parties

Repayment from advance to non-controlling
interests

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

RETHNRESRE

KEFERS 37 521,565 298,263
BEHIE (107,037) (266,815)
ERFE (730,838) (516,363)
RETBHFARESEHE (316,310) (484,915)
REZHNESRE

B A E 199 66,158
REELETE (2,550) (1,150)
REEQNREE 17 - (2,305)
U Bl A B A R Y IR B - 14,250
REEEREMRE 5,300 6,527
REBERNF MRS 18,552 7,480
& B A RIFTS 3R -

HBRRERBFSEFEY 39 - 91,858
HoLEaECERY

Fri8 I8 7,381 151,625
S B N AP S 5KE 55 =
HERAABEF ABZD

CRLE EFTBRIE - 67,321
FUEHTE A Al

Frs1m,/ (F30) -

HBRRERREEFEY 38 606 (1,666,732)
BEYE  BER&E (63,608) (8,505)
HEME  BERZE

Fri8 I8 31,262 421
m) BaEE 5 HE 40(h) (15,500) (80,971)
e mEs T RENES 40(h) 252,761 77,914
U 1] 1) FE7E o) 14 2 EA X

24,977 195,501
RETEFE(FTA)
REFHE 259,435 (1,080,608)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

el EenER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-T-_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2023 2022
—EB-= -
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR TR ARBTIT
Cash flows from financing activities METHNRERE
Proceeds from borrowings & KPT15 K18 37 4,042,584 2,342 525
Repayment of borrowings EEBK 37 (4,222,373) (3,500,470)
Repurchase of shares of subsidiary = EENEIE ) 35(c) (220,325) (68,438)
Proceeds from related parties R B @A77 B TS 3R 40(h) 102,101 191,454
Repayment to related parties [r) [ Bk 75 38 3K 40(h) (24,290) (234,982)
Proceeds from disposal of shares of a ETRERIEHENBERATHE
subsidiary without losing control K /8~ Bl A% 17 FT 1S 30IR 35 147,771 303,242
Dividends to shareholders of the Company B4 ARQ Tﬂx% EﬁH R 14 - (200,000)
Principal elements of lease payments HENRAE 37(b)(ii) (28,074) (36,788)
Shares bought back for employee share trust #t /& 8 B {7 %?’zﬁ% 5 i% 17 34 (209) (1,267)
Repurchase of private warrants O] B FL B R AR HE RE 30 - (64,487)
(Settlement of)/proceeds from financing (2* BE=ZF&®) /KRB
from third party E=HESHSEIE (18,300) 336,243
Settlement of financial liability HEomARE 37 (25,971) (426,749)
Acquisition of minority interests g N s - (82,755)
Decrease of restricted cash X IR #1382 R 55,915 53,967
Net cash used in financing activities MEETHFAREESFEEE (191,171) (1,388,505)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBESEBYRDFHE
equivalents (248,046) (2,954,028)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BHREeRREEEY 1,252,056 4,031,310
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEETE R F B S8 (15,849) 174,774
Cash and cash equivalents at RtT-—A=+—HHWHRER
31 December Re%EY 28 988,161 1,252,056
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in Ll &R SR ERELEBEMN T —FRE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

GENERAL INFORMATION

Landsea Green Management Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability. The addresses of its registered office and principal place
of business are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton,
HM11, Bermuda and Room 406, 8 Queen’s Road East, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong respectively. The Company’s shares are listed
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries are referred to as the “Group” hereinafter. The Group
is principally engaged in development and sales of properties,
provision of management services and leasing of properties. The
Company’s subsidiary, Landsea Homes Corporation (“Landsea
Homes”) was listed on Nasdaqg on 7 January 2021.

The immediate holding company and the ultimate controlling
company of the Company are Greensheid Corporation, a
company established in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and
Landsea Group Co., Ltd. (BAFF & E k{5 B R A 7], a company
established in the People’s Republic of China, the “PRC”)
(“Landsea Group”), respectively. The ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company is Mr. Tian Ming (“Mr. Tian”), a
director of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Renminbi (‘RMB’000”) unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue
by the board of directors on 28 March 2024.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A7 A U BS i 3% B

—REHR

ARG EEEARAR (XATF) ARER
EAMAINERRER AR - M EE
N = 2 & % ih Bh 5 Bl & Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda }
BB ETERKNEBERSHRIBE » AA AR D
REBMERZMAERAE (BT £1R
Eme

RARABEEERAR -EEZWBARFE
HNAR A VMR M43 o A A F] K H M B
RARTXSBAIAEE] - ANEBEE2
EEMERBEEE REREERB R LA
Y12 o N2 Al Y8 A 7 Landsea Homes
Corporation ([ Landsea Homes |) A =& — —
F-—AtBEMETER L o

AR ERIERA A REEZER AR D B
/% Greensheid Corporation (R B4R RE S
((EBEEARHEB N IMAR) MBFER
BRHERAT (RPEARKEME ([HE])
RAHAR]) ([BFER]) - AR AIMREE
AR AR AR ESHBLE(HEE] -

BRIEZBEAEE  DAIRGREMBHREAAR
BETTTARBTFRDZ2%H

AEEMBHRREAEETRN T _HF=
AZ+/\BH#EHZ -

WA EERARAT — —E - SHEER 125



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g2z A

VN H
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S 5 e o M R

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements are set out below. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated. The consolidated financial statements

are for the Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Compliance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap.622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(“HKCO”) and the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”)

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs as
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of HKCO and Listing Rules.

HKFRSs comprise the following authoritative
literature:

° Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

° Hong Kong Accounting Standards

o Interpretations issued by the HKICPA

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for certain financial assets and liabilities and
investment properties measured at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2 REEERBEASHBEER®

(Continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 21 REEEE)
(c) Going concern basis (c) FHELEHEHE

As at 31 December 2023, excluding those balances
of the Company’s listed subsidiary, Landsea Homes,
which was managed separately for liquidity
management purpose, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB5,287 million and
the Group’s current borrowings amounted to
RMB1,973 million while its cash and cash equivalents
was RMB141 million only. On the same date and up
to the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements, the Group was in default of a senior note
(the “Defaulted Senior Note”) with principal amount
of US$34 million (equivalent to RMB241 million) and
interest amount of US$1 million (equivalent to RMB7
million) because of non-payment at its due date.

Due to the slowing down of Mainland China property
market since second half of 2021, the Group’s China
operations had experienced a decline in the business
of property development and the related pre-sales
volume and collection of pre-sale proceeds reduced
significantly in 2022 and 2023. For the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group incurred a net loss of
RMB863 million.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 BB ik R BT

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

128

(c)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The above conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
regarding the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. In view of such circumstances, the directors
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to continue as
a going concern. Certain plans and measure have
been formulated to mitigate the liquidity pressure and
to improve its cash flows which include, but not
limited to, the following:

(i) The Group will continue to actively adjust sales
and pre-sale activities to better respond to
market needs, make efforts to achieve the
latest budgeted sales and pre-sales volumes
and amounts, and enhance collection;

(i) The Group will maintain continuous
communication with the major constructors and
suppliers to arrange payments to these vendors
and meet all of the necessary conditions to
launch the pre-sale and to complete the
development of properties on schedule;

(i)  The Group is actively negotiating to reaching
agreements with the holders of the Defaulted
Senior Note. At the same time, the Group will
closely monitor and ensure compliance with
financial covenants and other terms and
conditions of the other borrowings, including
timely repayment of principal and interests of
the borrowings. In addition, the Group has
been actively negotiating with certain financial
institutions so that the Group can timely secure
project development loans for qualified project
development and secure or extend other
borrowings through pledge of equity interests in
certain subsidiaries;

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023

2 REEERBEASHBEER®

21 HFBEEEH)
(c) HESLEEE)

L ERBREEEATREE M -
MREEAREEBFERLNENE
REARM EXNZEBER &
ERTRAEERETERENH
BREABBREFDEEZERN
EENRRRBELRRAUR
HAMSHRERR - AEED
il 7E & T 5T &l K 45 B AR B 7
BeWBENRREERSR B
FEERBERUTEE

) AEEBESETABHE
REERBAB I ERET
BHER - EHERKHAE
ERFEREHENS R
I HN58R B FGEE

(i) AREHEFEEENKH
FERRFERFERR  UXH
MZEHEERMSR WmE
FXB) T8 & K 1% B 52 Ak 1) 2 5
BHFTA D E G

(i) ANEBEEGRZOELR
BR A AR OER I
R NREBBZERY
EREMETETHHERY
Ko B A 6K R -1 - B R
B EEERAE KA E - it
S AEE-—EHREBEIS
TREEHE  BTAGRM
#IE A & RFESER

BER WRBEME DM
J&E R AR IR R ER 1S S IE B E
i FE K -



2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(c) Going concern basis (Continued)

(V)

The Group has been in contact with potential
buyers to dispose of certain investment
properties held by the Group’s subsidiaries,
and equity interests in certain joint ventures and
associates which hold investment properties. In
addition, the Group will continuously seek
dividends and advances from certain joint
ventures and associates according to those
projects’ pre-sale and cashflow conditions; and

The Group will also continue to speed up the
collection of its trade and other receivables and
will also continue to take active measures to
control administrative costs.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow

projections for a period of 12 months from 31
December 2023 and are of the opinion that, taking
into account the above-mentioned plans and

measures, the Group will be able to generate
sufficient funds to finance its operations and to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due

within twelve months from 31 December 2028.
Accordingly, the directors are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial

statements on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(c) Going concern basis (Continued)
Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties

exist as to whether management of the Company will

be able to achieve its plans and measure as

described above. Whether the Group will be able to

continue as a going concern would depend upon the

following:

)

(i)

successfully adjust sales and pre-sales activities
to achieve budgeted sales and pre-sales
volumes and timely collection of sales
proceeds;

successfully arrange payments to constructors
and suppliers on schedule and meet all of the
necessary conditions to launch the pre-sale
and complete the development of the
properties on schedule;

successfully negotiate with the holders of the
Defaulted Senior Note and comply with financial
covenants and other terms and conditions of
the other borrowings, successfully and timely
secure or extend the loans from financial
institutions when necessary;
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(c) Going concern basis (Continued)

(V)

successfully dispose of certain investment
properties held by the Group’s subsidiaries,
and equity interests in certain joint ventures and
associates which hold investment properties,
and timely receive the proceeds; as well as
successfully receive dividends and advances
from certain joint ventures and associates; and

successfully generate operating cash flows
through speeding up the collection of trade and
other receivables and controlling administrative
costs.

Should the Group fail to achieve a combination of the
above-mentioned plans and measures, it might not
be able to continue to operate as a going concern,

and adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further

liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-

current assets and non-current liabilities as current

assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects

of these adjustments have not been reflected in these

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(d)

132

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

A number of new or revised standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards are
mandatory for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2023:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Except the below amendments, the standards,
amendments and interpretations described above are
either currently not relevant to the Group or had no
material impact on the Group’s financial information.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 — Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 — Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose material accounting policy
information and provide guidance on applying the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosure.
The group has revisited the accounting policy
information it has been disclosing and considered it is
consistent with the amendments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B S o R A R

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 FAEBEREASTHEER @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 21 RREEE)
(e) New standards and interpretations not yet (e) [HAERABIFTETER R ZFE
adopted
Certain new accounting standards, amendments and BETHEI2EER  REEARN
interpretations to existing standards have been BERERBEEEM  BHARZ
published that are not mandatory for the financial T _=F—A—HHABRNPKRF
year beginning 1 January 2023 and relevant to the JE 58 H AE I B K & (B8] A B B AR
Group and have not been early adopted by the SEWEIRRIEMN o
Group.
Effective for
annual periods
Standards, amendments and beginning on
interpretations or after
A - BHRERE REAT AR
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FEHBER
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2024
Non-current
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(Revised) Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 BB ik R BT

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(e)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

Except the below amendments, the above standards,
amendments and interpretations are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 6 (2020) and Amendments
to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

In August 2020, the HKICPA issued amendments to
HKAS 1 (“2020 HKSA 1 amendments”) to clarify the
requirements on determining if a liability is current or
non-current, in particular the determination over
whether an entity has the right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period. The amendments:

o specify that an entity’s right to defer settlement
must exist at the end of the reporting period;

o clarify that classification is unaffected by
management’s intentions or expectations about
whether the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement;

o clarify how lending conditions affect
classification; and

o clarify the classification of liabilities that will or
may be settled by issuing an entity’s own equity
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2 REEERBEASHBEER®

21 REEEE)

(e)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 6 (2020) and Amendments

(e)

15 R ER A 1Y R AT E R R a2 B (42)
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In December 2022, the HKICPA published further
amendments to HKAS 1 (“2022 HKAS 1
amendments”) to clarify how an entity determines
the current/non-current classification of a liability
when its right to defer the settlement is subject to
compliance with covenants.

The 2020 and 2022 HKAS 1 amendments are to be
applied as a package on a retrospective basis for
annual reporting periods beginning on after 1 January
2024,

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a

Change in accounting policy on offsetting
arrangement in long service payment scheme in
Hong Kong

In July 2022, the Hong Kong Government enacted
the Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”) which will be
effective from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”).
Under the Amendment Ordinance, any accrued
benefits attributable to the employer’'s mandatory
contributions under mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Benefits”) of an entity would no
longer be eligible to offset against its obligations on
long service payment (“LSP”) for the portion of the
LSP accrued on or after the Transition Date. There is
also a change in the calculation basis of last monthly
wages for the portion of the LSP accrued before the
Transition Date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a

Change in accounting policy on offsetting
arrangement in long service payment scheme in
Hong Kong (Continued)

Prior to 1 January 2023, the Group applied practical
expedient in HKAS 19 paragraph 93(b) (the
“practical expedient”) to account fore the offsetable
MPF Benefits as deemed employee contributions to
reduce the current service costs in the period in
which the related services were rendered.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” (the “Guidance”) which
provides clarified and detailed guidance on the
accounting considerations relating to the abolition of
the offsetting mechanism. The Guidance clarified that
following the enactment of the Amendment
Ordinance, LSP is no longer a ‘simple type of
contributory plans’ to which the practical expedient
had been intended to apply.

The above-mentioned change in accounting policy
does not have any material impact on the Group’s
results and financial position.

2.3 SUBSIDIARIES
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an

entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct

the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.3

2.4

2.5

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations not under commmon control by
the Group (refer to note 2.8).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position, consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

ASSOCIATES

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This is
generally the case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting (see
note 2.6 below), after initially being recognised at cost.

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

Joint arrangements are classified as either joint ventures or
joint operations depending on the contracted rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the
nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method (see note 2.6 below), after initially being recognised
at cost in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.6 EQUITY ACCOUNTING

138

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

When the Group’s share of net loss in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is

tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 2.15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.7 CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS 27 BRERREZNES

2 REEERBEASHBEER®

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity shareholders of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling interests and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to
non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or
received is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

140

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former shareholders of the
acquired business

° equity interests issued by the Group

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8

2.9

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the
fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwiill.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOU
(Continued)
2.10 SEG

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

MENT REPORTING

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial

information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the

performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported to
the executive directors are determined following the

Group’s major business and service lines.

2.11 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”), which is Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), Renminbi (RMB) and US dollars
(US$) respectively. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income within “other losses —
net”.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOU
(Continued)

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2.11 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (Continued)
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing date of that statement of financial
position;

o income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

° all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.11 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
(Continued)

(c)

Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
shareholders of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in
the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated translation differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in
the Group’s ownership interest in associated
companies or joint ventures that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated translation
difference is reclassified to the consolidated income
statement.

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 HFBEEREASTBERER @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 212Y% - MERRE

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
historical cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other costs, such
as repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or loss
during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values, over the shorter
of their estimated useful lives or, in case of leasehold
improvements, as follows:
Leasehold improvements QOver the shorter of their
estimated useful lives
or lease terms

Furniture, fixtures and office 3-10 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 5-10 years

Buildings 20 years

The assets’ residual value and useful life are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.15).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 BB ik R BT

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised as “other losses — net” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

2.13INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

146

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by
the Group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value, representing open
market value determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If the information
is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values
are recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in fair value gains or
losses on investment properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 RHEEEREARSTFBERER ®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS Q14| EE
(a) Goodwill (a) A&

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.8.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwiill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating
segments (note 6).

2.15 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 BB ik R BT

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.16 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT OR

HELD FOR SALE

Properties under development and held for sale are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Development
cost of properties comprises cost of leasehold or freehold
land payments, construction costs and borrowing costs
incurred during the construction period. Upon completion,
the properties are transferred to completed properties held
for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development and held for sale are
classified as current assets unless the construction period
of the relevant property development project is expected to
complete beyond normal operating cycle.

All land in Mainland China is stated-owned or collectively-
owned and no individual ownership right exists. Land use
rights are acquired by the Group for development of
properties. Land use rights held for development for sale
are inventories and measured at lower of cost and net
realisable value, of which those within normal operating
cycle are classified as current assets and included in
properties under development or held for sale, while those
out of the normal operating cycle are classified as non-
current assets. Land use rights fall within investment
properties are classified as investment properties (note
2.13).

2.17 INVENTORIES

148

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.18 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS

(@)

(b)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (OCI), or through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

(a

(b)
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

150

ACCOU
(Continued)

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2.18 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in “other income”
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “other losses — net”, together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.18 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through OCI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit
and loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in “other
losses — net”. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in “other income”
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
“other losses — net” and impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised and presented net in profit or loss
within “other losses — net” in the period in
which it arises.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

2 REEERBEASHBEER®

218 RERHMETBMEE (&)

& (&)

EBETA (&)

BARBEAAEBLEZE
& BIFREANRERE
REETREENEE i
ZEREHReREEEXN
e RFE - ARAALER
AAAEMmEEKSE - R
HENEH A AHMEE
Yoz - MR 1B m HERR RO BB
Wk sk B g - A B A RSN
B Wi o I B 1R RO RERRBR O
TREER LR - KA
P E Al 2 1 U s HE R ) R A
Wk B RmEREN DR
Efm YR [HEMERF
BMIAER ZEREE
BB WA T IR BRI ROR
AEATEAb Y] - SMNE W aR
REBRRHEEIRFE]R
25 MBEBERES R
s EMEERER2N R
B IARE

BAREEFARZ WE
EN AR HK ARG BN
BARBEAAEBLEZE
SHIRE - @R ANEER
ABmstE - HREARE
B ABRAENEHRE
B et sk B IR 0 HE A I
REBERTHEARZINATH
B RFRR ] -

/

N

WA EERARAT — —E - SHEER 151



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 BB ik R BT
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.18 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

(d

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. Note 3.1(b) details how the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For contract assets and trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables,
see note 3.1(b) for further details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2 REEERBEASHBEER®

2.19 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers arising
from sales of properties or providing management services.
If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value, and other receivables are
recognised initially at fair value. Trade and other receivables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
See note 2.18 and note 3.1(b) for further information about
the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Restricted cash is excluded from cash
and cash equivalents.

219EEMTHE
EEAKRUHITEN ST EREEE N
VEERFEELEEESRARBREE
REEaEE  cHEERABTME
B WREERIRARIFERS -

2.20 FE UK AR TR & HL b FE IR
U R A EMERIBHERREM
JE U P HIFRIE o i 8 Uk BR 3R R EL e
W 3k FEER AT B — R A Y (S B R
FAEEBENETEERDE) W
D BEAREEBE - HREER —FEHIA
MUK - BIZ5 AIEREEE -

FEWEE SRR R E GG RESTERR
EBREERNMELERIN - EFER
NAEERR - M E M ERR B9 &
NABERER o FEUER R H b & UK
Hg ABBR AR E N AT E - I
THIBR R ERE - BRAASEERER
R ARRANEEREBRERNG AR
2855218 KM eE3.1(b) °

N

\

2N BHERBEEEY
RELREBXRWENME RERESD
SENREFETFERS  ROTBAOFR -
H 4ty R E 8 B 5 = 18 A 3k bA A 3 AT RE A
Wt ADANSENESATEEEAR
EEHRBRHWEDNDRBLIRE - R
FIReTEREEREMNRSEEYA -

WA EERARAT — —E - SHEER 153



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.22 SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares
are deducted from share premium to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

2.23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within 12
months after the reporting period (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.24 BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS

154

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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A5 B BB ik R B

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 RREEREASTHRRER @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.24 BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS 224 fER R ERBA (&)
(Continued)

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial
position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and
the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to
extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOU
(Continued)

NTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2.25 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax

payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in

other
case,

comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date in
the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Group measures its tax balances either based on the
most likely amount or the expected value, depending
on which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

Current income tax also includes Mainland China land
appreciation tax which is levied on the appreciation of
land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including land cost,
borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2 REEERBEASHBEER®

(Continued)

2.25 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX 225 AE R IR AE PR B8 8% (48)
(Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (b) EFEFTIE

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
properties that are measured at fair value is
determined assuming the property will be recovered
entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.25 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries that are expected to
be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as current employee benefit obligations in the
statement of financial position.

Employee entitiements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by the employees up to the
statement of financial position date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

2 REEERBEASHBEER®

226 EERTH (&)

(b)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans which are available to all
relevant employees. These plans are generally funded
through payments to schemes established by
governments or trustee administered funds. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays contributions on mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis into a separate entity. In
accordance with the rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC based employees of the Group
participate in various defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the PRC under which the
Group and the PRC based employees are required to
make monthly contributions to these plans calculated
as a percentage, which is pre-determined by the local
municipal government, of the employees’ salaries.
The municipal and provincial governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired PRC based employees’
payable under the plans described above. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods.
The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans are expensed as incurred and are not reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(c)

(d

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are
expected to be settled within twelve months and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.

Housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances

Employees of the Group in Mainland China are
entitled to participate in various government-
supervised housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurance plan. The Group contributes
on a monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees, subject
to certain ceiling. The Group’s liability in respect of
these funds is limited to the contributions payable in
each year. Contributions to the housing funds,
medical insurances and other social insurances are
expensed as incurred.

2.27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

Share-based compensation benefit is provided to

employees via the share option scheme, restricted share
award scheme and stock incentive plan of subsidiaries.
Information relating to the share-based payment is set out
in note 34.

The Group operates above schemes and plans to

recognise the contributions by employees. The fair value of

the employee services received in exchange for the grant of

options and restricted shares is recognised as employee

benefit expense.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 HFBEEREASTBERER @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)
2.27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued) 227 R R (&)

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the value of the options and
restricted shares granted:

° including any market performance conditions;

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions; and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At each statement of financial position date, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options and restricted
shares that are expected to be vested. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to other reserves.

Employee share trust is established, for the purposes of
awarding shares to eligible employees under the share
option scheme and restricted share award scheme.

The employee share trust is administered by an
independent trustee and is funded by the Group’s cash
contributions and recorded as contributions to employee
share trusts, an equity component. The administrator of the
employee share trust buys the Company’s shares in the
open market for award to employees.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.28 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.29 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

162

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of

o the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9, and

° the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principals of
HKFRS 15.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.29 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

(Continued)

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based
on the present value of the difference in cash flows
between the contractual payments required under the debt
instrument and the payments that would be required
without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would
be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
associates are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions and recognised
as part of the cost of the investment.

2.30 REVENUE RECOGNITION

(a) The Group develops and sells properties, and
provides management services to its customers.
Revenues are recognised when the control of the
asset is transferred to the customer. Depending on
the terms of the contract and the laws and rules that
apply to the contract, control of the asset may
transfer over time or at a point in time. Control of the
asset is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer; or

° creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

° do not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.30 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)
(Continued)
If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is

(a)

recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,

revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the asset.

()

Property development and sales

The Group develops and sells residential
properties in Mainland China and US. Revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the
property is delivered to the customer, the
customer has accepted the property in
accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provision have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied. Revenue is
recognised over the development period by
reference to the costs incurred up to the end of
reporting period as a percentage of the total
expected costs to complete the contract.
Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of
progress toward completion are revised if
circumstances change. Any resulting increases
or decreases in estimated revenues or costs
are reflected in profit or loss in the period in
which the circumstances that give rise to the
revision become known by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 RHEEEREARSTFBERER ®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.30 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued) 2.30 WA TR (&)
(a) (Continued) (a (&)

(i) Management services (i) EERE
The Group provides management services to AEBEIZEEE R E M
its customers at fixed or variable amount. If the EFRHEEERE - WRE
consideration is variable, revenue is only g AR e RAAED
recognised to the extent that it is highly FREOEANSENERL T E
probable that a significant reversal will not U o {1 (B By Y B I
occur. The Group recognises revenue from HFEA BIR AR B & s A
management services over period of time EERAVTEEEHAEER
where the customer simultaneously receives BEEBRBAENEEMAS
and consumes the benefits provided by the MEeSETHKHNENER
Group or the Group’s performance does not AITHSZ S HER] - AR &
create an asset with an alternative use to the BN —REEEREERE
Group and the Group has an enforceable right WA & BB A R K — R [
to payment for performance completed to date. R o LR —ER AR
Otherwise revenue was recognised at a point in HIEATE AEBE2E
time. For revenue recognised over period of HEREHATIBEAORE
time, the Group measures the progress EEEENERKAGEE
towards complete satisfaction of performance KMHET AN BREN B D sk
obligation on the basis of the actual costs EEGEEBEREPHNEMR
incurred up to the end of the reporting period MEHBFERDHTHIE
as a percentage of total estimated costs for S MEEER EFTEE W
each contract or on basis of direct HROAUEEHMELEERA
measurements of the value transferred to the BB A IE R T R
customer. Where the outcome of a contract AN REBBHELRAER
cannot be measured reliably, revenue is BB I 1E 4 o
recognised only to the extent that the expenses
incurred are eligible to be recovered. Provision
is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they
are anticipated by the Group.

(b) Contract costs — costs of obtaining a contract (b) BHREK — BEREH LA
The costs of obtaining a contract with a customer are EBEFEHNNKNAL TERX -
immaterial and are expensed when incurred. W E £ R AR ©
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(Continued)
(c)
(d)
(e)
166

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

2.30 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Financing component

The Group adjusts the transaction price for the time
value of money where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods or services to the
customer and payments by the customer exceeds
one year considering it provides a potential significant
benefit. The transaction price is adjusted by the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and its
customer at contract inception.

Multiple performance obligations

Where the contracts include multiple performance
obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to
each performance obligation based on the stand-
alone selling prices. Where these are not directly
observable, they are estimated based on expected
cost plus margin.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

As agreed in the contracts, the customer pays fixed
or variable amount based on a payment schedule. If
the services or goods rendered by the Group exceed
the payment, a contract asset is recognised when
the Group’s rights to consideration are condition on
the Group’s future performance. If the payments
exceed the services or goods rendered, a contract
liability is recognised. Any unconditional rights to
consideration are presented separately as
receivables.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 HFBEEREASTBERER @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.31 INTEREST INCOME 231 7B WA

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in profit or loss as part of
“other income”.

Interest income is presented as “finance income” where it
is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see note 11.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the expected credit
loss).

2.32 DIVIDEND INCOME

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at
FVPL and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as “other
income” in profit or loss when the right to receive payment
is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-
acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of an investment. In this case,
the dividend is recognised in OCI if it relates to an
investment measured at FVOCI. However, the investment
may need to be tested for impairment as a consequence.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.33 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs they are intended
to compensate. Government grants that become receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
are recognised as income of the period in which they
become receivable.

2.34 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

° by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

o the after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 HFBEEREASTBERER @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)
2.35 LEASES 235HE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.35 LEASES (Continued)

170

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 HFBEEREASTBERER @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.35 LEASES (Continued) 235HE (&)

Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment
property are measured at fair value applying the fair value
model.

Other right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

° any initial direct costs, and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets which do not meet the definition of
investment property are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
12 months or less without a purchase option. Low-value
assets mainly comprise IT equipment.

Rental income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. The respective
leased assets are included in the statement of financial
position based on their nature.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.36 WARRANTY ACCRUALS

The Company’s listed subsidiary, Landsea Homes provides
home purchasers with limited warranties against certain
building defects and has certain obligations related to those
post-construction warranties for closed homes. The
specific terms and conditions of these limited warranties
vary depending upon the markets in which Landsea Homes
does business, but generally Landsea Homes provides all
of its home buyers with a limited warranty as to
workmanship and mechanical equipment and also provide
many of its home buyers with a limited 10-year warranty as
to structural integrity.

Estimated future direct warranty costs are accrued and
charged to cost of sales in the period when the related
homebuilding revenues are recognised. Amounts are
accrued based upon Landsea Homes’ historical rates of
warranty claims. Historical experience of Landsea Homes’
peers is also considered due to Landsea Homes limited
internal history of homebuilding sales. The adequacy of the
warranty accruals is assessed on a quarterly basis to reflect
changes in trends as information becomes available and
the amounts recorded are adjusted if necessary. The
warranty accruals is included in trade and other payables in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
adjustments to warranty accruals are recorded through
cost of sales.

2.37 DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

172

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end if the reporting period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 RREEREASTHRRER @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.38 EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AND SHARES HELD 2RATERAERGEBERZEE
FOR SHARE AWARD SCHEME pd &

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs. Respective distributions if and when declared are
treated as equity dividends.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity instruments, for example as the result of a share
buy-back or a share-based payment plan, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company as
treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or reissued.
Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the shareholders
of the Company.

Shares held by the company’s employee share Trust are
disclosed as treasury shares and deducted from equity
attributable to the shareholders of the Company.

2.39 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT

ASSETS

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that
outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

BATAREAEBRNHBMABEAGBR
MEETRERBESNERNELH - K
SEMMBRTHRATAREWAEHIEA
HBRERETRAER - SBZDIER
EIRFHR SRS

WEREBERARBEARR Z#EETA
(PlanpRth B RSk AR D A E R X
) - A B E (BREMERE
EEIB IR A (BRFATEH)) DA R
BB A ARG ERP R  (ERE
D BEEZERMDKEHIERH
TR WMZEEBREREENRE
17 AMEME I EE (MR ETHE
BEEENIEMR ZRARBREMAEHE
) ARRBRREEERD

AREEEBRNDERAFTAEZROBEES
EFpG  RARRRREEEZRAH
|§;% o

2FRBERAREE

FABBEHERBEEMFARESIBNE
T ARG ENERRRETHE
—RRZRAKE T LT 2 H T
PASFRRETE - AR BENAIERBHE
EHMEEMBAEREE  EHRNAIEE
FHRAREE RN AR SBETEER
STEMARAARK -

WA EERARAT — —E - SHEER 173



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ANz
AQ/T\II/

U 25 i R B R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.39 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT

ASSETS (Continued)

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

174

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. According to
the Group’s risk management policies, the financial risks
shall be assessed continuously by the management taking
into account of the prevailing conditions of the financial
market and other relevant variables to avoid excessive
concentrations of risk. The Group has not used any
derivatives or other instruments for hedging purpose. The
most significant financial risks to which the Group is
exposed to are described as below.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(a) Market risk

()

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates
and invests in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
US and with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB, HK$ and
US$ respectively. Foreign exchange risk mainly
arises from certain borrowings and other
current liabilities of the Company (with
functional currency of HK$) and other
subsidiaries located in US (with functional
currency of US$) which are denominated in
RMB.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk
at the end of the reporting period, expressed in
RMB, was as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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3 HEERBREE#
31 BIBEAKBEE#)

(a) THEREE
() SMNEERE

31 December 2023

SRR IR RSN IE R 2 B
mBHREMTENAAEE
FARKBAEREHBE RSN
R AEEEFEEFEA
- BERKBEEEEBTR
RE BEPAHEAIRZ D5

UARE - BTRETE
KR - SMNER R E E R A

NE (e BB AET) kAL
KRB E A0 B F) (T
EEBRET) ETUAR
BEtENERREMREA
EMmEL -

AR B E RN IMNE =
B (AARESIR) AT

31 December 2022

—EC-=F —_ZE—-
+=HA=+—H +=BR=+—8H
us$ HKD USs$ HKD
EPH BT eV BT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTR AR%®Tr ARETT ARET:
Cash and cash equivalent R4 MBS EEY 1,669 113 2,997 106
Other receivables H e W kI8 1,244,291 1,032,015 - 1,083,442
Other payables H A E S FRIE (1,058,679) (2,513,166) - (2,498,320)
Borrowings (B (909,620) - (1,590,871) =
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

176

()

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2023, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ and USS$,
respectively, with all other variables held
constant, loss before tax for the year ended 31
December 2023 would have been
approximately RMB110,169,000 (2022:
RMB152,632,000) higher/lower, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange differences on
translation of RMB denominated borrowings.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest — bearing
assets and liabilities other than bank deposits,
borrowings and other payables. Bank balances
and borrowings at floating rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to bank balances
and borrowings which bear floating interest
rates. Management monitors the interest rate
risk and performs sensitivity analysis on a
regular basis.

At 31 December 2023, if interest rates on bank
balances and borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s loss before tax for the
year would have been approximately
RMB16,621,000 (2022: RMB23,994,000)
higher/lower. The sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the statement of
financial position date.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The credit
risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, contract assets, trade
and other receivables and deposits. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk on Group’s cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings. In respect of contract assets,
trade and other receivables and deposits, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all debtors.
These evaluations focus on the debtors’ past history
of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the
debtors as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the debtors operate. The Group
has no significant concentrations of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers. The Group does not
obtain collateral from customers or counterparties in
respect of certain receivables. The Group has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverability of these receivables
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(b)

178

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group typically provides guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of
properties for an amount up to 70% of the total
purchase price of the property. If a purchaser defaults
on the payment of its mortgage loan during the
guarantee period, the bank holding the guarantee
may demand the Group to repay the outstanding
amount under the loan and any interest accrued
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is
able to retain the customer’s deposit and re-sell the
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group
to the bank. In this regard, the directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
Detailed disclosure of these guarantees is made in
note 41.

The Group provides guarantees in respect of related
parties’ borrowings to banks jointly with other
investors of the related party. Typically, the related
party guaranteed by the Group is a property
development or property holding company which
could liquidate or sell some or all of its assets to
repay the borrowings immediately. In this regard, the
directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced. Detailed disclosure of these
guarantees is made in note 41.

The following credit risk modelling applies:

The Group has the following types of financial assets
that are subject to expected credit loss model:

° Trade receivables

° Contract assets

o Amount due from related parties

° Amount due from non-controlling interests

° Other financial assets carried at amortised cost
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information, which could include:

o internal credit rating

° external credit rating

° actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant change
to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower

o significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower

o significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the borrower,
including changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the Group and changes in the
operating results of the borrower.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
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3 HXERERBREE®
31 BIBEAKBEE#)
(b) ZEER ()

() Contract assets and trade receivables )  BHEEREWKEZ
The Group applies the simplified approach to REBERBER BT BIRELE
provide for expected credit losses prescribed Al oSt E AL 7 Bt T8
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime HERBRELERE &E
expected credit loss provision for contract AR E NEE R EWER
assets and trade receivables. To measure the REAREFHANERER
expected credit losses, contract assets and BREH - RETETEHER
trade receivables were grouped based on BR  AREEREIERR
shared credit risk characteristics and the days BREEREERREHB LA
past due. HIR# 54 -
As at 31 December 2023, the expected credit R_BE-_=F+-_A=+—
loss provision was determined as follows. The H - FEHERBAEEDN
expected credit loss provision below also T o ARIEHA(E BB KB e
incorporated forward-looking information. MMEIERIEMEER -
Third parties
£=h
Related  Lessthan More than
parties 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3years Total
BEA HIME 122 2B3F SR3E @zt
k- a3 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
31 December 2023 t=A=1-H ARBTR  ARMTR ARWTR AR%TR ARRTR ARETR
Bxpected credt loss rate BHERRAZ 3%-100% 2%-6% 6-15%  15%-60%  60%-100%
Gross carrying amount EmeE
— Contract assefs (note 52) & #1AE (Hi&5.2) 66,632 133,862 47,583 55,235 24,442 327,754
— Trade receivables (note 27)  FEUERAA (R 27) 172,449 39,459 27,421 39,005 365,383 643,807
239,081 173,321 75,004 94,330 389,825 971,561
Expected credit loss provision ~ TEHI{E BB K& (E
— Contract assets (note 5.2) A HEE (fitz5.2) (15,794) (2,857) (2,874) (5,915) (19,504) (47,034)
— Trade receivables (note 27)  fEUERHA (7 27) (102,638) (1,017) (2,107) (12002 (250,763  (377,521)
(11843 (3874 (4981) (17917  (1936T)  (424561)
Total contract assets and ANEERENEGZ AR
trade receivables 120,649 169,447 70,023 76,413 110,468 547,000
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HHEBEER®
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 MBEBEE @

(b) EEEREE(E)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

() Contract assets and trade receivables () BHEEREKERN(E)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2022, the expected credit RZEBE_—_F+=_A=+—
loss provision was determined as follows. The H FEHERABXRAEEN
expected credit loss provision below also T ATNIEHA(E BB KB fE
incorporated forward-looking information. MEERIE AR -
Third parties
£=5
Related Less than More than
parties 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3years Total
B SE 152F 2E3F HI3F &t
“E-C RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
31 December 2022 +ZA=1+-H ARETRE  ARETR AREBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
Expected credt loss rate BHERRAZ 7%-100%  3%-10%  10%-25%  25%-60%  60%-100%
Gross carrying amount FESE
— Contract assets (note 52) ~ A#VEE (Hfi£5.2) 71,171 142,107 78,010 24,443 - 315,731
— Trade receivables (note 27) - AR (M3t 27) 186,350 40,892 45,513 35,804 870,236 678,885
257,521 182,999 123523 60,337 370,236 994,616
Expected credit loss provision ~ TEEE BRAEE
— Contract assets (10te 5.2) ~ &HEE ([17£5.2) (4,917) (5,677) (12,183) (14,257) - (37,034)
— Trade receivables (note 27) el (P 27) (35,612) (2,057) (10,285) (11802 (251855  (311,611)
(40,529) (7734 (22,469 (26069 (251855  (348,645)
Total contract assets and ANEERENRZAE
trade receivables 216,992 175,265 101,065 34,278 118,381 645,971
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

182

()

Contract assets and trade receivables
(Continued)

The expected credit loss provision for contract
assets and trade receivables as at 31
December 2023 reconciles to the opening

3

B R SR #)
3.1 BREBEZE®)
(b) EEERE)
() BHEEREWEDL &)

BHEERBRERN=-Z
—=F+-A=+—HKNHE
HA{= FA 18 5k B 45 ER HA 47) 78 B

expected credit loss provision are as follows: ERBREENHERNT
Contract Trade
assets receivables Total
EHNEE FE Wt BR X et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Opening expected credit R-ZE-_—_%—HA—H
loss provision as at HfEHGE B LRE
1 January 2022 (15,0951)  (254,826)  (270,777)
Additional expected credit BINEHERIBREE
loss provision (21,083) (56,785) (77,868)
Closing expected credit N-—ZBE-_—_%+—-A4
loss provision as at =+—BHREH
31 December 2022 ERBAERE (37,034)  (311,611)  (348,649)
Additional expected credit MBS IR B
loss provision (10,000) (65,916) (75,916)
Closing expected credit R-E-=F+=A
loss provision as at =+—BAHREH
31 December 2023 ERIEXEE (47,034)  (377,527)  (424,561)
Write-off policy g8

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
trade receivable or contract asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Amounts due from related parties, non-
controlling interests and other financial assets
at amortised cost

The Group uses three categories for other
receivables which reflect their credit risk and
how the expected credit loss provision is
determined for each of those categories. The
Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit
losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
both historical loss rates and forward-looking
macroeconomic data. A summary of the
assumptions underpinning the Group’s
expected credit loss model is as follows:

Group definition
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B REEERE#)
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(b) EEER(E)
() FEYC BB 2008 - FESE B
PRI R B E
% BB E
7 £ 8t A B U SRR =
EER - AR EEEERR
o hn A 3t 45 40 28 5 T M3 42 P
BREE  AEEBBER
REMERBAELEE R
B LB EEERRALR-
EHEAMERERRE
AEEEEEPBBERA
EEBE RS AEEE
B fE B KB A M R R
M

Basis for recognition of

Category of category expected credit loss provision
HEhl AEERERNFTESR BAAMEREABRENESE
Stage one Customers have a low risk of default and 12 months expected credit losses.
a strong capacity to meet contractual Where the expected lifetime of
cash flows an asset is less than 12 months,
expected losses are measured at
its expected lifetime
F—MEER BHERFRERENEORESREERN 12@ABHEREXR WEENEHRF
BYHEF HAR12{@ A - RIFEHEERERF
i E
Stage two Receivables for which there is a significant  Lifetime expected credit losses
increase in credit risk since initial
recognition
EBER B I FHER A RIS E R AR £ FHEBEREX
JRE WK
Stage three Receivables for which there is credit loss Lifetime expected credit losses
since initial recognition
F=MER B ERARZEESEEFENRKS FHEABEHAER
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

184

(i)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Amounts due from related parties, non-

controlling interests and other financial assets

at amortised cost (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group provided
for expected credit loss provision against other
receivables as follow:

3 HEERER®
3.1 BREBEZE®)

(b) EEERE)
() FEYC BB 208 - FESE R 1E
PR R R B E

2 A 2 ()

R-BE—=FE+=-fA=+—
B - ZN £ 3 g A qth FE W SR ET
RIEHERERBEDT

Estimated Carrying

gross amount

Expected carrying Expected (net of

credit amount at credit loss impairment

31 December 2023 Category loss rate default provision provision)

REE

BHER CEHEE BHER (2

ZBZZE+tZA=t-H L] BXZ FEAE BXBE HERE)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®TR ARETR

Amounts due from related parties ~ Stage one 1%-7% 425,985 (17,941) 408,044
FE R BRE 75 500R —E &

Amounts due from related parties ~ Stage three 10%-100% 899,135 (746,597) 152,538
FE R BRE 75 500R F=FER
Amounts due from non-controling Stage one

interests 1%~7% 3,747 (236) 3,511
JEUR PR R 2R FROE F—FEE

Amounts due from non-controlling  Stage three

interests 10%-100% 1,225 (1,133) 92
FEUR PRI R 25 5RIE F=FER

Deposits for purchase of land Stage one 3% 683,609 (20,508) 663,101
BELTMES —E&

Other receivables Stage three 10%-100% 435,717 (154,171) 281,546
Hitnfelskia =RR

Other receivables Stage two 8%-10% 888,076 (79,251) 808,825
Hitfelskia —RR

3,337,494 (1,019,837) 2,317,657
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Amounts due from related parties, non-
controlling interests and other financial assets
at amortised cost (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group provided
for expected credit loss provision against other
receivables as follow:
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3 HKERRERE®

31 B¥RAKEE#)

(b) =EREE(E)
(i)  FEM BT 508 - FEFE %
Bm RIZEBHEK AT ENE

fih & G £ E (48)

RZEZ—F+-A=*+—
B - A5 B 5t H B KA
RIEBHEABABERT

Estimated Carrying

gross amount

Expected carrying Expected (net of

credit amount at credit loss impairment

31 December 2022 Category loss rate default provision provision)

FEE

BHER fhETER BHER (B R

“ECCE+ZA=1—H #5l BA% REZE BXRE AER )

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARETT ARETT

Amounts due from related parties  Stage one 3%-7% 760,330 (53,094) 707,236
FE R BRE 75 50 0R FFER

Amounts due from related parties ~ Stage three 20%-100% 886,483 (703,579 182,904
FE R BB 75 7R0R F=ER
Amounts due from non-controlling  Stage one

interests 7% 169,012 (11,831) 157,181
FEN IR I R 2R SR FFEER

Deposits for purchase of land Stage one 3% 697,074 (20,912) 676,162
BELTHNERS FFER

Other receivables Stage three 20%-100% 177,085 (100,986) 76,099
Ht K FIR F=ER

Other receivables Stage one 1%-3% 1,041,252 (24,284) 1,016,968
H it fetskom FFEER

3,731,236 (914,686) 2,816,550
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HEERER®
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 31 BERKBEE#)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =ERE(E)
(i) Amounts due from related parties, non- (i) FEYLEGRE T 500A - FEFE Bt
controlling interests and other financial assets B RIZE s ARGt 2R
at amortised cost (Continued) fib 2 B & E (42)
The expected credit loss provision for amounts JE W BE Bt 5 ZRIE - FEIE I
due from related parties, non-controlling Em MR KA T ERA
interests and other financial assets at amortised HMEeEREER_ZT=_=F
cost as at 31 December 2023 reconciles to the +ZA=+—HB®EHEA
opening expected credit loss provision are as BABEEBYEBEAE
follows: KEBEFEHOHEERAT -
Amounts
Amounts due from Deposits
due from non- for
related controlling purchase Other
parties interests of land receivables Total
R
el FEn BEL At
BRARE BHHE e e &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Opening expected creditloss ~ R=E--%-F-H
provision as at 1 January 2022  HYRHBEAELRE (466,878) (33,901) (4,056) (17,340) (522,175)
Recoveries o - 13,234 - = 13,234
Additional expected credit loss EHNEMERERER
orovison (289,795) . (16,856) (107.930) (414581)
Written off fit - 8,836 - - 8,836
Closing expected credit loss R=B-Z£+Zf
provision at 31 December 2022  =+-HHREH
EREARE 76679 (M8 Rogld (125210 (914689
Recoveries i 11,506 10,462 404 12,343 34,715
Adaltional expected credit loss EHEBERELER
provision (19371) - - (133,743) (153,14)
Witten off s - - - 13,248 13,248
Closing expected credit loss R-BZ=E+ZR
provision at 31 December 2023  =+—BHREH
EREARE (764,538) (1,369) (20,508) (2334229  (1,019,837)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities. Landsea Homes, the
Company’s listed subsidiary, was managed
separately for liquidity management purpose.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been
for the payments of property development projects
and operating expenses. The Group finances its
working capital requirements mainly through internal
resources and borrowings from shareholders, banks
and other financial institutes. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and adequate credit
facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the statement of financial
position date to the contractual maturity dates. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay as of 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022.
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3 UBERERER®
31 B¥RAKEE#)

(c) WmEEDEE
EENRBECRAKREREER
HTEMRERRCEEY LB
BEMANEEREREENGES -
K&l kB A A Landsea
Homes A it &) & & B 12 B & ifl /&
MER e

AEENTERSFTRARIN
FHERZEBRBEMEEER - K
SENZLEESHTRKIBREBRN
MERE AR - R1TRE MY
BHRBEREN - NEEOBER
REREREMRERNRSE
EHK BREFEAENRE R
ReSEMRARNEEEE
Nime L RPN RBESFEL -

TREHNBFEMBARAKBHRE
A HEH B A R HARR - iR PR A
FEBAERNE S AEE2F B
BEAM KRABEBENESBEANZ
EZ=F+ZHA=+—BHRkZ=ZE
T+ A=+—HRBREARE
B Ekpn e R BHE
WEHNRFBRESRE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

188

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3 HXERERBREE®
31 BIBEAKBEE#)

(c) nEBEmEE(E)

Less than
1yearor  Between  Between
repayable 1 and 2and Over
on demand 2 years 5years 5years Total
PR—FF
REREE -EZmE ERE  HEENE @it
RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT AR®TT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=%
+=ZA=+-H
Trade and other payables PR BR TR R A BT 58 7,740,089 351,662 - - 8,091,751
Financial liabilties at fair value BRAREETA
through profit or loss SRS REE 311,840 - 39,047 - 350,887
Borrowings and interest thereon & 5 & ABREF 8 2,461,408 2,605,619 3,449,878 57,942 8,574,847
Guarantee in respect of mortgage  #&E T ER Z
facilities for certain purchasers BB R B REER 726,405 - - - 726,405
Lease liabilties HERE 27,245 20,386 46,412 22,091 116,134
At 31 December 2022 R-B=-Zf
TZA=+—-H
Trade and other payables TR R E BT 7920870 338,389 = - 8,259,259
Financial liabilities at fair value BARBHEGA
through profit or loss SnMemAaRE 315,931 - 10,272 - 326,203
Borrowings and interest thereon £ 7t K 8B 2 1,778,177 5,164,302 840,415 62,729 7,845,623
Guarantee in respect of mortgage AT EZRZ
facilities for certain purchasers RiBR A R AR 993,914 = = - 993914
Guarantee in respect of related ~ FLEIEE 7 2 fE FURMEER
parties’ borrowings 102,400 - 102,400
Lease liabilities MERE 35,996 25,729 35,695 12,841 110,261
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, excluding those balances
of the Company’s listed subsidiary Landsea Homes,
which was managed separately for liquidity
management purpose, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB5,287 million and
the Group’s current borrowings amounted to
RMB1,973 million while its cash and cash equivalents
was RMB141 million only. As disclosed in Notes
2.1(c) and 31, the Group was in default of a senior
note (the “Defaulted Senior Note”) with principal
and interest amounts of US$34 million (equivalent to
RMB240 million) because of non-payment at its due
date. The Group also had other obligations. Note
2.1(c) explains management’s plans and measures
for managing liquidity needs of the Group to enable it
to continue to meet its obligations as and when they
fall due.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group
could be required to settle under the arrangement for
the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely that no amount
will be payable under the arrangement. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending on the
probability of the counterparty claiming under the
guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that
the financial receivables held by the counterparty
suffer credit losses.
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3 HKERRERE®
31 B¥RAKEE#)

(c) HEELEREE)
RZEBEZ=%+=ZA=+—8"
MBEARAARBDESEEE W
MaHAEEN LT B QA
Landsea Homes M2 54554 » A&
ENnBaEERERBEEA
R #5,287,000,0007¢ * 1 A&
Wom e E xR ARE
1,973,000,000 7T * M H R & &I
©EEWE B AR 141,000,000
JC e B EE2.1 (o) R 31FTHH B -
ANEBRIABREEELAE R
# B4 %8 534,000,000 % 7T (1B
A R # 240,000,000 7T) H18 5
ER(EBABEEE)) MELD -
REBITBEEMEME - MizE2.1 (0
REEEETEAEERPES
BREE I RIEHE A RS
BERITEIEML -

LRI BFEREDOFANETE
REBEREFTRREBAESE
AEERBERERSBELHEN
RAENNZRSSHE - RENR
SHRNESR AEERRTK
AR RRBR B X N E MR -
A &G R EEREE F A RE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HXERBRER®)
3.2 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION 32 AREMEME

The different levels of valuation method for financial TXEFFABEHEESTIEAREBEA

instruments carried at fair value are as follows: RMEemT A ARER :

(@ Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for @ MHEREEXBERERTS R
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). BOREHE) (B1E) -

(b) Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 b)) BREIBMERENREN  REE
that are observable for the asset or liability, either SEEAERNERE (BIMER) X
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived M (AR B ER) @A ST (F2
from prices) (level 2). B) -

(©)  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on ) EBEIBEWFEEAHERME
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) R A SR (AN B R A
(level 3). Hg) (F3E) -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E H2E %£3E st
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
e AREBFT AREBTT ARE®TRT ARETT
Financial liabilities at &2 A EEF A
fair value through BENEsREes
profit or loss
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=%F
+-—A=+—H 30 39,047 - 311,840 350,887
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF
+-—HA=+—8H 30 10,272 - 315,931 326,203

There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active

markets is based on quoted market prices. A market is

regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly

available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,

pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices

represent actual and regularly occurring market

transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continueqd)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

The remaining financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, and investment properties held by the Group are not
traded in active markets nor does the fair value determined
by using valuation techniques that use observable market
data. Therefore, they are included in level 3.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of the financial liabilities are determined (in particular,
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3 HEERER®
3.2 RAEEMH @)
THEAERTHEENSBRIA HIW
B ONTAE TR 8 A F2 18 8 A 15 18 B 1
HE o REEERN TS FIE AT ESN
AEETSEE HNEEROKEE
BORAEITEIE - BRARBENE
WIAFMEMAAEEAE ABBETR
BES  AZETASMAELE -

£ BN HE AR A BRI RE
BETSREET  AREIASMHA
F3/E -

HBRBE AN BEFABSNERTAR
AEEFHENREENETEREED
LEE TEERABEEMSEENG
ERNEEAREBE  HtHBAES3
0

TERREAFHINEESMABEARLE
BERER LEZMERNEERMN R

the valuation techniques and input used). B ABIR) °
Fair value as at
RUTBEBHNAAEE
31 December 31 December  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques and Significant
Financial liabilities 2023 2022  hierarchy  key inputs unobservable input
—EC-=% —E-C EXTABE

eWaR tZR=+-8H TZA=T-H AABEER AERKRIEGAHE BWAHE

Redemption liabilities RMB311,840,000 RMB315,931,000  Level 3 Discounted cash flow — Future cash  Risk-free rate (note (i)
flows are estimated based on the
expected repayment, discounted at  Liquidity risk premium
arate taking into account the (note (i))
risk-free rate and liquidity risk
premium

BO&fE ARM311,840000T AX¥315931,000C H=#4 BRRENE - ARALRED  BERHE (M)

REBRBENET  RERERR
MERRBESREREENLEY RYELAREE
R (M)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued)

(i) As at 31 December 2023, if a) the risk free rate used
was multiplied by 95% or 105% while all the other
variables were held constant, the fair value losses —
net would increase by approximately RMB758,000/
decrease by approximately RMB751,000; b) the
liquidity risk premium used was multiplied by 95% or
105% while all the other variables were held constant,
the fair value losses — net would increase by
approximately RMB78,000/decrease by
approximately RMB78,000.

See note 19 for disclosures of the investment properties
that are measured at fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other current financial
assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values
due to their short maturities.

3.3 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s capital management objectives are:

° to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern; and

° to provide an adequate return to shareholders.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or obtain borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B S o R A R

Restricted cash with the amount of RMBnil (2022:
RMB55,417,240) was pledged as securities for borrowings
of the Group and the Group considers that such restricted
cash should be included in the calculation of net debt in
order to reflect an appropriate gearing ratio of the Group.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HEERER®
3.3 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.3 EXRKBERE#)
The Group monitors its capital structure on a basis of AEERBEEEBLEREZEEARALE
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by T o R EAEBFRER A E A BEEE
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings and 8o ERFHEUNMERBERIRE RS
lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and ZEYRIEATREEERNERNZR
restricted cash pledged for the Group’s borrowing. Total IR ST E - BN BEEAER F B INER
capital is calculated as net debt plus total equity as shown EMBRA KA TR B RTTE
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are RZZE_=FR=ZFT=_=F+=A
as follows: =t HWEEABRLENAT :
2023 2022
—E-=F —_E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Borrowings (note 31) B (MHEE31) 7,214,893 7,331,075
Lease liabilities (note 21) HEBE HE21) 100,525 120,771
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 28) & : IR & MR & B (M 7£28) (988,161) (1,252,056)
Restricted cash (note 28) X R HIRE (3T 28) - (55,417)
Net debt (ERIE 6,327,257 6,144,373
Total equity AR 2,072,284 2,693,358
Total capital BRLREE 8,399,541 8,837,731
Gearing ratio BEAMFBLE 75% 70%

EHWABAREBZ T (ZE__F: AR
¥ 55,417,240 7T) K % [R #l 3R & B K 3§
EAASBEEBERNER AEERABZ
EXRHIRSETABEEFENTE
NRBAREBHEBEEELE -
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194

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions

concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing material

adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(A)

(B)

CLASSIFICATION OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT
VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE

In the normal course of business, the Group develops
properties together with other developers or institutions,
through entering into co-operation agreements with these
parties. The rights and obligations of the Group and the
other parties are stipulated by respective co-operation
agreements, article of associations of the project
companies and etc. Due to the complexity of the
arrangements, significant judgement is needed in
determining whether the project company is subsidiary,
associate or joint venture to the Group. The Group makes
judgement based on the substance of the arrangements
and the definition of subsidiary, associate and joint venture
as disclosed in notes 2.3, 2.4 and 2.5.

ESTIMATES OF FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value
which is determined by independent professional valuers.
Such valuation is made based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainties and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making the judgement,
reasonable consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the statement of financial position date. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data
and actual transactions in the market.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(€)

(D)

NET REALISABLE VALUE OF PROPERTIES

UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND HELD FOR SALE
The Group estimates the net realisable value of properties
under development and property held for sale held by its
subsidiaries, as well as its joint ventures and associates
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling properties and products of a similar
nature. It could change significantly as a results of change
in market conditions. Management reassesses these
estimates at each statement of financial position date.

INCOME TAXES AND DEFERRED TAX

The Group is subject to income taxes in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and US. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain in the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year when such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when the Group
considers it is likely that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. When the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and income tax
charges in the period in which such estimates are changed.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

196

(E)

(F)

IMPAIRMENT OF INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 36 to identify any
impairment indicator for interests in associates and joint
ventures. This determination requires significant judgement.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates the fair
value of an investment by taking into account a market
participant’s ability in such interests in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would
invest in interests in its highest and best use. The Group
considers the financial health of and short-term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry
and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow.

REVENUE RECOGNITION FOR PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT AND SALES

The Group develops and sells properties to its customers in
different countries. Revenue from sales of properties is
recognised over time when the Group’s performance do not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date. The Group may not change or substitute
the property unit or redirect the property unit for another use
due to the contractual restrictions with the customer and
thus the property unit does not have an alternative use to the
Group. However, whether there is an enforceable right to
payment depends on the terms of sales contract and the
interpretation of applicable laws that apply to the contract.
To assess the enforceability of right to payment, the Group
has reviewed the terms of its contracts, the relevant local
laws, the local regulators’ views and obtained legal advice,
when necessary, and a significant judgement is required.

For property development and sales contracts for which the
control of the property is transferred at a point in time,
revenue is recognised when the buyer obtains the physical
possession or legal title of the completed property and the
consideration amount is collected. The Group seldom
provides long credit or payment terms to its property buyers.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(G)

(H)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The provision for expected credit loss for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in the note 3.1(b).

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The Group performs goodwill impairment assessment both
annually and whenever there is an indication that a cash
generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwill has been
allocated may be impaired. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the CGUs to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the CGUs and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2023 was
RMB486,148,000. Further details are given in note 22.
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ARESEEBMMMETRRAERER
EEAENBERUAEZEREREN
RE - —ZT-_=F+-_A=+—HHH
ZEMEE S AR K 486,148,0007T © i
— BRI 22 o

S} SRR 197



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 BB i R M R
5 REVENUE 5 WA
5.1 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 51 EFEHREMEFRKRA
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER SOURCE
2023 2022
—E-=% —_E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Revenue from contracts with EEEHRA
customers
Revenue recognised at a point in time ME— AR R A
Property development and sales EHERERIEE
— Mainland China — PR 57,799 3,888,601
— Us — X 8,385,216 9,425,714
Management services (note 5.1(a)) EIRRE (HFE5.1(a)
— Mainland China — R E A 92,366 95,732
—US — X£H 2,443 2,181
8,537,824 13,412,228
Revenue recognised over period R—EREE A #ERE KA
Property development and sales B fE R IHE
— Us — XK 173,565 345,982
Management services (note 5.1(a)) EIERE (HFE5.1(0)
— Mainland China — R A 325,680 255,068
499,245 601,050
Revenue from other source HAth 2R =z WA
Rental income GiEEA PN
— Office investment properties — MR EYE 2,728 5,243
9,039,797 14,018,521
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5 REVENUE (continued)
5.1 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

5 WA

51 EF S REMBRKA (4#)

CUSTOMERS AND OTHER SOURCE (Continued)
(@) Breakdown of the revenue from management @ EERBBABPMALT

services is as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Revenue from development F 2 E ERB A
management services 248,422 104,703
Revenue from sales management HEEERFKA
services 92,366 95,732
Revenue from green product GEERESRBEA
integration services 49,398 63,516
Revenue from brand authorisation on R IR AR A A
services 30,303 89,030
420,489 352,981
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR A BB R M
5 REVENUE (continued)

200

5.2 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATE
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
The Group has recognised the followin

5 WA

D TO 52 HEFENEBENEERERE

g assets and

AEECRANTEREFENARNE

liabilities related to contracts with customers: E;BE:
2023 2022
—Eg2-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREF T
Contract assets related to HATIEEEBANEGRNEE
— Property development and sales — EHEREREE 42,170 50,005
— Management services — BERERE 285,584 265,726
Less: provision for loss allowance B EEEE (FEES.10)6)
(note 3.1(b)(i)) (47,034) (87,034)
280,720 278,697
Contract liabilities related to HATIEEEEANEGHNEE
— Property development and sales — FHERZEREE 196,588 144,663
— Management services — EERTE 52,018 56,605
248,606 201,268
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5 REVENUE (continued)
5.2 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Continued)

(a

(b)

Significant changes in contract assets and
liabilities

Contract assets consist of unbilled amount resulting
from development management services when
revenue recognised over the service period by
reference to the costs incurred up to the end of
reporting period as a percentage of the total
expected costs to complete the contract exceeds the
amount billed to customers.

The Group receives payments from customers based
on billing schedule as established in contracts.

Contract liabilities increased by RMB47,338,000
mainly due to the pre-sale of properties to buyers of
one project company in Mainland China during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

5 WA
52 EEFENEHRNEERERS

(a) EHNEEREEEALE

2R IR R R A A (2R E
EREMRAELERAEELD T
TREEK AR B DL ETE) B8
AEFHENSRE GHNEES
BEREERREHRMERE -

AEEREETFPREORFIL
P LS R By ) 2R MR 3K

AR B EHE I A R47,338,000
T SHEREBE-E-_=F+=#
=+ —HBIEFE M EAH—RE
BERARBHTEEWEME -

(b) BREXNEEEZLKA

TRETRR ARSI FEERES
HANBEBEERHOEA -

2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Revenue recognised that was included in ¥zt A& 4 8 E4E &8
the contract liabilities balance at the B HERIA
beginning of the year
— Property development and sales — B EMBERHEE 47,495 3,872,034
— Management services — BRIk 56,605 45173
104,100 3,917,207
MagagmgRen —— —Z2o=ggn )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 BB i R M R
5 REVENUE (continued) 5

202

5.2 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Continued)
(c) Contracted amounts to be recognised in future

The following table shows unsatisfied performance

L ONC-))

52 HEFANEENEEREE(®)

(c) BRAREZLTHEH

TR BEAHMFENTF A

obligations resulting from contracts with customers in HNEENRBITRBERT
existence at the reporting date.
2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T
Expected to be recognised TEHIR —F NHER
within one year
— Property development and sales — EHERERIEE 69,639 120,779
— Management services — BEART 52,019 56,605
Expected to be recognised after one year 8 Hiid — F 14 #E R
— Property development and sales — FHERBELEE 126,948 23,884
248,606 201,268
(d) Contract cost (d) EHEEK

Costs directly attributable to obtaining a contract
such as stamp duty and sales commissions are
immaterial and expensed when they were incurred.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the executive directors that are used to
make strategic decisions. The reports are prepared on the same
pbasis as consolidated financial statements.

The executive directors consider the business from services
perspective and have identified the following operating segments:

o Property development and sales in US;

o Property development and sales in Mainland China;

o Management services; and

o Office property investment.

The executive directors assess the performance of operating
segments based on a measure of segment revenue and segment
profit.

Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned or loss incurred
by each segment without allocation of net finance costs and
corporate expenses charged in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. This is the
measure reported to the management of the Group for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

/'\ﬁlgﬁ*gl_
EEERBLANTEETSHNRAERIR
EHMEETELEDT - BAREREFS
R R AR EERR -

RFBAEZEREL  LHRBAT

XEEWEREREE

o  HENMEMERELHEE
e EBERKE: K

o BWIAYMEKRE-

HWITESREDBRARD B BT EFN A
CE D AR R o

A
,\\I

D RAE,(B18) 358 2 BB AT BRER A0 FE
EEZER ETERESAGERGE REAM
IEW SRNPBERARARERFEND

CAEBEERERBEABRENAEDRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 BB ik R BT

204

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information provided to the executive directors for

the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2023

is as follows:

DEER &)

HE_ZT =

HWITESRENRED

-~

For the year ended 31 December 2023

=Ft+-_A=+—RHIEE @
EHEMLT :

BE-B-ZF+-A=+-HLEE
Property
Property  development
development  and sales in Office
and sales in Mainland Management property
us China services  investment Total
FER i
ZEREHE EiE
RERHE HERHE BERE BONERE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%TR AR%ETn ARETR AR¥Tn
Segment revenue (from external AEBA CRENDEF) (Hi7E5)
customers) (note 5)
— Revenuerecognised atapointin -~ — RIEE B REEE
time under HKFRS 15 F15HRE IR
RREMA 8,385,216 57,799 94,809 - 8,537,824
— Revenue recognised over period — BER BB RE LA
under HKFRS 15 F15FN—BREBRER
L ON 173,565 - 325,680 - 499,245
— Rental income — HERA - - - 2,728 2,728
8,558,781 57,799 420,489 2,728 9,039,797
Depreciation of property, nE - BERSERTE
plant and equipment (30,677) (9,254) (5,984) - (45,915)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELENE (32,067) (855) (2,651) - (35,573)
Falr value loss on investment REMMENDABEER
properties (note 19) (FtzE19) - - - (10,900) (10,900)
Falr value loss on financial liabilities at falr &2 7t BB ABENEREE
value through profit or loss (note 10)  FYA /L BEEE (MEE10) (19,079) - - - (19,079)
Share of net loss of associates (note 17) FEREEE N Al B (FFE17) - (94,087) - - (94,087)
Share of net (loss)/profit of joint EhHAECEE(BR)/FH
ventures (note 18) (Ki3E18) (150) 152,441 - - 152,291
Segment profit/(loss) AEFIE/ (B8) 162,641 (582,246) (104,493) (17,870) (541,968)
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=5+ZA=t-H
Segment assets PEEE 11,701,003 6,092,024 1,236,248 324310 19,353,585
Interests in associates (note 17) RS AR AR (R FE17) - 1,074,737 - - 1,074,737
Interests in joint ventures (note 18) REE LR (MiFE18) 137 2,314,940 - - 2,315,077
Additions/(deductions) to non-current 1251,/ (Rl ) FERBE E
assets (excluding financial assets, (TeREeEE
deferred income tax assets) ELMEHEE) (14,139) 63,926 (5,190) 1,000 45,507
Segment liabilities PHEE 7,759,413 8,480,813 981,835 59,240 17,281,301
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b5 2 BT 42
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DHER @)
The segment information provided to the executive directors for HE-_ZT-_—_F#+-A=+—HALFE ' M
the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2022 WITESRENREDHEALOT -
is as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__£+-A=t-RBLLEE
Property
Property  development
development and sales in Office
and sales in Mainland ~ Management property
us China senvices investment Total
B st
FEEHE EiE
RERHE HEREE EERE WAMERE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETr ARETr ARET:
Segment revenue (from external DEHBA REINPEF)
customers) (note 5) (FizE5)
— Revenue recognised at a point - REBAU B REER
in time under HKFRS 15 F15HNE IR
BREMA 9,425,714 3,888,601 97,913 - 13412228
— Revenue recognised over period — BER BB R LA
under HKFRS 15 F155N—BRERR
LV ON 345,982 - 255,068 - 601,050
— Rental income - He A - - - 5,43 5,243
9,771,696 3,888,601 362,981 5,243 14,018,521
Depreciation of property, nE- BELIENE
plant and equipment (21,507) 6,711) (7,296) - (35,514)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELENE (32,354) (1,739) (5,460) = (39,553)
Falr value loss on investment REMMENDABEER
properties (note 19) (FsE19) = = = (33,600) (33,600)
Falr value loss on financial liabilities at falr &2 7t BE ABENERAE
value through profit or loss (note 10) VAR EEESE (FE10) (26,227) = = = (26,227)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair &2 7t {E B ABENEREE
value through profit or loss (note 10) KA BEEE (FFE10) (283) - - - (283)
Share of net profit of associates (note 17) FE{fE “/‘T/ﬂ F (P3E17) = 31,507 = = 31,507
Share of net profit/(loss) of EEaErE3ME/(BB)
joint ventures (note 18) (Ki3E18) 1,400 (305,167) - - (303,767)
Segment profit/(loss) B/ (EE) 477755 (1,403,663) (344,488) 18,148  (1,252,248)
At 31 December 2022 R=B=Z%+=-A=+-H
Segment assets PHEE 11,009,176 7,863,346 778,498 335,772 19,986,792
Interests in associates (note 17) EQH“*” AR RS (PRE17) = 1,186,685 = = 1,186,685
Interests in joint ventures (note 18) REEEEMER (HF18) 283 2,193,977 - = 2,194,260
Additions/(deductions) to non-current 1251,/ (Rl ) R B EE
assets (excluding financial assets, (T eREeREE
deferred income tax assets) EUﬁ HEE) 346,583 (15,627) (13,539) (307,100) 10,317
Segment liabilities AHARE 7,467,930 9,360,984 434,700 29,820 17,293,434
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 BB ik R BT

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group does not have any single customer which contributed
to more than 10% of the Group’s revenue. The Group’s revenue
from external customers and non-current assets are divided into
the following geographical areas:

DEER &)

AEBEIW EEAEARBRAI10% A LB E
—EP - AREXRBIIBEF WA RIER

BEERATHIEREES

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

IEREFE WA ERBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=HE - —EC=E —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT AR¥TR ARET T
Mainland China R A 478,573 4,244 644 4,208,012 4,100,638
us x 8,561,224 9,773,877 765,426 706,504
Hong Kong (domicile) a7 GGEfftis) - - 451 1,292
9,039,797 14,018,521 4,973,889 4,808,434

The revenue information above is based on the location of the
customers. Non-current assets information above is based on
the location of the assets.

Reconciliation of segment loss to loss before income tax is as

AEWRABRTGREFREMEMIESL ° A
LIFRBEEBENIREEMELMAIESL

D EBE R EARR P IS DRI B BV H BR AT ¢

follows:
2023 2022
—EC=F —E__F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ART T ARETIT
Segment loss o EbET R (541,968) (1,252,248)
Finance costs — net (note 11) B 758 R F 58 (1) (213,102) (386,317)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBERRER (68,248) (107,859)
Loss before income tax Br TSR AT B 18 (823,318) (1,746,424)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR A BT R M
OTHER INCOME 7 Hiukzs
2023 2022
—_E2-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR ARET T
Interest income from: AEBWZEHRE
— Amounts due from joint ventures and — BRE E D EREE QN RIFIA
associates (note 40(h)(ii)) (B 5 40(h)(i)) 13,231 14,504
— Loan to third parties — ME=ZAER 14 2,551
Government grants (a) B B (a) 5,440 11,045
Others Ef - 81
18,685 28,181
(@) Government grants included tax rebate with amount of RMB2,430,000 (@) BB e iERH AR 2,430,000 0 (= =4 :

(2022: RMB8,961,000).

OTHER LOSSES — NET

AR#8,961,0007T) °

8 HthEiEFHE

2023 2022
—E-=F T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Gain/(loss) on re-measurement of existing REELEER LK B ARE

interest in joint ventures upon B TERARENRE

conversion to subsidiaries (note 18) (E518) (fizE18) 1,020 (78)
Loss on re-measurement of existing interest in [t /B A A& EFH+ 28 E A F)

associates upon conversion to a subsidiary I A5 E1E (HT5E37(a))

(note 37(a)) (156) -
Loss in on partial disposal of a joint venture ~ #8H0 HE—ME L EREIER (22,183) (60,116)
Gain on settlement of guarantee EHERBELEZEBENFGE

senior notes 9,309 28,997
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HE M B A RIR B 18 (MI5E39) - (83,567)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BERRENEE

plant and equipment (4,839) (113)
Net exchange (losses)/gains P& (B518), MW= F 58 (49,445) 189,413
Late payment fine and other T bl BB R R B ST SR &

losses on land acquisition/construction Hi g - (332,640)
Compensation for late property delivery Y B H R B (E - (94,271)
Others HAih 12,878 9,853

(53,416) (342,522)
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A5 BB ik R BT

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 RUHEIENEHR
2023 2022
—E-= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETIT
Employee benefit expenses EERAMER
Directors’ remuneration (note 15) EEHM (HFEE15)
— Fees — e 900 900
— Salaries and allowances — ¥ & MOERL 6,315 7,957
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions ~ — R K@ A5t 214 7 172 280
— Restricted share award — SR A0 52 B (HFE15@)
(note 15(a), note 34(b)) M5 34(0)) 1,460 2,098
8,847 11,235
Other staff costs HibB T &M
— Wages, salaries and allowances — IT& - e kEM 485,245 458,477
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions ~— — R /R4& ) 5T 2] 5% 20,894 28,712
— Other staff benefit — H B TR 10,841 6,890
— Restricted share award (note 34(p)) — PRI AR (0 22 B (B 5% 34(b)) 6,817 4,636
— Share incentive plan of subsidiaries NG R 21,788 24,660
545,585 523,375
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EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

9 BRMESEMER®

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Cost of property development and sales
— Mainland China (note 9(a))
— US
Cost of management services
— Mainland China
Rental and expense in respect of properties
Operating costs in respect of
investment properties
Other taxes
Advertising and promotion expenses
Legal and professional fees (note 9(b))
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (note 20)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 21)
Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services
Provision for decline in the value of properties
under development and held for sale
(note 23) (note 25)
Others

B b EE B 2% R SH B AN
— A (M FE9@) 47,052 3,622,493
— X£H 7,382,042 7,853,916
BRI AL AR
— R A 305,292 387,890
MERERER 5,660 3,573
BEMYENEERHR
1,086 1,490
H I8 81,758 96,696
BEREERER 480,303 591,264
ERRBEESER (MEEob) 149,278 157,867
Y - BB R EITE (MEE20)
45,915 35,514
EAEEENE (E21) 35,573 39,553
1% £ Bl 357 B
— BZR 2,800 2,900
— IEBZARTE - 100
FHEHSEWEEEB T ®KEE
(Pt7E23) (Ht3E25)
190,051 777,813
EAh 167,950 147,023
9,449,192 14,252,702
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10

210

EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 9 RMHESEWNEAR@®
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETx ARETIT
Representing: 5
Cost of sales and services HE MRS A 7,929,178 12,664,689
Selling expenses HEEM 547,287 694,776
Administrative expenses THEA 972,727 893,237
9,449,192 14,252,702
(@) Cost of property development and sales includes decoration materials used (@) 5 th 2 f 2% g3 HEBRABER lii £ E A R 3
of RMB14,862,000 (2022: RMB10,564,000). 14,862,00070 (=F = =% : AK# 10,564,000 °
(0) Legal and professional fees include subsidiaries’ audit services including (b) ézgiﬁiﬁ SE WE?F?— mggg% ;{’\“Eirﬁl
_ . . . . _ X 3 N ‘5 KFE& / i%x,\ﬁﬁb& %
stat.utory ?nd non-statutory audit fee tc? their respective auditors and non BB A 87,797,000 (= F — — & : A RME
audit services of RMB37,797,000 (2022: RMB52,795,000). 52,795,000 %) =
FAIR VALUE LOSSES — NET 10 AAREBEEEFEE
2023 2022
—E-= -~
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREF T
Fair value loss on investment HEEMEARBEESE (FFE19)
properties (note 19) (10,900) (83,600)
Fair value loss on financial liabilities BARBEFABENEHAE
at fair value through profit and loss (note 30) A 7t B1{E &5 18 (Kt 7 30) (19,079) (26,227)
Fair value loss on financial assets BARBEFAEBGNSRHEE
at fair value through profit and loss NREEEE - (283)
(29,979) (60,110)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 BB i R M R
11 FINANCE COSTS — NET 11 B EREEE
2023 2022
—E-= B F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T T
Finance costs B %5 A
— Bank borrowings — RITER 459,030 312,215
— Loans from the ultimate controlling — RERKERA B ER
company (note 40(h)(ii) (B £ 40(h)(ii)) 16,815 35,576
— Senior private notes — BELERR 80,173 182,436
— EB-5 loans — EB-5E®K 5,414 4,351
— Borrowings from other financial institutions  — 3 B £ b @t & #5819 12 3¢ 68,051 77,903
— Borrowings from other non-financial — KRB HMIERE B E R
institutions 19,035 55,216
— Amounts due to related — FEAS B 5 3038 (B = 40(h)(i))
parties (note 40(h)(ii)) 16,870 39,567
— Loans from non-controlling interests — KRB ISR S R B K 46,169 =
— Lease liabilities (note 21) — HE&E(KE21) 6,275 5,062
— Other finance charges — HA B 5 & A 35,813 7,918
753,645 720,244
Less: interest capitalised o BAEHE (521,546) (329,078)
232,099 391,166
Finance income B AU
— Bank interest income — RITAEBHA (18,997) (4,849)
213,102 386,317
The average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised for the BE_ZT-_=F+=-H=+T—8H JJ:@F ﬁ
year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately 6.06% per MEERERO I ENEL A6.06%
annum (2022: 5.81%). T4 :581%) °
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 FISBLER

212

2023 2022
—ZE-= —E-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
Current income tax BVHAFT 1S 31
— Hong Kong Profits Tax (note 12(a)) — BAMNBH (FE12()
Tax expense for the year FEHIBEER - -
— Mainland China enterprise — PR A RIS
income tax (note 12(b)) (MFEE12(b))
Tax expense/(credit) for the year FEHEER (KKE) 1,708 (13,483)
— US profit tax (note 12(c)) — EEFEE (HE12()
Tax expense for the year FEHEBEEHR 118,645 214,835
120,353 201,352
Mainland China land appreciation tax AR B b 1 3R E R (FTEE 12(0))
(note 12(0)) 8,654 71,185
Deferred income tax (note 32) RIEFFE T (K151 32) (89,006) 434,791
40,001 707,328

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the year. No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax is made since the Group has no assessable profits for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China are subject to enterprise income tax at the rate of 25% (2022: 25%)
except for one subsidiary which is located in western areas of Mainland
China engaged in encouraged industries and is subject to a preferential tax
rate of 15% in accordance with relevant regulations.

Land appreciation tax in Mainland China is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures including cost
of land use rights and all property development expenditures. The tax is
incurred upon transfer of property ownership.
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continuec)

()

In accordance with US tax law, the statutory tax rate for federal and state
tax purposes was 27.30% (2022: 27.38%).

Under the Law of Mainland China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and implementation regulations of the EIT Law, a withholding tax at 10% is
imposed for dividends distributed by a Mainland China-resident enterprise to
its immediate holding company outside Mainland China for earnings
generated beginning 1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may
be applied when the immediate holding company is established in Hong
Kong according to the tax treaty arrangement between Mainland China and
Hong Kong. The Group controls the dividend policies of subsidiaries in
Mainland China. The directors of the Company confirmed that the remaining
retained earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China as at 31
December 2023 will not be distributed to its immediate holding company in
the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2023, deferred income tax
liability of RMB185,364,000 (2022: RMB520,790,000) on the remaining
unremitted distributable profit generated by the Group’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China attributable to its immediate holding company with the
amount of RMB1,853,643,000 (2022: RMB5,207,900,000) was not
recognised.

Pursuant to the requirements of the US Department of the Treasury on
Withholding of Tax on Nonresident Aliens and Foreign Entities, a withholding
tax at 30% is imposed for dividends distributed by a US-resident enterprise
to its immediate holding company outside the US. A reduced rate, including
exemption, may apply if there is a tax treaty between the country of
residence and the US. The Group controls the dividend policies of
subsidiaries in the US. The directors of the Company confirmed that the
remaining retained earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries in the US as of 31
December 2023 will not be distributed to its immediate holding company in
the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2023, deferred income tax
liability of RMB79,444,000 (2022: RMB72,678,000) on the remaining
unremitted distributable profit generated by the Group’s subsidiaries in the
US attributable to its immediate holding company with the amount of
RMB294,891,000 (2022: RMB269,776,000) was not recognised.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group has unused tax losses
RMB1,716,950,000 (2022: RMB1,457,720,000) available for offset against
future profits for certain entities in Mainland China which have not been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses
in Mainland China would expire within five years.

Taxes on profit assessable elsewhere have been calculated at

the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which

the Group operates, based on existing legislations, interpretations
and practices in respect thereof.
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RIRE BRI AR - A BRE DR RN B 80 E E Ft R
727.30% (ZFE = =4 : 27.38%) °

mfcplmmﬁ%%ﬁ’a%%iﬁ(fﬁ#ﬁﬁ%ﬁ;‘ﬂ)&E
BEIEED - FERERCER ST N\F—A—
Eltéiaﬁuﬁzﬁrﬁjﬁq:lﬂm%&\\eﬂ]ﬁ%}%ﬂﬁ/&ﬂ
R E AR S 7B AN 10% B TEHI R © 1R & AP B At 62
EBTUNBRBIBELHE  EEEERARKIR
HE  AIEARKNSLEMNHRE R - REB
RE A E A RM R EEBR - NAREEEEA
SEFEANBHBARINR-"ZE=_=F+=_A=1+—

BERSABEBTERATERRY IR TFHER
ERAR -R=ZT_=F+=-A=1+—H ' £5E
WARF R BEAHHEA R ELENEEEZERARE
HHTARELATHIENBEEZBEBARK
1,853,643,000 L (ZE=_—_F : AR¥
5,207,900,0007T) ERELEFMEHABARE
185,364,000 7T (= F = =4 : A R#¥520,790,000
TT) °

BIEEE B CENEERINMEA LT RINEEE
ZHREONEX  XEERGEREREBRRING
HEEERARDIRKSBHMN30%ENF - BEE
HEXEEEHRKBE - ATTEAREF X (&
FERREE) o AEBEEGIEEN B A RRRSBUR -
RAREEER  A5EETEZRNBARDNTER
AEBRAEEERRARSEEE-_S=_=F
T A=+ HNFSBRBEFERE R_T=_=F
+ZA=+—8 A&EEVAREBWNBRRME
BN H B A R A TSR B A] 2k A1
AR 294,801,000 (ZTE=-—F: AR
269,776,0007) BRIBELEFMBHABARE
79,444,000t (ZZE = =4 : AR¥72,678,0007T) °

RZTE-_=F+-A=+—H8 XEEETHERKR
HPERE T EBAARRFEORES BT IEEE
AR#1,716,950,000 T (ZZT==F : AR¥
1,457,720,0007T) + HEBE 7~ AT 38 R 2K 56 F 0 7 w3
RIER o RN AR IBEBERAFARE -

Ho A 3 [ 8 SR AR B AR IR AN SR B A8 & P 7]

AR IRITEB -

BELEARBITERR
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continuec)

Reconciliation between loss before income tax and income tax

12 FISHER @)

BRETIS DRI B RIS E MR H RN T

214

expense is as follows:

2023 2022
—E-=% —_E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Tx ARET T
Loss before income tax BRET{SEL R E 18 (823,318) (1,746,424)
Mainland China land appreciation tax PR R A 3t 3 (B A (8,654) (71,185)
(831,972) (1,817,609)
Tax on loss before income tax, BrATSRIRIEEARIE - B E25%
calculated at the rate of 25% (2022: 25%) B F 1 25%)FE (207,993) (454,402)
Effect of different tax rates of the Group’s REMEEEREENREE
subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions W% A TR R E 4,157 8,878
Tax effect of non-taxable income (note 12(7) B AR W s MRS =2 2 (M sE 12(1) (11,582) 101,738
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR HUR A S R A s & 1,234 19,024
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses RERNIBEENREZE 18,940 238,430
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary REREREH BT E
difference 105,824 415,018
Written off of recognised temporary RIERE Iy 2= BE R T 15 S 1B il se
differences and tax losses 2,984 373,341
Others H A 117,783 (65,884)
31,347 636,143
Mainland China land appreciation tax R A S 1t 3 (B A 8,654 71,185
40,001 707,328
() Non-taxable income includes mainly share of results of associates and joint [0} BERHKNSTE AR EHA NG RS DR -

ventures.
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13 LOSS PER SHARE
(A) BASIC LOSS PER SHARE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

13 BREE
A BRELERE

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss BREREBEIIZEBNAA A RFA
attributable to shareholders of the Company by the BB A FE B BT T B A INKE TS
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during HETE (TREARQ ARG EEETE
the year excluding ordinary shares purchased by the TEENLTBR) -

Company for share award scheme.

2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-=

Loss attributable to the shareholders BB R BRSO EE

of the Company (RMB’000) (AR®TT) (860,793) (2,588,642)
Weighted average number of ordinary BB 1T AR A I T 15 8L

shares in issue (in thousands) (F8) 4,543,175 4,545,948
Basic loss per share FRERER (AFBRAREZIR)

(expressed in RMB per share) (0.189) (0.569)
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A5 BB ik R BT

13 BREE @)
(B) ER#HEEIE

13 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)
(B) DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
(excluding ordinary shares purchased by the Company for
share award scheme) to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has one category
of dilutive potential ordinary shares: restricted share award
scheme. The shares granted under the restricted share
award scheme are assumed to have been transferred to

BEWEEBERIBRTBRERAREY
EMEETRRMEREHTEERN
MEFHHAE (TEBEARAR KN
BB TRBNEAR - ARFE
—HAREZENBEEL AR - Rl
Befn BB ET &) - IR B M {0 2R =T &1 18
THRENBEDBERAERETARA &t
BERWmEEEL T RER G R 12

the grantee. The effects of restricted share award scheme BEFENTE  REARXEREE_T
were excluded from calculation of diluted loss per share as TEERZFEIFEFTA=+—RHIE

the effects would have been anti-dilutive during the years FERARWRE -
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
2023 2022
—Eg-= T

Loss attributable to the shareholders of the EZERANA FIAR B HY &S 18

Company (RMB’000) (AR®FT) (860,793) (2,588,642)
Weighted average number of ordinary B BITEBRAINEFHE (FR)

shares in issue (in thousands) 4,543,175 4,545,948
Adjustment for: KUATRIBEFE
— Assumed distribution of shares under — BRI R $ 14 f% 10 22 B

T EI IR G5 (FAR)
(in thousands) - =

restricted share award scheme

Adjusted weighted average number of RIEETBRBERN N IL B
ordinary shares for diluted earnings per KRR MEFHE (TR
share (in thousands) 4,543,175 4,545,948

Diluted loss per share (expressed in RMB &% EE 1B (A SR ARET|R)
per share) (0.189) (0.569)
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15

DIVIDEND

The board of directors did not declare any distribution at the
meeting of the Company held on 28 March 2024 (2022: nil).
During the year ended 31 December 2023, dividend payable of
RMBnil (2022: RMB200,000,000) were paid to the shareholders
of the Company (note 29).

14

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

R E
BEERTER_FT_NF=ZA -+ N NBE1]
MARBAEEESEMAIR(ZE=Z

) BET-_=F+-_A=+—HL#F
B mARRBRREMNREARBEITL(ZE
— — 4 : AR¥200,000,0007T) (FfzE29) °

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15 EEEAMKk#ER
(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS A ESHE
The remuneration of each director is set out below: ZESZNMESFINT
For the year ended 31 December 2023: HE_Z-="F+-A=+—HILFE:
Contribution
Salaries, to retirement
allowances Discretionary and other  Restricted
Fees  and bonus bonuses benefits  share award Total
I8 B PR
we EMRRA MERL  REMER B RE @
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®Tn AR%®Tn AR¥Tn AR¥TR AR%T:n
For the year ended BE-2-=Ft1Cf
31 December 2023 =t-ALEE
Executive directors HiTER
Tian Ming H# - 5,291 - 16 - 5,307
Huang Zheng (note 15(f) BIE(MFE15(0) - 1,024 - 156 1,460 2,640
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Xu Xiaonian FNE 300 - - - - 300
Chen Tai-yuan R&ET 300 - - - - 300
Rui Meng B 300 - - - - 300
Non-executive directors ERTES
Cheng Yuan (note 15(K) k7t (B3 15(K) - - - - - -
Gu Jing (note 15() BE (fiz15() - - - - - -
900 6,315 - 172 1,460 8,847
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

218

(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continuea)

15 EEENRER @)

(A) EEBE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022: HE_ZT-_—"F+-_A=+—HILFE:
Contribution
Salaries, to retirement
allowances  Discretionary and other Restricted
Fees and bonus bonuses benefits  share award Total
1% RN R
we  EMREA  BETA  REMEN  RORE @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETE
For the year ended Sk
31 December 2022 St-RLFE
Executive directors BTES
Tian Ming e - 6,112 - 111 - 6,223
Huang Zheng (note 15(f) B (B 15()) - 1,607 - 146 1,399 3,162
Jiang Chao (note 15(g)) & (firsE15() - 238 - 23 699 960
Independent non-executive BUkHTES
directors
Xu Xiaonian iFNE 300 - - - - 300
Chen Tai-yuan ‘R 300 - - - - 300
Rui Meng R 300 - - - - 300
Non-executive directors FHTES
Liu Pengpeng (note 15(h) 2Ifihe (M 150) - - - - - -
Shen Leying (note 15()) s ([ 15() - - - - - -
Xu Liang (note 15()) fr 5 (B3 15() - - - - - -
Cheng Yuan (note 15(k) 7z (B3 15(K)) - - - - - -
Gu Jing (note 15() B (M3 15() - - - - - -
900 7,957 - 280 2,098 11,285
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B S o R A R

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continuea)

Aggregate emoluments
paid to or receivable by
directors in respect of
their services as
directors, whether of
the company or

15 EEENRESR @)

(A) EEBE (&)

Aggregate emoluments

paid to or receivable by

directors in respect of

their other services in

connection with the

management of the affairs

of the company or its

its subsidiary undertaking subsidiary undertaking Total Total
ENFESERESER
ENFESRESERIESR EHEEBEAQNRRAEMBE AT
ANRREMBARNESM ERERENERT

RURBHMEHE RUNHERE NN EEE Azt #zt
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

—E-=F — g —E-=F —_EF-= —E-=F — g
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETTT AR®T R ARETTT ARBT ARETTT
8,847 11,235 - - 8,847 11,235

(B) DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND

TERMINATION BENEFITS

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement

benefits or termination benefits during the year (2022: nil).

(C) CONSIDERATION PROVIDED TO THIRD
PARTIES FOR MAKING AVAILABLE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company

did not pay consideration to any third parties for making

available directors’ services (2022: nil).

(B) EEHENKBIRKLEAER

RAFE  HEERD KIS KERE
RARBAHIELLEAREN (2T ==

FE) o

C MRHEEERBAFE=SRHH

K&

BHE_Z—

=F+ZA=t—HIL*F

€ - N R L E = RS R
F-AXNRE(CT__F 8 -

W Ak 0 A R 2 H

S} SRR A L)
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

220

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)
(H)
()

W)

(K)

(L)

INFORMATION ABOUT LOANS, QUASI-
LOANS AND OTHER DEALINGS IN FAVOR OF
DIRECTORS, CONTROLLED BODIES
CORPORATE BY AND CONNECTED ENTITIES
WITH SUCH DIRECTORS

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favor of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such directors
(2022: nil).

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Group was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2022:
nil).

Mr. Huang Zheng is the chief executive as of 31 December
2023 and 2022.

Resigned on 25 February 2022.
Resigned on 31 October 2022.
Resigned on 25 February 2022.

Appointed on 25 February 2022 and resigned on 31
August 2022.

Appointed on 30 December 2022 and resigned on 28 April
2023.

Appointed on 31 August 2022.
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16 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
The five highest paid employees during the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

N

16 IR BEFMATRESREERE

B 2 A

BHE T =K -_FT——

F+-ZA=1+—

BIEFE AEGEamMERNT :

2023 2022

—_E2-= —_E-
Director S - 1
Non-director FEE 5 4
5 g

The emoluments of the remaining five (2022: four) individuals
during the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as

BE_Z_=ZFR-_FT_—_F+_A=+—
BIEFE #TAZ (T -—4:10F)

follows: BIALTHF BT
2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, AEARTE - FFEER - BIRE -
share options, other allowances H b2 & B W =
and benefits in kind 33,135 36,406
Discretionary bonuses B IS TEAT 34,241 28,701
67,376 65,107

The number of above remaining employees whose remuneration

FMETIANEEAN Eaisr T RE A

fee within the following band is as follows: R
Numbers Numbers
of individuals of individuals
2023 2022
A AH
—E-=F =
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) HENAE Bl (B T)
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,001 % 7T = 8,000,000 /8 7T 1 1
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 8,000,001 % 7T = 8,500,000 /8 7T 1 1
HK$9,000,001 to HK$ 9,500,000 9,000,001 # 7T £ 9,500,000 78 7T 1 -
HK$24,000,001 to HK$24,500,000 24,000,001 7% 7T Z 24,500,000 7 7T 1
HK$25,000,001 to HK$ 25,500,000 25,000,001 7% 7T 2 25,500,000 7% 7T 1
HK$27,500,001 to HK$28,000,000 27,500,001 7% 7T Z 28,000,000 7% 7T -
HK$28,500,001 to HK$29,000,000 28,500,001 7 7T Z 29,000,000 7% 7T -
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17 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 17 REEE QTR
2023 2022
—E-= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Interests in associates REEE R A= 1,074,737 1,186,685
None of the Group’s associates has quoted price available. ANEFEEH L QR EASRE -
Particulars of the Group’s material associate is as follows: AEESERBEATNFBERAT
Percentage of
BAl
Place of
Paid-in  registration Ownership Voting Profit
Name capital  and business interest power sharing  Principal activity
1 it 2
£ BEARE RER FER#ER REED FESE FEER
RMB’000
AR®T R
Nanjing Xueheng Real Estate Co., 349,300 PRC 49.9% 49.9% 49.9%  Property development
Ltd. (“Nanjing Xueheng”) (Note 1)
BREEEXBRAA I ESEAGERD
(=2
Note 1: Nanjing Xueheng develops property development projects with the MizE1: ERBHEAEENEYHERTNEERBARAE
associate partners of the Group engaged in property development and is YIFREIEE - WiFRAEREAR -

accounted for using the equity method.
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17

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of Nanjing Xueheng adjusted for any differences in

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

17 REZE N TINERS &)
TEHPAEEEASBENNEEREE O
REHBENTAEEELER  THRES

accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the B 75 R M BRI (B £9BR -
consolidated financial statements:
2023 2022
—Egq=-= g
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Cash and cash equivalents Be MBS EEEER 251,535 271,645
Other current assets EmRsEE 1,698,207 1,702,255
Current assets mEN & E 1,949,742 1,973,900
Non-current assets ERMEEE 34 37
Current liabilities mENa & 311,663 337,173
Net assets BEEFRE 1,638,113 1,636,764
Reconciliation to carrying amounts: IREEHR:
Opening net assets 1 January —A—BHVEEFE 1,636,764 1,648,207
Profit/(loss) for the year FAEF(E8) 1,349 (11,443
Closing net assets HAREEZFE 1,638,113 1,636,764
Group’s share in % AEEEEED L 49.90 49.90
Group’s share in RMB REB AR ERNNEE 817,418 816,745
Carrying amount AREE 817,418 816,745
Revenue e 43 5,121
Profit/(loss) from continuing operating HERERT(EE) 1,349 (11,443
Other comprehensive income Hfib 2z - =
Total comprehensive income EHEK BT - -

W Ak 0 A R 2 H
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17 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continuec) 17

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group’s associates that are not individually material:

REERATHER @)
TRIITAEBERITEKRA S QR HE
RETTEE R

2023 2022
—E-=F —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Aggregate carrying amount of 7518 B &) 42 RRE &
individually immaterial associates El =2 ik /NE] 257,319 369,940
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s REEDEATEIBNERE
share of net (loss)/profit of individually & Bl JEE KRB & A RIAY
immaterial associates (BE),/=HFHE (94,760) 37,217

(A) UNRECOGNISED COMMITMENTS TO
ACQUIRE ASSOCIATE PARTNERS’
OWNERSHIP INTERESTS
As of 31 December 2023, the Group has commitments to
acquire certain associate partners’ ownership interests in
associates at market price in the future upon fulfilling
predetermined conditions.

These unrecognised commitments are disclosed below
and were not recognised by the Group due to uncertainties
of one or more particular events in the future which are not
controlled by the Group.

A BREBEBEHEETRENRER
AR

R-ZBE-=F+-A=+—H8 ' KA&£E
A B RAEEDE THERIGHEATE
IWBEE TR & N RSB a R -

AERERAFRENOT  ARARK—
TR % TA JE AN 5% B P BE 12 Il O 455 TE A
BN - NEEARER LT A °

% of % of
ownership ownership
interest interest
held by committed to
the Group acquire
HAEER HAEER
AEEREW A UEE Y
FrE R = FERER
KERFEEBRAA] KERFEEERAA]
Chengdu Chenshi Real Estate Co., Ltd.* 25.00% 35.00%

English translations are for identification purpose only.
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18

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continuec)

(B) UNRECOGNISED SHARE OF NET LOSS OF

ASSOCIATES

The Group applied the equity method in recognising its
respective shares of net profit or loss of associates. After
the Group’s interests in associates is reduced to zero,
additional shares of losses of associates were not
recognised if Group has not incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

17 REEE QTN RER &)
(B) RERELEBE AREEE

AEBERARDEERASEREBZER
BIEVFAB AR - ARBREZ AR
MR ETR - WAREYLEELSR
EMEEE ERRBERTNHE
AT SRRBEIMNEIEBERREE -

2023 2022
—EZ=F —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREET T
Aggregate unrecognised share of RIEREEH & R R F BB RE
net loss of associates - 5,720
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18 REELEMNES
2023 2022
—EZ=F —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARET T
Share of net assets DIHEEFE 2,315,077 2,194,260
None of the Group’s joint ventures has quoted price available. REBSELENEAIGRE -
For the year ended 31 December 2023, no joint venture is BT -_=F+-_A=+—HIt&FE I
considered to be material to the Group individually. ERNEELEHAEEBERK -
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18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 18 REELE¥NER @
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information TR AEEEECENTHEERER

of the Group’s joint ventures that are not individually material:

226

(A)

BRAZLXENMELTNBERX

2023 2022
—E-=F —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETF T
Aggregate carrying amount of individually ~ {ERIFFE RS S D EREAE
immaterial joint ventures 2,315,077 2,194,260
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of AN B (G EBIFEE RS &
net profit/(loss) of individually immaterial (N 4EF],/ CFER) 2E
joint ventures 152,291 (803,767)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF JOINT

(A) ARESELENEERIAREE

VENTURES
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AR T T
Commitments AR
— Commitment to pay up the — B R & AN R A
subscription capital 375,582 420,490
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18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(B)

(€

UNRECOGNISED COMMITMENTS TO
ACQUIRE JOINT VENTURE PARTNERS’
OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

As of 31 December 2023, the Group has commitments to
acquire certain joint venture partners’ ownership interests
in joint ventures at market price in the future upon fulfilling
predetermined conditions.

These unrecognised commitments are disclosed below
and were not recognised by the Group due to uncertainties
of one or more particular events in the future which are not
controlled by the Group.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B S o R A R

18 NEBPENER &)
(B) WBELBABEARENARER

AiE

RZZEZ=F+ZA=+—H Xx5E
AGh B IR EDE THRRERFERATE
WBETEELEENAERHERER -

SZERERABRN T XHE  HAEX
SERER  RESASBEXZES N —
HARLZBEARRBESHER I EERAR

% of

% of ownership
ownership interest
interest held committed
by the Group to acquire
AEEEEW G B Y

BEEZBESL BRAEEEIHL

FERAERMERZEBRAR]

Shanghai Langju Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.*
PREBERME (> EE IR G R A A

Chengdu Langyue Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.*

English translations are for identification purpose only.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES PLEDGED
AS SECURITY

As of 31 December 2023, certain equity interest in joint
ventures held by the Group with the carrying amount of
RMB980,597,000 (31 December 2022: RMB1,473,425,000)
are pledged or temporarily registered to financial institutions
for joint ventures’ borrowing arrangements.

51.00% 49.00%

50.00% 50.00%

R AT EHHS

C) EERERERRNESELERE

=

BE-_T-_=F+-A=+—H8 #&E&E
EiFE TAECERERRMEARE
980,597,000t (— - —4F+ — A
=+—H8: AR#¥1,473,425,0007T) &
BRSNS TSRS AEERT
BETENBEERHE -

AR OEEARAT —— B SR 227
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A5 BB ik R BT

18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 18 REBPEENER »)
(D) UNRECOGNISED SHARE OF NET LOSS OF (D) ABERAEEESETCEFERER

JOINT VENTURES

The Group applied the equity method in recognising its
respective shares of net profit or loss of joint ventures. After
the Group’s interests in joint ventures is reduced to zero,
additional shares of losses of joint ventures were not
recognised if the Group has not incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.

AEBFARDEERATEREAZD
EFNENER AKERGERE
MEDRETR  WARELEELSE
EHREEREIRAZREINFA
AT SERBINELRLERLEEE -

2023 2022
—E=-= B F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBETT

Aggregate unrecognised share of net AEREERELEFBEREE

loss of Joint ventures

66,664 75,284

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19 REMYE
As at 31 December 2023, the Group held certain properties R-ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—H8 A£B&EH

located in Mainland China. Changes to the carrying amount of (25 R B A3 )5 F 92K © BRSPS RO

investment properties in the consolidated statement of financial
position are summarised as follows:

KROREMMEREEZSHOAMAT

2023 2022
—g== —E-=

—_ =

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETIT

At 1 January ®n—H—H

Fair value losses — net (note 10) AAEBEEBEFE(E10)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEM B AR (MEE39)

At 31 December WR+=—RA=+—H”H
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332,500 687,500
(10,900) (33,600)

- (321,400)
321,600 332,500




19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023, rental income and
operating expense arising from leasing of investment properties
are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

19 REMYE &)
BE-—ZE-—=#+-A=+—-AItEE A
ERANMEELAMAS AR KL E RN
—F o

2023 2022
—E-= B F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBETT

Rental income HELUWA 2,728 5,243
Direct operating expense from REEAHSBARNER
properties that generate rental income HERLEER 1,173 1,108

The Group’s rights on investment properties at its carrying
amount is analysed as follows:

AEERNEE YN ERREEEEN
mF :

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

In Mainland China, held on: EFRBERNMEE
Lease of 40-70 years 4O0E70FHHEE

(A) Investment properties were valued at 31 December 2023
by an independent professionally qualified valuer, Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited,
who is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and
has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties.

(B) As at 31 December 2023, investment properties with
carrying amount of RMB97,700,000 (2022:
RMB100,700,000) was pledged as collateral for the
Group’s borrowings (note 31).

(C) The valuation of the Group’s investment properties are level
3 fair value measurement.

321,600 332,500

(A) BEMER_TE_=F+=-H=+—H
HEVEESERGEEMMPEHITOE
FEREAERARETHE  hEH
TEEFEREABRARRESAE
MEegs  WEBSHEARRYERE
Y EEITHERT SR -

B) R—T—_=F+_A=+—0  FE@EE
A AN R#97,700,0007T (=& = —
AR %100,700,0007T) I EMED G
HEAAREBEEMNERM (ME31) o

(C) AEERENMEXLEEBEIRANEE

HE -
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19 BEMYE®)
(D) AAEEER

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

Independent valuations of the Group’s investment
properties were performed by an independent and
professionally qualified valuer to determine the fair value of
investment properties as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the Group’s
investment properties were within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as valuations were arrived at by reference to
certain significant unobservable inputs. There were no
transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31
December 2023 by an independent professionally qualified
valuer who holds a recognised relevant professional
qualification and has recent experiences in the locations
and segments of the investment properties being valued.
For all investment properties, their current use equates to
the best use.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the independent valuer
for financial reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation
processes and results were held between the finance
department and the valuer at least once every six months.

At the end of each reporting period, finance department:

° Verifies all major inputs in the independent valuation
report;

° Assesses property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation report;

° Holds discussions with the independent valuer.
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AEBNREUVECHBYLERELE
BAEEMETEYGE  UETKRE G
MER_E_=ZFR_ZFT_—"F+_H4
=+t HHAREE-

EBEL2EE TEATASEH AR
BEL RZE-_=FKk=T==
TZA=1T—H ANEEMRBERENLY
¥BANEBEEERANEIE -FAF
18 - FoEHRFIB ML EER -

A K@ 1E E T2
AEENREUMER T _=F1+—
A=+—BaBIEXSERMGLEME
TfhE  ZEEMAFRERATEXE
1% B ENREEY R EM
BRI ACHREELR BRMER
BEUEMEHEERRERE °
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued)

Valuation techniques

In valuing the properties, income approach and discounted
cash flow analysis (“DCF analysis”) were adopted by the
Group. When using income approach, the Group takes into
account the net rental income of the properties derived
from its existing leases and/or achievable in the existing
market with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the leases, which have been then capitalised to
determine the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation
rate. DCF analysis involves discounting future cash flow of
the property to its present value by using an appropriate
discount rate with due allowance for the reversionary net
income of the property, which is capitalised with a terminal
capitalization rate. In the course of valuation, the Group
assumed the property is available for lease. With regards to
the existing market conditions, the incomes and expenses,
stabilisation period and rental growth for each component
of the property are estimated to reflect the property
performance in the market. Where appropriate, reference
has also been made to the comparable sale transactions
as available in the relevant market.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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19 BEMYE®)

(D)

Minisk O EHARAE ——

RREERR &)

1 18 75 7%

HYEETHER  AERERBRAE
EBReRTHE(RERFTEZE] - K
RBAOEE - AEESF REREHEY
PR K, /SRR A T35 F A RIS Y
EHeBAFE YO HENERRE
W EIFHEE BR - Bz R
FREREENERMCLLRERCAEE
DRNEE - BRERTBEIESEREE
RBEREMERKRERERREAR
B YHMENERERAFRELE
ERE ERARKRENCLXRETENR
£ ZBEBREY  ARERRMER
W - BN EETE RIS -
WX REHERMEZMLO OHHESIE
FURBRYEENS LORR-EF
ZETE2EHAMS WA LEER
5 o
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 19 REMWE @)
(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) (D) AAREEE&K &)
Information about fair value measurements using significant EAFEAERTAERE ASURETH
unobservable inputs (level 3) is as follows: AREBEF=(EIB)NERMT :
Valuation Unobservable Unobservable inputs Relationship of
Description Fair value at technique(s) inputs (probability-weighted average)  unobservable inputs to fair value
THBEAAUE 0IEES DN §
i AAER fhERE THBEAAUE (IETHE) HANEENBR
2023 2022 2023 2022
ZECZE - S ZECZE —E-CF
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR  ARETR

Building Block No. 5 of 139,000 145,000 Term and reversionary  Term yields 4.50% 4.50%  The higher the term yields,
Landsea Green Center method FHkR% the lower the fair value
PHRERLESE EBREHE ERkHERR  MEBLE
Reversionary yields 5.00% 5.00% The higher the reversion yields,
el the lower the fair value
EENEEER  AMEEDE
Vacancy rate 14.00% 12.00% The higher the vacancy rate,
ZEX the lower the fair value
FEXHR MEEHE
Average dally rental 2.30 2.27 The higher the average daily rental
per square meter per square meter, the higher the
SYARTHER fair value
STHRTYERES -
MMEBEER
Nanjing Huafei Apartment 68,200 70,200 DCF analysis Discounted rate 6.00% 6.00% The higher the discounted rate,
BRERLE BRIz TR% the lower the fair value
TREdE AL EEEE
Vacancy rate 5.00% 5.00% The higher the vacancy rate,
ZEX the lower the fair value
FEXHR MEEHE
Average dally rental 240 3.81 The higher the average daily rental
per square meter per square meter, the higher the
SYARTHER fair value
STHRTYERES -
MMBEER
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 19 REMWE @)
(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) (D) 2REBEERE)
Valuation Unobservable Unobservable inputs Relationship of
Description Fair value at technique(s) inputs (probability-weighted average)  unobservable inputs to fair value
TURERAYE FUBRERAYE
g AREE fhER % TURERAYE (METHHE) HARBENEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
-k —Z--% Bk —F--F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR
Landsea Neighbour-hood 84,900 86,800 Term and reversionary  Term yields 5.50% 5.00% The higher the term yields, the
Union method FHlH% lower the fair value:
RS EERESE EHRHEER  MEEYE
Reversionary yields 5.50% 5.50%  The higher the reversion yields,
EEka% the lower the fair value:
ERkEZER  MEEYE
Vacancy rate 25.00% 25.00% The higher the vacancy rate, the
ZEX lower the fair value
ZEEHR MLEEME
Average daily rental 1.58 0.57  The higher the average dally rental
per square meter per square meter, the higher
BTAATHAR the fair value
STHRTYERES
MMEBEER
Second floor of International 29,500 30,500 Term and reversionary  Term yields 4.50% 4.50% The higher the term yields,
Business Park method FHlH% the lower the fair value
BREBLE_E FERESE EHRHEER  MEEYE
Reversionary yields 5.00% 5.00% The higher the reversion yields,
EEka% the lower the fair value:
ERkEZER  MEEYE
Vacancy rate 15.00% 12.00%  The higher the vacancy rate,
ZEX the lower the fair value:
ZEEHR MLEEME
Average daily rental 372 3.72 The higher the average dally rental
per square meter per square meter, the higher
BTAATHAR the fair value
STHRTYERES
MMEEER

PIFAEAE A RAT SR 233



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 BB ik R BT

20 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

20 UM%  BMERRE

234

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total
HEEF: HE £EB
EF £ REARE "E @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2022 R-B--%-A-H
Cost XA 174,249 74,110 134,617 4,959 387,935
Accumulated depreciation e (28,641) (67,430) (86,367) (4,453) (186,891)
Net carrying amount REFE 145,608 6,680 48,250 506 201,044
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-E-—%
+ZA=+—-HLEFE
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) Uk EE & A Al (B £ 38) - = 10,153 = 10,153
Additions 20 1,634 4,504 2,367 - 8,505
Depreciation ne (8,929) (1,305) (25,279) () (35,514)
Disposals & - - (66) (468) (534)
Exchange differences N ZE% - 487 2,178 = 2,665
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 138,313 10,366 37,603 37 186,319
At 31 December 2022 R-B-ZF+-A=+—-H
Cost XA 175,883 79,101 149,249 4,491 408,724
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (37,570) (68,735) (111,646) (4,454) (222,405)
Net carrying amount IRERE 138,313 10,366 37,603 37 186,319
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-E-=%
+ZA=+—-HLEFE
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38)  UREEFT B A Al (F £ 38) 83,510 - 11 - 83,521
Additions =0 4,869 9,438 47,436 1,865 63,608
Depreciation wE (10,108) (2,227) (33,379) (201) (45,915)
Disposals k= (7,979) (4,529) (23,148) (445) (36,101)
Exchange differences EHEE - 128 338 - 466
Closing net carrying amount FREMFE 208,605 13,176 28,861 1,256 251,898
At 31 December 2023 R-BZ=%+-A=+—-H
Cost XA 187,397 41,353 188,125 8,385 425,260
Accumulated depreciation RETTE (29,088) (25,551) (113,697) (5,026) (173,362)
Net carrying amount REFE 158,309 15,802 74,428 3,359 251,898
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20 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

21

(Continued)
(@) As at 31 December 2023, property, plant and equipment
with carrying amount of RMB130,534,000 (2022:
RMB137,544,000) was pledged as collateral for the

Group’s borrowings (note 31(a)(vii)).

LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
lessee.

(A) AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

20 V¥ BERSE®
RZE_=F+-A=+—0 ' KAE
A ARE130,534,000 T (T = —4F
AR 137,544,0007T) ¥ % - E &
B A B IR E A A 5 B IS 8 SR A 3K
(P 3 31(a) (Vi) °

HE
AR E RS R EEARBANEERS

(@)

21

(A) REESHBRAREANEHE

/m\ﬁﬁkﬂk/ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁuTEﬁifﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬁm
Gk

S _“}
SoH

2023 2022
—_E2-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTIT
Right-of-use assets FEHEEE
— Office properties — WRYE 84,786 112,980
— Furniture, fixtures and office equipment — R1E « £ B Rt A R 1E 539 434
85,325 113,414
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current TR 26,646 36,659
Non-current ERB 73,879 84,112
100,525 120,771

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2023
financial year were RMB11,731,000 (2022:
RMB61,624,000).

RZE_ZWERFE FRAEEERE
BAR®E11,731,000 (ZE ==
AR 61,624,0007T) °

PIFAEAE A RAT SR AT
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21 LEASES (continued) 21 HE#»)
(B) AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE (B) AEcEEkEMZEKERE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR RNEE
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other GAEEmkEMEEKERETIATHE
comprehensive income shows the following amounts HERBENERE :
relating to leases:
2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Depreciation charge of FREEENTEEA
right-of-use assets
— Office properties /N 35,126 39,406
— Furniture, fixtures and office equipment — R1E « & & LA R 447 147
35,573 39,553
Interest expense 2 E A 6,275 5,062
Gain on lease modification MEEET W e 177 =
During the year ended 31 December 2023, cash payments HE—_T =% —1— —“A=+—HL#F
for the interest portion of the lease liability amounted to - HEEENEHXS>NBEEMRBA
RMB6,275,000 (2022: RMB5,062,000) and was included R#6,275, OOOT_E (—g::¢ P AR
in the interest paid of operating activities in the consolidated 5,062,0007T) ' RérE R & RERFTA
statement of cash flows, while the principal element of %«%/E@JEI'JETWU 8 MAEERN KA
lease payment was included in financing activities. fo BlET ARLE &S o
(C) THE GROUP’S LEASING ACTIVITIES AND (C) XEEMHEETHRUNMALR
HOW THESE ARE ACCOUNTED FOR
The Group leases various office properties and furniture, AEEHESERAEMELRKE
fixtures and office equipment. Rental contracts are typically EREMPBAZRE HEAGHNBTIR
made for fixed periods of one to ten years. BEFH—Z 455 o
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22 GOODWILL 22 HE
Goodwill
[EE
RMB’000
AR T T
At 1 January 2022 R-F-_—_f—-A—H
Cost BN 155,928
Accumulated amortisation Z T -
Net carrying amount REFE 155,928
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-E-_—_F+-A=t+—BLHFE
Opening net carrying amount FYIRMEFE 155,928
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39) U BE B B A | (B 5E39) 281,643
Exchange difference bE 5 =& 40,470
Closing net carrying amount FRIREFE 478,041
At 31 December 2022 R-FB-_—_f+-A=+—H
Cost BN 478,041
Accumulated amortisation e _
Net carrying amount R FE 478,041
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_Z-_=F+t=-A=+—HLFE
Opening net carrying amount FYIRMEFE 478,041
Exchange difference fEH =% 8,107
Closing net carrying amount FARREFE 486,148
At 31 December 2023 R=ZB-=F+=-A=+—H
Cost B 486,148
Accumulated amortisation REHEE -
Net carrying amount IR FE 486,148
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22 GOODWILL (continued)

22 BHE s

(@)  Goodwill was allocated to the following CGU: @ BEEIEEUNTHSELSAM:
2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T
Arizona: TEFISZARM -

— Pinnacle West Homes Holding Corp.
(“PWH”)
— Garrett Walker Homes (“GWH”)

Florida:
— Vintage Estate Homes (“Vintage”)
— Hanover Family Builders, LLC (“HFB”)

Total

As at 31 December 2023, management performed
impairment testing on goodwill based on cash flow
forecasts derived from the most recent budgets and
estimated future cash flows for the followings five years as

— Pinnacle West Homes
Holding Corp. ([PWH )
— Garrett Walker Homes ([GWH )

BB EMN:

— Vintage Estate Homes ([ Vintage |)

— Hanover Family Builders,
LLC([HFB]J)

ozt

approved by the management and using a pre-tax discount —_—

rate of 13% (2022: 13%) per annum. The cash flows

=

beyond five-year are extrapolated using a 4% (2022: 4%) ==

per annum growth rate.
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37,644 37,016
109,002 107,185
146,646 144,201

26,573 26,130
312,929 307,710
339,502 333,840
486,148 478,041

RZE-=F+=-A=+—H' ' BEE
BERIIPEE R TR E A AR
RAFHBFARRERENSRERE
BRAGABRATMREGFI13% (ZF
D 13%) ¥ R E TR BRI ©
FFHBRAESREBRERETF 4% (=
F4%)HHE -



22 GOODWILL (continued)

(@)

Goodwill was allocated to the following CGU: (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the Arizona CGU is estimated
to exceed the carrying amount of the CGU at 31 December
2023 by RMB290,114,000 (2022: RMB1,046,466,000).
The recoverable amount of the Florida CGU is estimated to
exceed the carrying amount of the CGU at 31 December
2023 by RMB287,140,000 (2022: RMB542,570,000).

The directors of the Company have considered and
assessed reasonably possible changes for other key
assumptions and have not identified any instances that
could cause the carrying amount of the Arizona CGU and
Florida CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B S o R A R

22 BHE s

@)

BEEOREENTREELEN - (B)

fET R R BBMIR S E £ B KA K E
cHEBE-_T-_=F+-_A=1+—8%
BeEEXSENERBAEARE
290,114,000 (ZZE==F : AR
1,046,466,0007T) ° {8 51 6 78 B 1= I 3]
CELBNNAKRESEBH-_ZT==
FH-A=+—HAMREELBMER
B A R# 287,140,000t (ZZE = —
AR ¥ 542 570,0007T) °

ARREFCERBRMEEMERZRR
WAIRF e E B - WABBEMAIES
HEMEBMNASELEMRFERZE
NN EE A B A AR EE AR B AT i e
SRENEMF -

PIFAEAE A RAT SR 239



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 BB ik R BT

23 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Analysis of properties held for sale is as follows:

23 FFHEWR
BIEHENENIMT :

2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Properties held for sale: FESHE Y -
— Mainland China — R 679,666 747,669
Less: provision for decline in the value of W FEIEE M EE TR E
properties held for sale (74,125) (48,337)
605,541 699,332
Movements of properties held for sale are as follows: FHEHEMENEHOT
2023 2022
—E-= -~
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREET T
As at 1 January ®n—H—H 747,669 540,207

Transfer from properties under
development (note 25)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) Wiz i B /88 1 | (B4 3 38)
Cost of property development
and sales (note 9)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8”
All of the properties held for sale are within normal operating
cycle and hence included under current assets. The amounts of
properties held for sale expected to be recovered after more than
one year is RMB448,971,000 (2022: RMB33,611,000).
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BRaRETYE (E2s)

7,283,720 11,655,605
77,371 28,266

4o EE B 3 S 35 B A A (BT E9)

(7,429,094) (11,476,409)

679,666 747,669

FTEREHEMEAR EBRKEBHRRREE
MYERBEE - BAFNBRE —FRKE
HIRFESH & ¥ = 258 3 A R 448,971,000 7T
(ZE==—%F: AR¥233,611,0007T) °



23

24

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

Movements of provision for decline in the value of properties held
for sale are as follows:

23

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45 A BAS R 3R MY EE
BEHEME #)

FFHEMEBETHREBEDNT

2023 2022
—EZ=F —E -

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREET T

As at 1 January R—HA—H 48,337 60,781
Provision during the year FNEE 29,950 =
Recycled to cost of sales during the year F A B E SHE KA (4,162) (12,444)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8”H 74,125 48,337

As at 31 December 2022, properties held for sale with the
carrying amount of RMB118,017,000 were mortgaged as
collateral for the Group’s borrowings (note 31(a)(iv)).

R-EBE-_—F+-_A=+—H FEAEEAA
K #118,017,000 THFFESH EMEE i&4E -
EAAEEERNERR (FIFE31E@)3WV) °

INVENTORIES 24 EfF
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Decoration materials 2 et 30,448 30,059

The cost of inventories included in cost of property development
and sales amounted to RMB14,862,000 (2022: RMB10,564,000)
(note 9) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

W Ak 0 A R 2 H

HE-_Z-_=F+-"A=+—HItFE &t
ABHERERHEXNANEFERAAR
14,862,000 (T -~ —F : AR¥
10,564,000 7T) (FizE9) °

S S 241




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 BB i R M R
25 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 25 BAEHYE
2023 2022
—EB=-= —E- =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR ARET T
Properties under development located in: PR RN
— Mainland China — R A 2,201,764 1,971,621
—UsS — % 7,831,700 7,765,426
10,033,464 9,737,047
Less: provision for decline in the value of o REPYEBETRES
properties under development (937,914) (777,813)
9,095,550 8,959,234
Amount comprises: HIEBIE -
— Land payments — TR
Leasehold land, Mainland China o B 4 7 B £ 1,441,295 992,499
Freshold land, US KEKAREL 3,056,661 2,943,111
4,497,956 3,935,610
— Development expenditures and — FEX L MERS
improvements 3,780,047 4,459,256
— Finance costs capitalised — BBERERE 817,547 564,368
9,095,550 8,959,234
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25 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

25 HERPYWE®)

Movements of properties under development are as follows: AERYENESHNT :
2023 2022
—E-= —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T
As at 1 January Rn—HA—H 9,737,047 11,402,110
Additions 0 7,513,863 7,641,963
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) Wk pT 8 A | (H5E38) - 1,501,542
Transfer to properties held for sale (note 23) B = #5 {Ei5E ¥ (K 7£23) (7,283,720) (11,655,605)
Exchange difference PE 5 =% 66,274 847,037
As at 31 December W+=—R=+—H 10,033,464 9,737,047
All of the properties under development are within normal FTERERMEARIESTKKEBAARNEE -

operating cycle and hence included under current assets. The
amount of properties under development expected to be
completed after more than one year is RMB7,991,172,000 (2022:
RMB6,670,451,000). The remaining balance is expected to be

BYERBEE - BHENBRE—FRET
RR R Y EEE A AR 7,991,172,000 7T
—E=-_F: AR¥S6,670,451,0007T) ° £

BABH—FRTRORE -

completed within one year.

Movements of provision for decline in the value of properties
under development are as follows:

RERMEEETHRBEEZSHNT

2023 2022

—E-= —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
As at 1 January Rn—HA—H 777,813 =
Provision during the year FANEAE 160,101 777,813
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8”H 937,914 777,813

As at 31 December 2023, properties under development with
carrying amount of RMB1,511,472,000 (2022:
RMB1,456,918,000) were mortgaged as collateral for the
Group’s bank borrowings (note 31(a)(ii)).

As at 31 December 2023, properties under development with
carrying amount of RMB1,157,411,000 (2022:
RMB1,030,224,000) were mortgaged as collateral for the
Group’s loans from other financial institutions (note 31(g)(i)).

Minisk O EHARAE ——

R-ZTE-_=ZF+_A=+—8 HREAEBA
R¥1,511,472,000c (ZEZZF : AR
1,456,918,0007T) #) i 2 R ¥ E I 1E B
SERITEROER & (FHFE31()) °

R-ZZE_=F+_A=+—H EKAEAA
K#¥1,157,411,000c (ZE = =% : AR
1,030,224,0007T) #Y & R ¥ E I 1E R A
SEEEMmemEBEERNERm (KT
31(e)) °

S} SRR 243
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26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 26 o BEEINEMITE
The Group hold the following financial instruments as at the REERUTEMBRAKBEHAREE &
respective statement of financial position date as follows: RTA :
2023 2022
—E-=% —_E-—
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR%ETR ARET T
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BEEKNAFTECEREE
Trade receivables FE YR 3R 27 266,280 367,274
Amounts due from related parties & Uit B Bt 5 SRR 27 560,582 890,140
Amounts due from JE U SR Il 1 R 25 TR0
non-controlling interests 27 3,603 157,181
Other receivables E e U X 27 1,090,371 1,093,067
Deposits for purchase of land e B + 4% & 27 663,101 676,162
Restricted cash and ZRHERESARIEE &
cash and cash equivalents ReFEY 28 1,087,476 1,319,561
3,671,413 4,503,385
Financial liabilities =R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEEKNATTEZERAE
Trade and other payables* AT BR 3R N A P A5 3R 29 7,731,676 7,918,850
Borrowings &R 31 7,214,893 7,331,075
Lease liabilities HEAE 21 100,525 120,771
15,047,094 15,370,696
Financial liabilities at fair value BEAREEFABREN
through profit or loss TERAE 30 350,887 326,203

Excluding non-financial liabilities

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the

financial instruments is disclosed in note 3. The maximum

exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the

carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned

above.

244 Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023

© TeERemAR

AEEEZEASRMITANSERRBRLIE
BT - MEPRAXWERERR LR A L
ERCRMEEMNREE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L7 A TS 3R M
27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 27 EWERFKREMERK  FBARK
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS k&
2023 2022
—_E2-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBTIT
Included in non-current assets: FTAFEMBEE :
Other receivables A8 U R
— Deposits for building construction — BFEERS 30,000 30,000
— Deposits for property maintenance — MELEEZS (MFE27(d)
(note 27(c) 5,580 5,580
35,580 35,580
Less: provision for loss allowance R BB (P RE3.1(0)(i)
(note 3.1 (D)) (5,977) (1,416)
29,603 34,164
Included in current assets: FSTARBEE :
Trade receivables (note 27(a)) FEUBR SR (M 7E27(a))
— Related parties (note 40(c)) — BAEE 75 (B3 40(c)) 172,449 186,350
— Third parties —F=F 471,358 492,535
643,807 678,885
Less: provision for loss allowance B E iR
— Related parties (note 3.1(b)(i) — R 77 (M EE3.1(0)()) (102,638) (35,612)
— Third parties (note 3.1(b)(i)) — E=7 (KMFaE3.1(b)()) (274,889) (275,999)
(377,527) (811,611)
266,280 367,274
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A5 BB ik R BT

27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

27 BWERRKREMERR - BN

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued) RiR& @)
2023 2022
—EBZ=F —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Prepayments FETR
— Prepayments for purchase of land — BE T B 442,513 442,513
— Prepaid value added tax (“VAT”) and — TG ER ([EBEB]) &
other surcharges (note 27(b)) E A B hn & (Bt 7E27(b)) 102,438 69,503
— Prepaid taxes (note 27 (b)) — T FIE (H5E27(0)) 23,266 29,709
— Other prepayments — Hh AR 157,410 200,090
725,627 741,815
Amounts due from related parties (note 40(a)) &% B8 5t 5 71 18 (Fff 5 40(a)) 1,325,120 1,646,813
Less: provision for loss allowance W B EEE (M EE3.1(0)i)
(note 3.1(0)(ii) (764,538) (756,673)
560,582 890,140
Amounts due from non-controlling JE U FE 122 ) 14 4 2 3R 3 (M RE 27 ()
interests (note 27(c)) 4,972 169,012
Less: provision for loss allowance R EsE R (Y RE3.1(0)(i)
(note 3.1(b)(ii) (1,369) (11,831)
3,603 157,181
Deposits for purchase of land BE THHZS 683,609 697,074
Less: provision for loss allowance R SR (Y RE3.1(0)i)
(note 3.1(b)(ii) (20,508) (20,912)
663,101 676,162
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

27 BWERRKREMERR - BAK

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued) )& AC),
2023 2022
—_E2-= —_E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFIT
Other receivables H 4t B MR
— Lendings to third parties —MmE=FEE 466,128 366,462
— Deposits for land bidding — T EmRES 45,000 42,000
— Escrow receivable — BYFEEE 357,162 426,649
— Deposits in housing fund — EEAEeES 6,382 5,930
— Deposits for building construction — EFEERS 16,100 17,381
— Deposits for apartments rental — NEHeES 2,004 2,942
— Consideration receivables — FEUCEE 1 25,249
— Warranty and general liability — RIEBRA R —REERR
insurance receivables FEM K 194,106 188,804
— Others — Hf 201,330 107,340
1,288,213 1,182,757
Less: provision for loss allowance L B (M EE3.1(0)i)
(note 3.1(0)(ii) (227,445) (123,854)
1,060,768 1,058,903
3,279,961 3,891,475
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 BB ik R BT

27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

27 BUIRA R EA UK - B

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued) & AC),
(A) TRADE RECEIVABLES (A) FEUWERR
2023 2022
—E-=F —_E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARETIT
Trade receivables from property P 3t 2 B 2% K 8H 6 FE MR AR 3K
development and sales 271,319 271,384
Trade receivables from management & TR AR 75 e WUBR R
services 372,488 407,501
643,807 678,885
Less: provision for loss allowance B B RS (B EES.1(0)))
(note 3.1(0)() (377,527) (311,611)
266,280 367,274
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

(A) TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The aging analysis of the current trade receivables based

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

27 BWERRKREMERR - BAK

)58 A D)

(A) EBUWRRR (&)
RIZER 2 B B R0 B 5 e Wk BR SR B B e 0

on the invoice dates is as follows: T :
2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Related parties 24 Bt
— Less than one year — DR —F 10,541 48,652
— One to two years — —EWF 44,645 42,856
— Two to three years —ME=F 27,881 24,803
— Three to four years — = EUF 20,709 22,321
— Four to five years MERF 22,321 39,824
— Over five years — AFNE 46,352 7,894
172,449 186,350
Third parties F=5
— Less than one year — LR—%F 39,459 40,892
— One to two years — —EWE 27,421 45,513
— Two to three years —ME=F 39,095 35,894
— Three to four years — = EWF 11,635 310,954
— Four to five years —mERE 294,466 23,087
— Over five years —AFENRE 59,282 36,195
471,358 492,535
643,807 678,885

Minisk O EHARAE ——
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o O FHES R I 3T

VN H

27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

250

(A)

(B)

(€

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The credit terms granted to customers of purchasing
properties are generally ranging from 30 days to 60 days,
while for the customers to whom the Group provides
management services, decoration services and sales of
land, the credit terms are around one year.

Information about the impairment provision of trade
receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk can be
found in note 3.1(b)(i).

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China which develop
properties for sale are subject to prepayment of VAT at the
rate of 3% on advance collected from customers. Such
prepayments are recorded as “prepayments — prepaid
VAT and other surcharges”.

These subsidiaries are also subject to prepayments of EIT
and land appreciation tax on expected profit margin and
land appreciation tax based on advance collected from
customers together. Such prepayments are recorded as
“prepayments — prepaid tax”.

The remaining amounts are interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023

27 BWERRKREMERR - BN

i€ #)
(A) EWERN (&)

(B)

(€)

BTEPBEDENEER —&KNF30
RE60R @ MAKEREFRHEEZR
B KHREELHEETERE TEP
MEEROR—F -

EHEEWREZRERERAEEEFEER
B2 8 & kLB 2 BKTEE3.1(0)() °

AEBEFEHEMENTEMBARA
FLUCER B P RO B R TR 3% MY SR (E A
ZERBARBTENR — BAEER
KEAMHIME] -

ZEWB LR AR BN ERBEE
PRSB  LIRED - MRBBRKER
B RIR TR 1B (ER - ZFERM KA
RAIEMAR — BHREA] -

B TRIBRE RAREREEE -



27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)
(D) Deposits for property maintenance are repayable within 2
to 7 years from the end of the year.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables, prepayments and deposits (netting
off provision for loss allowance were denominated in below

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

27 EREFREMEKRER BN
) &AL )

(D) YEp#ERSBNEREARESLE
B -

R-TB-_=F+-"A=+—H " BYE
REEMERR BN EZEE (HF
EIEEE) WREEN THEREE

currencies:

2023 2022

—E-=F —EF=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFIT
RMB AR 1,783,273 2,552,214
uss$ ETT 1,525,841 1,372,979
HK$ BT 450 446
3,309,564 3,925,639

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the fair value of trade
and other receivables approximate their carrying amounts.

W-_E-_=FR-_FT-_—F+-58
=+—B - ERERREMERRHA
R EERLREERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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A5 BB ik R BT

28 RESTRICTED CASH AND CASHANDCASH 28 ZRFBESURBEERAEEE

EQUIVALENTS )]
2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T
Restricted cash PR HIER
— Restricted for project developments — RFIBIER ER 87,585 3,827
— Pledged for discounted bank — {ERBALIRIRITHA N F I
accepted notes - 500
— Pledged for the Group’s bank — ERAREERITERAER
borrowings (note 31(a)(i)) (Pt 3E31(@)() - 55,417
— Others — HAth 11,730 7,761
99,315 67,505
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEZEED 988,161 1,252,056
The carrying amounts of restricted cash and cash and cash ZRHReUNERSRFSZEVHEREE
equivalents approximate their fair values. HENAEBEES -
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28 RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (continued)
The carrying amounts of restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents were denominated in below currencies:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

28 SRFBEURRERATEE

Y (&)
FRHIBEURBSRESZEYNETE
A T R B

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—&F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBET T

RMB AREE 158,171 313,516
uss$ EViv 926,205 1,001,884
HK$ BT 3,100 4,161
1,087,476 1,319,561

Cash and cash equivalents held in Mainland China are subject to
exchange control regulations, which provide for restrictions on
exporting capital out, other than through dividends. The cash
balance included in the consolidated financial statements to
which these restrictions apply is RMB158,718,000 (2022:
RMB316,406,000).

Included in cash and cash equivalents are cash balance of
US$119,554,960 (equivalent to approximately RMB846,772,000)
held by the Company’s listed subsidiary, Landsea Homes, which
relates to the operation of the property development and sales in
the US, and are not available for general use by the Company.
As a result, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents excluding
those held by Landsea Homes which the Company cannot freely
use was RMB141,390,000.

RPEREIFEZRE KBS SEYIINE
EHHROIARE  EFRHREES L QBRI
(TEERB) - FEMBRERANBAZSER
HEER ¢ AR R AR ¥ 158,718,0007T (=&
——%: AR¥316,406,0007T) °

RekBeEEVEREBEARARA LMHEBAF
Landsea Homes FfT 5 A 31 & 45 #2 119,554,960
Fot (HERH AR 846,772,000 70) HE 3k
BEMEMEREREEXEBAME  THIER
rEl—RAZ Bt AEEMNREESRRE
Z(EY) (T84 Landsea Homes Fri B 28 A 7]
TeeEHREAE) B AR 141,390,000 7T °
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A5 BB ik R BT

29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 ENERAREMENSNR
2023 2022
—E=-= B F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBETT

Included in non-current liabilities: FTAERBIBE -
— Amounts due to related parties — FET A 5 IR
(note 40(b)) (Fff 3£ 40(b)) - 8,443
— Warranty accruals — ERRERES 346,662 324,946
— Other payables — HAbERI K 5,000 5,000
351,662 338,389
2023 2022
—EB== —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARET T
Included in current liabilities: SFARBAE
— Amounts due to related — FE{ B 5 3038 (M RE 40(0))
parties (note 40(b)) 3,007,933 3,206,819
— Payables for construction materials — B IR ER KA
and services 1,875,348 1,806,464
— Deposits received from rental and — HERIERBEEWIZS
construction services 822,790 720,146
— Interest payable — ERFIE 458,827 431,185
— Amounts due to non-controlling — JEA FEIE S e TR
interests (note 29(a)) (Ff7E29(a)) 280,871 278,560
— Funding from third parties (note 29(b)) — RBE=FE&% (ME29(0b)) 515,527 872,116
— VAT and other tax payables — RE R H M ENTIE 122,295 163,829
— Dividend payable (note 14) — EIRE (H5E14) 13,155 12,967
— Accruals for staff costs — EETRTER 233,952 162,668
— Notes payables — ERNRE 2,513 39,560
— Consideration payables (note 29(c)) — ERRE (5 29() 4,626 4,626
— Other payables — HAib TR 655,084 532,964

8,082,921 8,231,904
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29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(@)

As of 31 December 2023 and 2022, amounts due to non-
controlling interests include RMB198,606,000 bearing
interest at 4.65% per annum and the remaining amounts
are interest-free.

All amounts due to non-controlling interests are unsecured.

As at 31 December 2023, fundings from third parties
include RMB18,000,000 bearing interest at 4.64% per
annum.

As of 31 December 2022, fundings from third parties
include RMB28,500,000 bearing interest from 4.64% to
10% per annum.

Other fundings from third parties are interest free.

As of 31 December 2023, consideration payables are
mainly related to payables for acquisition of investments, of
which BRMB4,626,000 was due to the former shareholder
of Wuhan Langhong Real Estate Co., Ltd. ()£ R 5L & ¥
BRAQA]).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of
trade and other payables approximate their fair values.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

29 BHRRREMESRE
(@) \:;:_E&_E::¢+—H
=+—RB  ENFEHMEERIERRE
WEF R4.65%:F B0 AR
198,606,000 7T * &8 FHRIBAIRE ©

P A SR B R s RIS I -

by MRZEBE_=F+-_A=+—H KEF
ZHNE S BREIEFNEL64%5TEH
AR # 18,000,000 7T °

R-_ZTE-_—_&F+-_A=+—H %®H
FE=HHE S AR 28,500,000 7T A F
R ZE4.64%ZF10%:T 8 °

HRBEE=THNESRRE

© RZFE-_=F+-A=1+—H EHRK
BEESREBRENEMNR  EFA
K ¥4,626,000 T ENEIERALEER
R AB R RTALR o

RZE_=FR-_TE-_—_F+-_A=+—80"
ENEREREMEMNTNEREEEAR(E
(EREES
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A5 BB i R M R

29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 20 ENBRAREMESK @)
As at statement of financial position date, the aging analysis of REBRAERBE  BEZZEAHNENT
the payables for construction materials and services based on RV RRFRIBERRE ST T

invoice dates is as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= —E-=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTIT

Less than one year DPR—F 871,837 849,874
One to two years —EWF 243,166 480,191
Two to three years ME=F 332,839 295,154
Over three years =% E 427,506 181,245
1,875,348 1,806,464
As at statement of financial position date, the carrying amounts R KR B H - A BR 3k I L fth & 5 5Kk
of trade and other payables were denominated in below MEREEN Y EBEHE :
currencies:
2023 2022
—E-= —_E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

RMB AR 6,429,133 6,412,295
uss$ eV 1,957,085 2,110,458
HK$ BT 48,365 47,540

8,434,583 8,570,293
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THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

30 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE 30

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

BARBEFABENEHEE

Non-current Current
FnE wE
Public Private Redemption
Warrants warrants liabilities Total
(note 30(a)) (note 30(b)) (note 30(c))
N %Hﬁ%% RERREE BEEE
RMB'OOO RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR®TT ARBTT AR®T T
At 1 January 2022 RZE-—_F—H—H 14,966 35,137 - 50,103
Financing from third party REE=FHRE - - 303,242 303,242
Fair value (gain)/loss (note 10) AR BIE (k) B8
(Fft=£10) (5,899) 29,676 2,450 26,227
Repurchase of private warrants  [2 88 L 2 2 A% 4 25 - (64,487) - (64,487)
Exchange difference P 5 =% 1,205 (326) 10,239 11,118
At 31 December 2022 and RZZB__F+_A
1 January 2023 =+t—BEZE_=F
—H—H 10,272 - 315,931 326,203
Fair value loss/(gain) (note 10) AR EEEE /(W
(Fft5E10) 28,491 - (9,412) 19,079
Exchange difference [ =% 284 - 5,321 5,605
At 31 December 2023 RZZTZ=
—A=+—H 39,047 - 311,840 350,887
(a)  As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s subsidiary, Landsea @ #HE_ZEZ-_=F+Z-—H=+—8"
Homes had 15,525,000 outstanding public warrants. Each N £ B ff1 B A 7] Landsea Homes % &
public warrant is exercisable at US$1.15 into one tenth 15,525,000 RITE A RABIRKEE ©
share of Landsea Homes. The public warrants will expire B ARRREZAZ1.156K TTITHEIA
five years after 7 January 2021 or earlier upon redemption & 3% A andsea Homes + % 2 — f& %
or liquidation. The warrants are presented on the M RRRREZR_ZE_—F—HL
consolidated statement of financial position as a liability El % A F &k E D s B IRATE W °
recorded at fair value with subsequent changes in fair value R B EGEE TBRAREINRIER
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss AEBEAERNEBE HEAABEE
and other comprehensive income at each reporting date as NEREBHREGS B RAMEEK
a fair value gain/(loss) on remeasurement of the warrant mRERAEF T ERREZFEENA
liability. The public warrants liabilities are valued using REERZ(BER) RREZFEER
quoted price. RHE -
MRBaERERAN —— —Fo=£4% MY
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A5 BB ik R BT

30 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

258

()

In June 2022, the Group’s subsidiary, Landsea Homes
repurchased all 3.3 million outstanding private warrants,
which were exercisable at US$11.50 into one share of
Landsea Homes. Landsea Homes paid US$9,900,000
(equivalent to RMB64,487,000), or US$3.00 per warrant, to
repurchase all of the outstanding private warrants. The loss
recognised on the repurchase of the private warrants is
recorded as loss on remeasurement of warrant liability in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

In May 2022, Landsea Holdings Corporation (“Landsea
Holdings”), a subsidiary of the Group and 1103849 B.
C.LTD. (“1103849 B.C.”), an independent third party,
entered into a credit agreement for a period of 12 months
starting from the date of the credit agreement (the “initial
maturity date”). According to the credit agreement,
1103849 B.C. agreed to provide a loan in a principal
amount of US$45,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB303,242,000) at interest rate of 10% per annum to
Landsea Holdings which is secured by 4,838,710 shares of
Landsea Homes and guaranteed by Landsea Group. The
loan may be extended and converted into the shares of
Landsea Homes under certain conditions. The Group
designated the loan with the extension option and
conversion option as financial liability at fair value with
subsequent changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income at each reporting date. As of the
date of this report, the loan has been extended to 12
months after the initial maturity date.
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30 BARBEFTABRENEHEAE

(%)
(b)

HE_Z-_—_F-7 ~&EEKHBEAF
Landsea Homes Bl #% T 5 830 & 11 AR 1T
FEFRERIEHERE WAL 11.50% T1T
£ & — M Landsea Homes & {5 °
Landsea Homes 3 /579,900,000 35 T (48
BN AR 64,487,0007T) 3k B 15 R
EFEB.00ET  UEBMABRTELE
RIXIEE - BELERREERERD
BRENGEERREMEERERTS
REMAERAREZEENEE -

RZE-__FRHA AEEHEBERQ A
Landsea Holdings Corporation
([Landsea Holdings |) % 1103849 B.C.
LTD.([1103849 B.C.| ' %&£ =7 ) 7]
VEEWE BEEmMSREARAH12
BA (TR - REBEEEH -
1103849 B.C. [A & [A] Landsea Holdings
BMH — % K4 45,000,000 T (FHE R
AR #303,242,0007T) KB+ FFI=E
£10% + bALandsea Homes 4,838,710
R DR - WHMAFEEER - BEX
AIfE & T 1B R T & HA P 82 #8 5 Landsea
Homes I {7 72N &8 B & B 75 1E HR 338 4 4
REREERENERIEERARAAEA
AENERAE ARAAEBEEEDR
EMEAPEGEERREMEE YR
KPR - NAREBH - BEREEH
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31 BORROWINGS 31 BX
2023 2022
—EZ=E —E--F
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
TE FnE i E FERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR AR¥TR ARBTT ARBTTT
Secured BHEA
— Bank borrowings (note 31(a)) — RTER(HIFE31(0) 258,385 2,766,863 523,650 3,984,465
— Loans from other financial - REEMSREEN
institutions (note 31(g)) EX (MHE31(e) 437,930 - 623,700 -
Total secured borrowings RHEMETERE 696,315 2,766,863 1,147,350 3,984,465
Unsecured EH R
— Bank borrowings — RITER - 1,672,532 - -
— Senior notes 2020 (note 31(c)) - —ZCEEERERE
(HEE31(c) 240,599 - 257,481 =
— Senior notes 2022 (note 31(c)) - B EFREEE
(F7E31(c) 669,021 - 89,490 704,436
— Loans from the ultimate - 5}5 E FASER A AR
controlling company K (FHEE31(0))
(note 31(b)) 367,043 - - 356,220
— EB-5 loans and contributions — EB-5EH X EB-5
from EB-5 investors BEALER
(note 31(d)) (P3E31(a)) - 802,520 - 791,633
Total unsecured borrowings B ERBE 1,276,663 2,475,052 346,971 1,852,289
Total borrowings EE bk 1,972,978 5,241,915 1,494,321 5,836,754
Borrowings carry interest ranging from 0.10% to 12.30% (2022: BREFHNENF010%E12.30% (==

0.10% to 10.75%) per annum.

==%E 0.10%110.75%>§+% o

Minisk O EHARAE ——

SR =FER
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 BB ik R BT

B (&)
RIMEERR - B2

31 BORROWINGS (Continued) 31
At end of reporting period, the carrying amounts of borrowings
were denominated in the following currencies:

BEREE O EHEHE -

2023 2022
—E-= —E-=

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETIT

RMB AR 1,368,493 1,299,711

uss$ ETT 5,846,400 6,031,364

7,214,893 7,331,075

The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows as at each

REMBARKRBE  AEEEKER T

statement of financial position date: R EE

2023 2022

—E-= -~
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTIT
Within one year —F A 1,972,978 1,494,321
Between one and two years —EWE 2,234,251 4,956,873
Between two and five years MERF 2,960,144 826,861
Over five years AFLAE 47,520 53,020
7,214,893 7,331,075
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31 BORROWINGS (Continued)

(A) Bank borrowings are secured by:

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

restricted cash with carrying amount of RMBnil (2022:
RMB55,417,000) (note 28);

properties under development with carrying amount
of RMB1,511,472,000 (2022: RMB1,456,918,000)
(note 25);

investment properties with carrying amount of
RMB97,700,000 (2022: RMB100,700,000) (note 19);

properties held for sale with the carrying amount of
RMBnil (2022: RMB118,017,000) (note 23);

guarantee provided by the ultimate controlling
company;

equity interest of certain subsidiaries of the Group
(note 43);

property, plant and equipment with carrying amount
of RMB130,534,000 (2022: RMB137,544,000) (note
20);

leasehold land of delivered properties amounted to
RMBhil (2022: RMB1,526,122,000).

Bank borrowings carry interest ranging from 4.45% to
11.69% (2022: 3.75% to 8.60%) per annum.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

31

[t = =
CE/8C D)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B S o R A R

(A) SRITEFIATISBELRER :

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

R1T

FRHEEAARBZ T (ZZE - —4&:
AR 855,417,000 70) B = [R 438
& (M7£28) :

BREEAARY1,511,472,000 70
- T - = A R &
1,456,918,000 7T ) A f 2 & ¥ 3
(Ffiz£25) :

BR ™ B & A R ¥ 97,700,000 JT B
KEMEYME(ZE__F: ARK
100,700,000 7T) (Fi3E19) :

FRAEAARBZ THIFHHEE
ME(ZZE_—_F: AR
118,017,000 7T ) (Bf5E23) :

RN A PTIR LAV HELR -

ANEEE T B A A HY IR (B 5E
43) ;

BREEA AR 130,534,000 7 (=
T F: AR¥137,544,0007T)
RIPZE - B & (FIEE20) ¢

DRXNMENHE LA ARE
ER(ZFTZZ2F: AR®
1,526,122,0007T) ©

EFIREF RN T 4.45% 2 11.69%

(ZE -4 : 3.75% = 8.60%) 5t & °

Minisk O EHARAE ——
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31 BORROWINGS (continued)

262

(B)

(€

THE LOANS FROM THE ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING COMPANY

The loan from the ultimate controlling company is
unsecured and carry interest is 5.65% (2022: 5.65%) per
annum.

SENIOR NOTES

Senior notes 2020 issued by the Company were listed on
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited on 21
January 2020 with interest at 10.75% per annum paid
semi-annually in arrears and fell mature in October 2022.
Up to October 2022, the Group had repurchased
US$30,600,000 (equivalent to RMB196,753,000) of the
total principal amount of senior note 2020. In October
2022, the Group successfully exchanged senior notes
2020 of US$132,216,000 (equivalent to RMB947,962,000)
with a new senior note of US$118,994,400 (equivalent to
RMB853,166,000) due on 20 October 2024 (the “Maturity
Date”) (the “senior notes 2022”), which is at 90% of the
aggregate principal amount of senior note 2020, and cash
payment of US$13,883,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB99,538,000), which is at 10.5% of the aggregate
principal amount of senior note 2020 (the “Exchange”).

As of 31 December 2023, the Group was in default of the
senior notes 2020 with principal amount of US$33,970,000
(equivalent to RMB240,599,000) and interest amount of
US$1 million (equivalent RMB7 million) because of non-
payment at its due date. The events of default provisions
under senior notes 2022 carve out any cross-default events
and final judgments and orders arising directly or indirectly
from any defaults of events of occurrence under senior
notes 2020.
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(€)

X ()
RERKEZERATDNER

RERKRIZERABNE R AELIF - I
BERNE565%(ZF=_4F :5.65%)
e -

BEEE
ARRIBTH_S_SFELEEZER
—EEF A+ —HEFNEES
REMBRAB LT  B¥FREF X
1O75%§'iﬁﬂE WHR=—ZB=-—F+

A -HE-ZFT=-_=F+ 7 ~5£H
E@ﬁ% T_THFREZEACBE
Eiﬂmsoeooooo%n(mﬂﬁ/\lﬂz
196,753,0007T) c R=ZZT=Z=F+ A -
NEEE KI5 132,216,000 3% T (B E H
AR #947,962,00070) I —ZE T F (8
EERBER T -_NFEF+A=+H
([2I# B ) 2 HH A9 118,994,400 3 T
(FHE B A R #853,166,000 7T) &) 1 &
AER(ZB--FB8EFE) (K=
E_TFREZEBRASBTENION) &
I 4 {7 713,883,000 7T (FHE R4 A
R #99,538,000 T ' WA =T T F1&8
EZEACHETEN105%) RIB ([ER
®’l) -

N-_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—H A&£H
ERESBERNTMBREAS A
33,970,000%( T (HE R AR
240,599,0007T) R A 21 B &% 7T (48
ERARBTABLN_ZE_ZFE
ERB T _FEERBETED
BHREEHBREA—ZE_SFEBLERE
TEHBENTRENTTAMEESKME
BEEEANTARXXENETERSEHAR
RBES -



31 BORROWINGS (Continued)

(€)

(D)

SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

Senior notes 2022 were listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited on 21 October 2022 with interest
at 10.75% per annum paid semi-annually in arrears. Senior
notes 2022 are guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the
Company. The Company shall redeem at least the 30% of
principal amounts at a redemption price equal to 100% of
the principal amount of senior notes 2022 with accrued
and unpaid interest on 20 April 2024. The Company shall
repay all remaining outstanding principal amounts of senior
notes 2022 plus accrued and unpaid interest on the
Maturity Date.

As of 31 December 2023, the remaining outstanding
principal amount of senior notes 2022 was US$94,458,000
(equivalent to RMB669,021,000).

EB-5 LOANS AND CONTRIBUTIONS FROM
EB-5 INVESTORS

Contributions from EB-5 investors with the amount of
US$113,307,124 (equivalent to RMB802,521,000) was
accounted for as financial liability. The Group may, in its
sole and absolute discretion, to avoid repayments to EB-5
investors until 25th anniversary from the fund establishment
day. The financial liability bears effective interest ranging
from 0.10% to 1.00% (2022: 0.10% to 1.00%) per annum.

31
(€)

(D)

Minisk O EHARAE ——
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B B S o R A R

B (&)

BEREE &)

I CFBAREBR 1A
T+ HBEHMEESFRFFABR AR
E - BFFRFRE10.75% % 7
BT —FEBEFERARARAET
BB A RERER - ARBIEUEER =
TEFREFERAS 100% K EE(E -
FERPN-_ZE-_MEMA =+ HE:f
RANBOFE  BEIASZEDI0% A
AAEREHEEE_S-_—_FEBLE
BB RSBRAEELRAS S INET KK
RFLE ©

WRZTE_=F+ZHA=+—H =%
THEBEEBABASEAR
94,458,000k L (HER AR
669,021,000 7)) °

EB-58F REB-5&RE A HERK

EB-5# & A HE 113,307,124 =7t (17
BN AR 802,521,0007T) ARSI ES
BEE - AEEUEENBACHEE
ATFEBSKEA EE2ESKY A H
BEFEBEAFRIE - cHEBRER
FERENF010%E1.00% (—ZF = —
£ :0.10% = 1.00%) 5t & °
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31 BORROWINGS (continued)
(E) LOANS FROM OTHER FINANCIAL

264

(F)

INSTITUTIONS

Loans from other financial institutions carry interest with
12.30% (2022: 12.30%) per annum.

Loans from other financial institutions are secured by:

(i) properties under development with carrying amount
of RMB1,157,411,000 (2022: RMB1,030,224,000)
(note 25);

(i)  guarantee provided by Nanjing Langming Properties
Group Limited (F RS EEE FG R A ), an
indirect subsidiary of the Company, and Landsea
Group;

(i)  equity interest of certain subsidiary of the Group (note
43).

As at 31 December 2023, fair value of the senior notes
2020 and senior notes 2022 are RMB77,689,000 and
RMB218,971,000, respectively. Fair values of the remaining
borrowings are not materiality different to the carrying
amounts, since either the interests on those borrowings are
close to current market rates or borrowings are of a short-
term nature.
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(E)

(F)

REHMESRMEBHER

REEMESBEBONERNEN XA
12.30% (ZFE = =4 : 12.30%) °

KEEMESRBBOEFIATIIREE
HRFEM

() BREEAAREA1157,411,0007T

-z - = AR

1,030,224,000 7T ) K B 3% A 4 3
(ffE25) :

(i) ARFEEMEBERREREARM
EEERRARRAFEEMR
AR

(i) AEEETHEQRARE (M
43) o

RZZEZ=F+-_A=+—H ' ZF=
TEBAEERN T - _EEEZEN
NARBEED R AAREE 77,689,000 7T &
AR #218,971,0007C - RN A 7B
BEHEEAEYESEAEZR  RABZSE
B E S L E A 45 A AR - k(g
REHAR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 32 LLF}? S B

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The net amounts are as follows:

BRI R AITRMGHEERBEER
RAERBRAGERE BELEREH S RE—
MBHE AR EEREHEERARBE
TRIRSH o JFEMT ¢

2023 2022
—z—= e

= — =

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREBETIT

Deferred income tax liabilities to be R —F iR EERELE
settled after one year FriSti 8 &

Deferred income tax assets: EEFTSIRE E :
— to be recovered within one year — BR—F AU E
— to be recovered after one year — BR—F B E

Deferred income tax assets, net EIEFTIS IR EEF58

As at 31 December 2023, deferred income tax assets were offset
against deferred income tax liabilities with the amount of
RMB92,317,000 (2022: RMB55,773,000).

The movements in deferred income tax, net are as follows:

190,497 191,015

6,770 35,548

402,731 247,508

409,501 283,051

219,004 92,036

n= =F+-A=t—B BREREH

éﬁ?‘%ﬁﬁfﬁ EFTIS T B & A R 92,317,000
TL(ZZE——%F: AR#¥55773,0007T) °

EEFTSBFRBEOT

2023 2022
—z—= —m—

_—— — e

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT

At 1 January W—H—H 92,036 522,188
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss (note 12)  EEzmE R, (2 4) (FizE12) 89,006 (434,791)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) &M B 2 R (M sE39) - (15,093)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) W rEHT 8 A 7] (H5E38) 36,227 14,172
Currency translation differences ERIRE R 1,735 5,560
At 31 December R+=A=+—A” 219,004 92,036
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32

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

32 EEMBH (&)
KRBTSR e EEsHmT

The movements in the deferred income tax liabilities, prior to

offsetting, are as follows:

Change in
fair value
of identified
Revaluation ~ Accelerated Re-  assets upon Unbilled
of investment tax measurement  acquisition of interest
properties  depreciation gain  subsidiaries income Others Total
KEHELRDE
REH & BN FRNEEN AR
NERER HEfE TRAE  AAEEED NEWE A 3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2022 RZE--%-F-A 21,251 6,538 6,312 45933 94,205 32816 207,09
Chargedi(oredited) to profitorloss &% 8/ (£4)

(note 12) (F312) (313) 6,523 (3,711) 29771 (3,049) 7,656 36,883
Exchange difference BiES - 800 1471 - - 579 2,850
At 31 December 2022 i S

TZA=1-H 20,938 13,861 4072 75,704 91,162 41,051 246,788
At 1 January 2023 RZEZ=%-A-H 20,038 13,861 4,072 75,704 91,162 41,051 246,788
Chargedi(oredited) to profitorloss B &% 84/ (4)

(note 12) (BE12) (752) 7,807 (4,408) 8,795 (2,557) 18,989 21874
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38)  UEEMB A Al (B3 38) - - - 70M - - 7,0M
Exchange difference ERZE - 265 407 - - 409 1,081
At 31 December 2023 RZB-=%

TZA=1-H 20,186 21,933 " 91,570 88,605 60,449 282,814
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 32 EIEMBH @)
The movements in the deferred income tax assets, prior to EHA BB REEZEB WO T ¢

offsetting, are as follows:

Temporary
difference on Temporary
unrealised difference on Provision
profit of recognition of for bad debt Revaluation
intercompany revenues and andaccrued  of investment
transactions Taxlosses  cost of sales expenses properties Others Total
NAMREN BRUAR
KERFED HEERAN BRR B REM
ORER HEkE IRER ERRE NREf Aft a3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR  ARBTR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETRE  ARET:

At 1 January 2022 RZEZZ%-f-H 49,449 267,642 34,69 383,614 1,269 2,574 729,243

(Charged)/credited o profitorloss 7B % (X 8)/48

(note 12) (MzE12) (36,161) (173,879) (43,984) (156,938) 1,175 11,875 (397,908)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39)  HERB AR (Fi7£39) (1,792) - - (13.301) - - (15,003)
Acquisttion of subsiciaries (note 38) BB B2 7] (f5:38) - - 14,172 - - - 14,172
Exchange difference ELEE - 99 - 6,867 - 548 8,410
At 31 December 2022 RZE-—F+-f=1-H 11,496 84,762 4,883 220,242 2,444 14,997 338,824
At 1 January 2023 RZZE-=F-f-H 11,496 84,762 4,883 220,242 2,444 14,997 338,824

(Charged)/credited toprofitorloss 718 (8), /44

(note 12) (HsE12) 6,388 (43,614) (119) 108,083 - 46,142 116,880
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) B KB A 7 (i3 38) - - - 43,208 - - 43,208
Exchange difference ERER - - - 2,509 - 307 2,816
At 31 December 2023 W-B-=#{+-A=1-H 17,884 41,148 4764 374,132 2444 61,446 501,818
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33 SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED SHARES
The Company has authorised shares of 6,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each as at 1 January 2022, 1 January 2023 and 31

33

i <

EE R A

AKRARR_ZBE_—_F—AF—H Z—ZE_=F
—A-BAR=F=-_=t+-A=1+—08%

December 2023. 6,000,000,000 A% & i [ 18.0.01 7 7T B A FE AR
,f/\ ®
Issued shares B 21T 7%
Equivalent
Number of Nominal value nominal value
ordinary of ordinary of ordinary
shares shares shares
ZER
LZEREE LEREE LHEEE
‘000 HK$’000 RMB’000
Tz FHT ARETT
Issued and fully paid: BERTRAR :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ & MXE{E0.01 B LA E B
Opening balance as at 1 January RZE-_—_F—HF—8AK
2022 and 1 January 2023 —E=F—H—A8®
FYEEER 4,722,307 47,223 38,702
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=4%F
+=-A=+—H 4,722,307 47,223 38,702
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34 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME
(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME

34 EERESE
(A) MERAESTE

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 April 2012, the
old share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme
2012”) was adopted by the Company. The Company
operates the Share Option Scheme 2012 for the purpose
of providing incentives and reward to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
The Share Option Scheme 2012 has been valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption
on 25 April 2012 and expired on 25 April 2022. On 1 April
2022, the Company offered to grant an aggregate of
53,300,000 share options (the “Share Options”), to a
director of the Company and certain employees of the
Group. As at the 31 December 2023, all of the Share
Options were cancelled and there were no outstanding
options granted under the Share Option Scheme 2012.
These Share Options are valid for ten years from the date
of grant on 1 April 2022 and vested on 1 April 2023. The
Share Options were out-of-the-money, as the exercise
price of the Share Options exceeded the average market
price of the Company’ common stock.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 30 June 2022,
the new share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme
2022") was adopted by the Company. The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme 2022 is to enable the Group to grant
options to the eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Group. The Share Option
Scheme 2022 shall be valid and effective until 10 years
after the date adopted. There was no outstanding share
options under the Share Option Scheme 2022 as at 31
December 2023.

BER-—ZE——FMNA-—t+RBRETH
ARAREBFREG LBARN T RRE
B ARAEHEMEEREFEI(=F
——FBEREFE]) - ARARIZT
——FRERERE - B RSB
FAEEEBK NG ERDEE - =
T FEREFEHE T ——FMA
“+RBEMBERER  BHE A1
F YR -_ZE-__—_FWA-_+HHBHE
MR _TE-__FMWA—H  KAQAAM
ARA—REBEZRAEEETEERY
& #£53,300,000 17 Akt ([BB AR AE D) -
BHE_Z-_=F+-_H=+—H RE
—E-—FEREGEINAMEERERD
2RI R W R RITERBARAE - 3%
LHEREE T __FIHMA—AEHAB
HBR+FRES WR=2ZE==FWN A
—BEB AN ERENTEERAR
AEIEBBRAFHEITE  SUEREER
BIMREE

BER-_Z-_—FNA=ZT+HRETHAR
RAIRRBEFAES LBBHEBRE
B AREEEMFEREGTEI(=F
TEBERESE]) - —FEK
B EEEEAKBE A MG ERBHEE
REERE FREFHASEELER
Az B EER c —F - —FREARRELT
SRR B BRI0FNEBRER - &
EE_=F+_HA=Z+—H =%
T oFEREASTIEERTENRER
T o

MR RAEMARAR — —E SR 269
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34 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (continued)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

270

On 2 July 2014, the Group adopted a share award scheme
(the “Restricted Share Award Scheme”) as an incentive
to recognise the contributions by employees and to give
incentives in order to retain them for the continuing
operation and development of the Group, as well as to
attract suitable personnel for further development of the
Group.

Pursuant to the Restricted Share Award Scheme, existing
shares of the Company will be purchased or new shares
will be subscribed for restricted shares (“Restricted
Shares”) by a trustee appointed by the Company and be
held on trust for the relevant grantees until such shares are
vested with the relevant grantees in accordance with the
rules of the Restricted Share Award Scheme. The
Restricted Shares will be awarded with reference to the
performance, operating and financial targets and other
criteria determined by the board of the directors from time
to time.
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34 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (continued)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(Continued)

(i) The movements of shares held for Restricted Share
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34 EERREE (@)
(B) R&IMRBERE (&£)

) RFEAFBRDZESFENHK

Award Scheme by the trustee are as follows: DEFHMT :
Restricted shares BRI IR 17
2023 2022
—E-= B F
Employee Employee
Number share trust Number share trust
of shares reserve of shares reserve
EE K% EE KRG
RAER ErtfEE e gE] Ban]
’000 RMB’000 ’000 RMB’000
TR AR®TR TFir ARETFT
At 1 January n—H—H 212,374 114,780 205,790 113,513
Acquisition of shares L B i 19 1,732 209 6,584 1,267
Dividends received (a) B AR S (@) - - _ _
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 214,106 114,989 212,374 114,780

(@)

Dividends of granted Restricted Shares received by the
trustee are payable when these shares are transferred to the
relevant grantees. Other dividends received by the trustee
become part of the trust fund and are treated as a deduction
of employee share trust reserve.

(@  RFEAURERE X R S AR5 7 A%
BERZERN BB EHBEARAR
FERS o RFEAWREBE MR SERA
ERESN 5 LEREMRE
BRMEERKERRE -
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(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, 94,600,000 shares of Restricted
Shares, with market price of HK$0.81 per share, were
granted to certain employees of the Group according to the
rules of the Restricted Share Award Scheme adopted on 2
July 2014, among which, 61,600,000 shares (“Gift
Shares”) were granted for free, another 33,000,000 shares
(“Discount Shares”) were granted at a cash consideration
of HK$0.66 per share. Discount Shares were fully vested
as at the grant date and will be transferred to the grantee
at the date of 5 years after grant, Gift Shares can only be
vested while the grantee serves the Group continuously for
5 years since the grant date and Gift Shares will be
transferred to the grantee upon vesting. Share-based
payment expenses with the amount of HK$9,186,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB8,277,000) (2022:
HK$7,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB6,734,000)) were recognised as staff costs and share
based compensation reserve respectively for the year
ended 31 December 2023. As at 31 December 2023 and
2022, there is no cash consideration received from
Discount Shares grantees were recognised as other
reserve.
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34 EERESE (@)
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RZBE-_TE=A=+—8 ' BEBER
—T—EL A - BEMANRMERS
HEEAURAERE TEERD
94,600,000 A% BR 14 Bt - B AT R
0.81% L * H &+ 61,600,000 % ([ ¢ B
B4 e ER L - 545833,000,000 A%
Bt ([MERM]) DEASKRESR
0.66B T - MERMHRIELBEH2
ARE UTHRRERAFEREET
ERA BEBROEANARABRE
B REERFALNSBIREREES
eRE MBERNDENEBFEET
EEA BEE-_=F+-A=+—
HIEFE UROAEBRNHEALA
9,186,000 7T (HE RN AR
8,277,000 7T) (== = — 4 : 7,800,000
B (FEERH ARY6,734,000T)) B
ERABRTERKBRERMNEE - N=
T =FRZIEZZFFTZA=F—
B YEEKRTERDERANESR
BERF/EMERS -



(Continued)

Details of the Restricted Shares granted by the Company

are as follows:

34 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (continued)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME
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RABFEERGIERMDHFBEOT

Outstanding at Outstanding at
1 January Granted Transferred Forfeited 31 December
2023  during the year  during the year  during the year 2023
R-B=-=f R=B==f%
-B-H TZA=t+-H
Name of employees EEf% MR FARM FRER FRRY M RATHE
Directors B
Huang Zheng (appointedon S (R =F T4
19 June 2020) ~NAThREZE) 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
Other employees Hirfgs
In aggregate G 70,989,750 - - - 70,989,750
90,989,750 - - - 90,989,750
Qutstanding at QOutstanding at
1 January Granted Transferred Forfeited 31 December
2022 duingtheyear ~ duringtheyear  during the year 2022
i i —
—A—-H +-A=1+-H
Name of employees EEKS HATTE FAK FRNEDB FREHE HARITEE
Directors B
Huang Zheng (appointed on~~ EME(R=Z=F4F
19 June 2020) AT BEZRT) 20,000,000 = = - 20,000,000
Jiang Chao (appointed on BR(N-Z-2F/A
19 June 2020 and ThEEZERR
resigned on “E-"%"R
25 February 2022) —tRREA) 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
30,000,000 - - = 30,000,000
Other employees HEfES
In aggregate 5t 62,889,750 - - (1,900,000) 60,989,750
92,889,750 - - (1,900,000) 90,989,750
MHEOERARLT —— “FoZ65HR YK
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(C) STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Landsea
Holdings, a subsidiary of the Group, created a long-term
incentive compensation program designed to align the
interests of Landsea Holdings, Landsea Homes
Incorporated (“LHI"), a subsidiary of Landsea Holdings, and
its executives by enabling key employees to participate in
the company’s future growth through the issuance of
phantom equity awards. The value of the phantom equity
awards was not based on the shares of comparable public
entities or other equity, but was based on the book value of
Landsea Holdings’ equity. Landsea Holdings measured the
value of phantom equity awards on a quarterly basis using
the intrinsic value method. In connection with the Spin-off
and Separate Listing of Landsea Homes, all of the phantom
equity awards vested and were either paid out in cash or
were converted to stock of Landsea Holdings and the
program was terminated. The Company granted 179,038
shares of Landsea Homes with a grant date value of
RMB12,316,000 at the time of the Spin-off and Separate
Listing and recognised such expenses in the year ended
31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Landsea
Homes adopted the Landsea Homes Corporation 2020
Stock Incentive Plan (“2020 Stock Incentive Plan”) which
provides for the grant of options, stock appreciation rights,
restricted stock units, long term performance share unit
awards and restricted stock, any of which may be
performance-based, as determined by Landsea Homes’
compensation committee. Landsea Homes reserved a total
of 6.0 million shares of its common stock for issuance
under the 2020 Stock Incentive Plan.
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34 EERESE (@)
(C) MEBARZREME2

BHE-Z—-N\F+ZA=+—HLHF
£ ANEE W B A 7 Landsea Holdings
Bl —IEREMERMETE - EEEB
B TR RFEREZER
NAARKER M= Landsea
Holdings  Landsea Holdings &9 {1 & A 7]
Landsea Homes Incorporated ([LHI])
HEITHRAEMANERE —B - FE=
REWEBELIFERATE LR AT
sk HMEzm maERLandsea
Holdings B # z &) R [ {& ° Landsea
Holdings & ZE A N EE AT =
5 FHem AR EE - BEZE Landsea
Homes D IF KB LT FiE R TiHE=
BERMNEEEE  TUREIMEHA
# A& Landsea Holdings 89 i% 2 - #% 5t 2l
EEERIE-ROFERBL EWE - AR
A #% 179,038 % Landsea Homes %
7 R H B BHEEAR 12,316,000
T WRBE_E_—F+_HA=+—
IEFERRZEER -

N BE_ZE-_—F+_A=+—HIt
% [Z » Landsea Homes X fi Landsea
Homes Corporation — & — T F IR Z 3
BErE (=22 EREZBEE]) -
ZArEHER THERE RELERE -
BER I M A 22 BE 7~ #E PR 1D BE AL B2 D K%
PRAEIMRE - R EM— BRI LNEER
E /- flandsea Homes W EHMZ E &
& 7F ° Landsea Homes#R 15 — & — T4
BOSBERBESLOEERLE
AR DA L 84T o



34 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (continued)
(C) STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

As of 31 December 2023, approximately 3.3 million shares
(2022: 3.4 million shares) of common stock remained
available for issuance under the 2020 Stock Incentive Plan.

Landsea Homes granted 297,809 shares (2022: 1,135,259
shares) of long-term performance share unit awards and
restricted stock units to certain executives under the 2020
Stock Incentive Plan. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group recognised RMB15,935,000 (2022:
RMB19,314,000) expenses in relation to the 2020 Stock
Incentive Plan, of which 375,352 shares (2022: 278,046
shares) were vested upon satisfaction of above conditions.

Movements in the number of long-term performance share
unit awards and restricted stock units outstanding are as
follows:
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34 EERREE (@)

(€)

MEBARZREHBEE (&)

ﬁéfyf_i-i— A=1+—H #R&
—E_TEREMBENEN33E

ER(CZE-_—_F:3488) REBRK
A 31T o

Landsea Homes iR 1k — & — Z F IR EZ
Bt &l A T1TH A B &% H 297,809 i%
(ZZT = =4 :1,135,250%) REA4E &
B& 0 BB BB R R MR R B AL - H =
TEC=FFZA=F+—BLEFE K
SRS _EFRELETEERA
K#15,935,0007L (ZE=ZZF: AR
#19,314,00070) WE R - EEP375 352
B ZE=——%F: 278046Hx) PR ES
HEREBERB

e A 7T {2 B0 £ BRAB Uk 10 B i 2R B o &2
PRHIAR M EMEENEBIT

2023 2022

—E-=F B F
Number of Number of

shares shares

v - gE| & E

Beginning of the year FHEE 1,625,613 836,485
Granted g 297,809 1,135,259
Transferred to employee (note 35) @R 8 (fsE35) (375,352) (346,131)
Forfeited 281K (60,113) =
End of the year FREBEE 1,487,957 1,625,613
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34 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)
(C) STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Landsea Homes granted 228,117 share options (2022:
744,086 share options) to certain executives under the
2020 Stock Incentive Plan of which 222,286 share options
(2022: 59,673 share options) were forfeited. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised
RMB5,854,000 (2022: RMB5,345,000) expenses in relation
to the 2020 Stock Incentive Plan. As of 31 December 2023
and 2022, the share options were out-of-the-money, as the
exercise price of the share options exceeded the average
market price of Landsea Homes’ common stock.

Movements in the number of share option outstanding and
their weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

34 EERESE (@)

(€)

MEBARZREBBE & (&)

Landsea Homes R iIE — T T F R E X
Bt glmaE TTBABR L 228117145
(ZZT = =45 :744,08610) B A #E - =
R 22228617 (—Z — —4F : 59,6731)
BRERIK BE-_T_=F+—-A4
=+—HALEFE AEEBRR-Z=ZT
FREFBFENEBERAARE
5,854,000t (ZZE=——F: AR¥
5,3450007C) BE_ZT-_=FK=_F
T+ A=+—H8 BaREREN
7T HE (B8 38 Landsea Homes & 38 % #)
HHE - EREEREIMARE o

RATEE 8 BB B R A T 4977 5 (8
MEBMT

2023 2022
—EB-=H —E_—fF
Average Number of Average Number of

exercise price

share options  exercise price  share options

THITEE  BEREZEA THIHEE EREHE

Beginning of the year FOEH US$8.82% T 684,413 - -
Granted Rl US$6.46 3= 7T 228,117  US$8.82% 7T 744,086
Exercised 78 US$8.83 £ T (3,877) = =
Forfeited et US$8.68 % 7T (222,286)  US$8.83% T (59,673)
Expired B US$8.83% T (1,945) = =
End of the year EREH U$B.08 £ 7T 684,422  US$8.82% 7T 684,413
Vested and exercisable BEEBRA{TE

276 Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023

315,762 =



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

35 RESERVES 35 f#E

Revaluation
gain on the
property
transferring
from property,
plant and
Share based Capital equipment to
Merger Share  Translation compensation ~ Employee  redemption Statutory Other  Contributed  investment Retained
reserve premium reserve reserve  share trust reserve reserve reserve surplus properties eamings Total
ERES
HER
REEEE
ki &2 &% RE#NZN
AfEE  RGEE  FERE  #HEE  RBET  WEEE  fERE  HfEE  REBR MEERAE dniE &t
Note RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wi ARBTT ARMTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARBTRT ARMTR ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

At January 2023 H-2=z£-5-7 B3 4% (1608%) 6300 (14780 285 S1E8 (A1 445 158 G061 67150
Loss for the year 37 - - - - - - - - - - (860,793 (860,799)
Other comprehensive loss: Hh2EEE:
Exchange diference arising fiom ARG ERELNES 28

translation of foreign operations - - (24,844 - - - - - - - - (24,844
Total comprehensive loss for the year £E2HFB4E - - (24,844) - - - - - - - (860,793 (685,637

Movement ofemployes share rust —~~ EBRIEHERS

account 34b) - - - - (209) - - - - - - (209)
Employee share based compensation & & 48K 34b) - - - 8am - - - - - - - 821
Transfer the shares to employees relted [ B ERMEER

o'share based compensation (2 EEDOL) 340) - - - (2,8%) - - - - - - - 2,0%)
Disposalofshares ofasubsidary ~ EFEAESENERTHE

without losing control g) KBAARR) - - - - - - - (221,435) - - - (221,435)
Release i - - - - - - - 260,747 - - - 209,747
Repurchase of shares of asubsidary () EEMBA R () - - - - - - - 84,266 - - - 84,266
Approprition of statutory resenve )~ ARZETEEN - - - - - - 63,155 - - - (63,155) -
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=Et-A=1-A (83,396) 24,366 (185,481) 11,691 (114,989) 2,185 575,798 (565,235) 484415 15,804 (235,887) (49,729)
At1 January 2022 R=%--%-5-B 83,39) 24,366 (67,514) 10,692 (113513 2318 493367 (197,580) 484415 17,187 3,294,59 3,885,805
Loss for the year 31 = - - - - - - - - - B (25%86R)

Other comprehensive income: HH2EEE:
Exchange diference arsing from AR EREANES 28
ranglation of foreign operations - - 93123 - - - - - - - - (93,123

Total comprehensive loss for the year £E2AFEAHE - - 93,129 - - - - - - - 588642 (2681765

Recyoleofreveluation ganon thepropery BB D% - BE RS
translerng fom property, pentand ~~ EBZRERNZNNE

equipmenttoinvestment propertes 4715 - - - = = = = = = (1,383) 1383 =
Movement ofemplojee share st~ BB EEES

acoount 34b) - - - - (1.267) - - - - - - 1,267)
Employe share based compensation £ 5 R iE R 34) - - - 6,73 - - - - - - - 6,734
Transfer the shares to employees related HEBRERMAESEHR

to share based compensation f2) ) ) = = = (11,116) = = = = = = = (11,116)
Disposel of shares ofasubsidiay )~ i EMBAFRM () - - - - - - - 436,776) - - - (436,776)
Repurchase of shares of a subsidary () EEHBAZIRR () - - - - - - - 332 - - - 332
Retement o shares of asubsidiary () - FHBAFRBER () - - - - - - - [%,789) - - - (92,789)
Acquisiton of non-controling inerests (6) AT 21 £ ) % - - - - - - - 23990 - - - 23990)
Appropriation of statutory resene )~ ARZETEEN - - - - - - 19,276 - - - (19,276) -
At 31 December 2022 R=B--§+-R=t-R 83,39) 24,366 (160,637) 6310 (114780) 23,185 512,643 (17813 484415 15,804 688,061 678,158
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278

(@)

In connection with the 2020 Stock Incentive Plans stated in
note 34(c), during the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group recognised RMB21,788,000 (2022:
RMB24,659,000) expense, of which 375,352 shares (2022:
346,131 shares) were vested upon satisfaction of certain
conditions and transferred to employees, thus the non-
controlling interests were decreased by the amount of
RMB2,012,000 (2022: increased by the amount of
RMB5,386,000) with share based compensation reserve
increased (2022: decreased) by the same amount
representing these employees’ proportionate shares of the
net assets of Landsea Homes. In addition, the share based
compensation reserve were decreased by the amount of
RMB4,908,000 (2022: RMB5,730,000) due to recording
the tax effects upon the vesting of shares.

In May 2022, the Group’s subsidiary, Landsea Holdings
entered into an equity transfer agreement to sell 4,838,710
shares of Landsea Homes to Green Investment Alpha
Limited (“Green Alpha”), an independent third party at
US$45,000,000 (equivalent to RMB303,242,000). Upon
completion of the transaction, Landsea Homes remained a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, while the non-
controlling interests were increased by the amount of
RMB464,344,000 with other reserve decreased by
RMB161,102,000 representing the difference between
proceeds received and non-controlling interests’ change in
the proportionate shares of the net assets of Landsea
Homes. In connection with the transfer, the Group and
Green Alpha entered into a put option agreement, pursuant
to which Green Alpha shall, have the right to cause the
Group to repurchase all or a portion of these shares under
certain conditions. Accordingly, a financial liability of
US$40,909,000 (equivalent to RMB275,674,000) was
recognised, together with a decrease in other reserve at
the same amount.
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35 f&fE @)

@)

MMM —E - EFRE
Brtgams BE-_T-_=%+_58
ET-—BLEFE AEEERARYE
21,788,000 (ZZT=——_F : ARK
24,659,0007T) K & A - A 375,352 %
— T~ —F : 346,131 8%) R & T IEXK
BEREEREBIYEETEE ALtk
7= ) A R A A R 62,012,000 7T (=
T F AR S5,386,0007T) ¢
mARERMEHEREM(ZZT ==

B EESE HERZEEER
Landsea Homes #) % & = /B FTAG EL 31 ©
o RERMBEER D AR
4,908,000t (ZZT—_—F: AR
5,730,0007T) * R A TH %17 55 B FF 8% 15

MBHE -

RZZEZ—_FRA AEEHBAQF
Landsea Holdings 7] 37 % 4 %3 i 17 = -
LA 45,000,000 T (FHE R AR
308,242,000 7T ) M & 37 25 = 75 Green
Investment Alpha Limited ([ Green
Alpha J) 1 % 4,838,710 % Landsea
Homes & 19 © X % E A & * Landsea
Homes N AR S ERIEZEH B AR -
mEZETH/REREZENDARE
464,344,0007T * EtEHER O ARE
161,102,000 7T * #8 & 1 B W B AT 15 3K
T8 B 3E 472 A% 14 42 %5 7Y Landsea Homes #J
FEEPAIGLAISENERE - pLEE
mE @ 7% & B Green Alpha ] 3 2 Jh
HAtE W% © #E 1t - Green Alpha i A # (2
FEAEEES TEETHERZHBY
ZERD - Al AEEERSREE
40,909,000k T (HE X AR
275,674,0007t) - & 748 A & 58 7Y H b
fEERIE o



35 RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

In August 2023, Landsea Holdings entered into an
underwriting agreement with Green Alpha and B. Riley
Securities, Inc., as representative of the several
underwriters named therein (the “Underwriters”), pursuant
to which the Green Alpha agreed to sell to the Underwriters
an aggregate of 4,207,574 shares of Common Stock at a
price per share of USD9.75 (before underwriting discounts
and commissions) (the “Offering”). Upon the completion of
underwriting, Green Alpha no long had the rights to cause
the Group repurchase these shares and the rights was not
transferred to the Underwriter.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
subsidiary, Landsea Homes acquired 3,187,678 (2022:
1,226,526) shares of Landsea Homes from the open
market at a total consideration of US$31,054,000
(equivalent to RMB220,325,000) (2022: US$10,200,000
(equivalent to RMB68,438,000)). In connection with the
acquisition, the non-controlling interests were decreased
by the amount of RMB304,591,000 (2022:
RMB101,760,000) with other reserve increased by
RMB84,266,000 (2022: RMB33,322,000) representing the
difference between consideration paid and non-controlling
interests’ change in the proportionate shares of the net
assets of Landsea Homes.

On 1 June 2022, Landsea Homes repurchased and retired
4,398,826 shares from Landsea Holdings. Upon
completion of the transaction, the non-controlling interests
were increased at the amount of RMB92,789,000 with
other reserve decreased by the same amount representing
the non-controlling interests’ change in the proportionate
shares of the net assets of Landsea Homes.
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Mark B EMARAT ——

(%)

W =ZF = =% )\ A ' Landsea Holdings
£ Green Alpha X B. Riley Securities, Inc.
(ERBAAEEREK  [A#EH) L
5 1 3% © 8 Itk Green Alpha[A B & &
RO.75E THERE (RAFETERAS
Ail) 1) 72 85 7% 85 & $£4,207,574 IR & 3@
A ([HEAR]) o A SE T K & - Green
Apha "B EREREAEEEDZER
2 - MR I RS A EH P o

BHE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—HLHF
& - N4 B K8 2 7] Landsea Homes #¢
NEAMIEWES 187,678 (ZE ==
£ : 1,226,526 %) Landsea Homes %
D # A8 A31,054,0003% T (FBE R
AR #220,325,0007T) (Z T~ —

10,200,000 7t (HE RN AR
68,438,0007T)) ° LU EETM 5 - FEHER
MR AR 304,591,000 (=&
——&F: AR¥101,760,0007T) * Hfb
fo# 1% 12 o0 A R #584,266,0007T (=&
——F: AR¥33,322,0007T) ' HHE
A B K (B 22 JF 42 A% 14 42 25 74 Landsea
Homes K))F & ZEEH PTG LL B B Ry =58 ©

RZ—ZET-_—_%,3A— B8 ' Landsea
Homes # Landsea Holdings & &l & &+ $
4,398,826 lx Ik fn » R HTERKIL  FEIEAR
MERE RGN A R ¥ 92,789,000 7T + E A
RBRER SR - HERIFERME
HE 257 Landsea Homes H) % & B F Fii(h
LL 5 E) o
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In May 2022, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement to acquire additional interests in Suzhou
Langkun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (& /I BAH B 2 H R A A
“Suzhou Langkun”), a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, at cost of RMB82,755,000. Upon completion of the
transaction, Suzhou Langkun became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group. The Group recognised a decrease
in non-controlling interests of RMB50,679,000 and a
decrease in other reserve of RMB32,076,000.

In accordance with the Laws of Mainland China on
Enterprises Operated Exclusively with Foreign Capital and
the Articles of Association of the Group’s subsidiaries
incorporated in Mainland China, an appropriation to
statutory reserves has to be made prior to profit distribution
to the owners. The appropriation to statutory reserve of
these foreign investment enterprises shall be no less than
10% of the net profit until the accumulated appropriation
exceeds 50% of the registered capital.

As at 12 June 2023, Landsea Homes entered into an
underwriting agreement (the “Underwriting Agreement”)
with Landsea Holdings and B. Riley Securities, Inc., as
representative of the several underwriters named therein
(the “Underwriters”), pursuant to which Landsea Holdings
agreed to sell to the Underwriters an aggregate of
2,956,522 shares of common stock of Landsea Homes
(“Common Stock”) at a price per share of $7.50 (before
underwriting discounts and commissions) (the “Offering”).
Landsea Holdings also granted the Underwriters a 30-day
option to purchase up to an aggregate of 443,478
additional shares of Common Stock owned by Landsea
Holdings. In addition, through participation in the Offering,
Landsea Homes repurchased from the Underwriters
443,478 of the initial number of shares sold by the Landsea
Holdings at a per share price equal to the public per share
Offering price. Upon completion of the transaction,
Landsea Homes remained a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, while the non-controlling interests were
increased by the amount of RMB369,206,000 with other
reserve decreased by RMB221,435,000 representing the
difference between proceeds received RMB147,771,000
and non-controlling interests’ change in the proportionate
shares of the net assets of Landsea Homes.
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€

R-BE-_—FRA AEEF L RESE
FEipE o LAA R 82,755,000 7T U & A
EEFEZEMBARGKIMNPAHEZESGR
”AT(F%’J‘NEEHJ)E’]%EM\TE’\ ° R 55T
i - BRMNBREK AR EERN BB
DA AEEERIFER MR DA
R ¥ 50,679,000 7T & B Ah FEER A AR
# 32,076,000 7T °

BIBEFREANMIINGEECFERAEE
A HR B PR 3, A1 A 2 A B B A B A 48 4
ERRMA m%ﬁAﬁﬁﬂﬂ 5K AL
Mﬁimﬁﬁﬁﬁ c REINEE

iﬁm%ﬁmﬁﬁTQQKMMm
1w&§§%%ﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ$%
50% 7 1k ©

RZZTZ=F"A+=H  Landsea
Homes £ Landsea Holdings & B. Riley
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AT ERAEA) AAEHEEa L
2,956,522 % Landsea Homes & 78 i
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REERORHEKREBEEAFEFE LD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 36 FFEHIMER

LR A BT R M

2023 2022
—EZ=HF —E-=

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

At 1 January

(Loss)/profit for the year

Disposal of shares of a subsidiary without
losing control (note 35(g), 35(b))

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

Retirement of shares of a subsidiary
(note 35(d))

Transfer the shares to employees of
subsidiaries (note 34(c))

Repurchase of shares of a subsidiary
(note 35(c))

Distribution to non-controlling interests

Exchange differences

At 31 December

n—A—H 1,976,498 1,656,755
FE (E8),/ FE (2,526) 134,890
FERERIEHENBR TN HE

Bt /B8 2 &l B A (P &£ 35(g) ~ 35(b)) 369,206 464,344
Ut B S 42 1) 14 A 2 - (58,765)

B8 A R {D R T (M 5E35(d)
- 92,789
bt A R E BB EAR D
(MI5E34(c) 19,776 30,045
[0 8% B B8 2 R AR 15 (BY 3£ 35(c))

(304,591) (101,760)
1) FE 128 Il 15 42 25 0 I - (370,026)
PE 7 =% 24,948 128,226
R+—A=+—8H 2,083,311 1,976,498
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37 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

37 ReREEHR

(A) CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (A KERBHRE
Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash generated FRETST RIS EELCEMSEHE MK
from operations is as follows: U
2023 2022
—E-= —E-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ART ARET T
Loss before income tax & BT 1S BRI B 1R (823,318) (1,746,424)
Adjustments for: I
Interest income (note 7) A EWz (faET) (13,245) (17,055)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BEEZENITE

equipment (note 20) (MFE20) 45,915 35,514
Amortisation of right-of-use assets EAEEEMEHE (F21)

(note 21) 35,573 39,553
Fair value loss on investment properties KEMMENAABEESE

(note 19) (liﬁ 5£19) 10,900 33,600
Fair value loss on financial liabilities at fair R AR EE ABEZNEREE

value through profit or loss (note 10) =) Aﬁfﬁfﬁigﬂﬁ (FFEE10) 19,079 26,227
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair BRARBEFABEHNEREE

value through profit or loss (note 10) AR EEESE (KEE10) - 283
Interest expense (note 11) MEER (1) 232,099 391,166
Late payment fine and other losses on T Uk B AR A A B ET 3R

land acquisition/construction (note 8) M E AhEs1E (KizE8s) - 332,640
Late payment fine on property delivery Y3 A Ay e A F 5k (PP =E8)

(note 8) - 94,271
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries (note 8) &M B A RIHE 8 (Fi5E8) - 83,567
Loss on partial disposal of a joint venture 35 HE A& & EMEE (H5E8)

(note 8) 22,183 60,116
Share of net loss/(profit) of associates FE(REE & N RFER(FIE)

(note 17) (MFEE17) 94,087 (31,507)
Elimination of transactions with associates  E2E & N A1 ¥ 852 5 (KL 17)

(note 17) (1,120) 5,820
Share of net (profit)/loss of joint ventures ~ FE(E & & (2% (FIE), &8

(note 18) (ff5E18) (152,291) 303,767
Elimination of transactions with joint HESPEHERS (HE18)

ventures (note 18) 10,070 1,831
Employee share based compensation 1E B AR BN (P 3E34)

(note 34) 8,277 6,734
Employee share based compensation of i /&2 &) {& 8 A 4E =k B

subsidiaries (note 35(a)) (Pt 5E35(a)) 21,788 24,659
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37 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 37 REREER ®)
(A) CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (A REMBRE(E)
(Continued)
2023 2022
—E-= —ZET-
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BERRENEE

equipment (note 8) (MgE8) 4,839 113
(Gain)/loss on re-measurement of existing REBRZEKIB R AR EHT2

interest in a joint venture upon RNEETEIRFERD

conversion to a subsidiary (note 8) (FI13),/E518 (MI5E8) (1,020) 78
Loss on re-measurement of existing REBRENEAGREN=

interest in associate upon conversion to  FAE & A AIIR A S HY E5 1B

a subsidiary (note 8) (MFzE8) 156 =
Gain on settlement of guarantee senior ENBEREBEZRENG

notes (note 8) (PfF7E8) (9,309) (28,997)
Provision for decline in the value of FERYERIFEHEE Y

properties under development and held EE T BEE (i)

for sale (note 9) 190,051 777,813
Reversal of provision recycled to cost of [B] 152 2 35 5 X AN B 43 s 1 [

sales (note 23) (FfF7E23) (4,162) (12,444)
Provision for impairment of financial assets % @& & J# (B B & 194,315 479,215

Operating (loss)/profit before movements in [ & & & ¢ & B 5 FY £ &

working capital (BE),/HH (115,133) 860,540
Decrease/(Increase) in properties held HIEHEWER LD, (EM)

for sale 145,374 (179,196)
Decrease in properties under development 5 3% i ) 3£ &t 2 201,403 4,342,720
(Increase)/decrease in inventories EE1F (3B h0),/ R (389) 2,261
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other JE U BR SR N AL b FE MK - TR 5K

receivables, prepayments and deposits IR,/ ($0) 130,840 (701,651)
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets BHEE LM, R (12,024) 19,042
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other P A1 BR SRR e L i 8 < 3K

payables o, Crd) 122,827 (166,767)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities BHEEEN CRd) 46,392 (3,921,155)
Decrease in advanced proceeds received [ A W ERHY FE S FT1S

from lessees KIER - (25,798)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash SZBR HIER & (38 0n), R (87,725) 68,267
Net cash generated from operations K& EBREFE 521,565 298,263
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37 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(B) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

284

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

37 REeEREER &

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing

activities are those for which cash flows were, or future

cash flow will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

statements of cash flows as cash flows from financing

(B) MEZBFFELSENHR

TR AEEERETHMELAR
MER (BERERIFRSEEH) FE -
BRERPMELENABRARERNE
EHERNERDVER/BETHAFERE
MEMNBEREXRIRERE -

activities.
Amounts Amounts
due to non- due to
Lease  controlling related
Borrowings liabilities interest parties Total
RS EABRBA
R HESE MHEENE B @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥Tr AR¥Tr AR¥Tr AR¥Tx
As at 1 January 2023 R-ZZE_=%—HF—H 7,331,075 120,771 278,560 3,215,262 10,945,668
Cash flows Bene (205,759) (34,349)° - 81,0200  (158,188)
Acquisition — leases Wi - 88 - 11,731 - - 11,731
Cancellation — leases - HE - (5,732) - - (5,732)
Decrease from acquisition of e BB B B 8 B R
subsidiaries - - - (213,505) (213,505)
Deduction of collection of e[GO EN: AN DS
investment of associates and BELENRE
joint ventures - - - (2,550) (2,550)
Gain on settlement of guarantee &R B ERE L ZEH
senior notes (note 8) F15 (P zE8) (9,309) - - - (9,309)
Exchange difference arising from 28 5 E 5 & £ &)
translation of foreign operations ~ [& %, =% 98,886 1,829 - - 100,715
Accrual of interest JEATHI S - 6,275 2,311 16,806 25,392
As at 31 December 2023 RZZZ=F
+-h=+—H 7,214,893 100,525 280,871 3,097,933 10,694,222
Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023



37 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continuec)
(B) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B S o R A R

37 REeEREER &)

(B) MEZHFELEEBNHIRE)

Amounts Amounts
due to non- due to
Lease controlling related
Borrowings liabilities interest parties Total
FERTIERES  ENER R
R HEARE MERIE HIE 5t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR AREFT ARETR ARET:T
As at 1 January 2022 R-ZE-—%—H—H 8,489,619 93,972 269,187 4,558,880 13,411,658
Cash flows Reme (1,584,694) (41,850)0 - (1,181,254  (2,807,798)
Acquisition — leases g —HE - 61,625 - - 61,625
Cancellation — leases diH - M - (6,504) - - (6,504)
Decrease from acquisition of WSk B AR MR
subsidiaries - - - (52,808) (52,808)
Deduction of dividend received ¥R EF 2 AR B WS
from associate companies - - - (88,735) (88,735)
Deduction of collection of BRI B & A B ]
investment of associates and RELENKRE
joint ventures - - - (65,971) (65,971)
Gain on settlement of quarantee AN A ERELZEH
senior notes (note 8) MG (tzE8) (28,997) - - - (28,997)
Exchange difference arising from B E BN EKE LR
translation of foreign operations ~ [& .= 58 433,947 8,466 - 6,517 448,930
Accrual of interest JESTAIS 21,200 5,062 9,373 38,633 74,268
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZB__f
+=-B=+—H 7,331,075 120,771 278,560 3,215,262 10,945,668

(i) The cash flows include financing cash inflow of RMB77,811,000
(2022: outflow of RMB123,863,000) and operating cash inflow of

RMB4,109,000 (2022: outflow of RMB1,057,391,000).

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2023, cash payments for the
interest portion of the lease liability amounted to RMB6,275,000
(2022: RMB5,062,000) and was included in the interest paid of
operating activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows, while
the principal element of lease payment amounted RMB28,074,000
(2022: RMB36,788,000) to was included in financing activities.

Minisk O EHARAE ——

(i)

RERNELERERERAARK
77,811,000 C (ZZE=——F : RHH AR
123,863,0007T) K& & H & m A AR
4,109,000 c (ZZT=Z=F : RH AR
1,057,391,0007T) °

HE-_ZT-_=F+-A=+—RHiItFE A
EAEFEBINBEEARAARKE
6,275,0007C (— T = — 4 : AR¥ 5,062,000
) REEEBRESRERTAKEZTHNE
HFRE MEENKONEAEBHL, AR
28,074,000 (ZZT=—=—F : ARK
36,788,0007T) BT ARLEEE) ©
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38 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

286

U

In March 2023, the Group acquired 50% equity
interest of Chengdu Shanggao Investment Co., Ltd. (a
joint venture of the Group before the acquisition,
“Chengdu Shanggao”) at a total consideration of
RMB1,020,000. After the acquisition, Chengdu
Shanggao became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group.

In February 20283, the Group acquired 72.86% equity
interest of Hangzhou Langning Investment Co., Ltd.
(an associate of the Group before the acquisition,
“Hangzhou Langning”) at a total consideration of
RMB585,000. After the acquisition Hangzhou
Langning became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group.

38 WEEFIE LA
(A) EBEB
() MRZZE_=F=7 xEEZREN
B8 AR 1,020,000 TR ED 5 =
BEBR AR (A5 B UEE TR
ARENE  [REEB]) #150% %
o WEEE  KBEEKAAEE
MEERBAR -

RZZTZ=F=F  rxEEZREK
8 A R #585,000 7T 4 i& #71 MH BA 22
HEER A A (REER KR
g naE  [FNBAE]) /) 72.86%
AR HE - WBE 1% - FTMNBAE R AR S
ENEEHBEAF -

Chengdu Hangzhou
Shanggao” Langning?* Total
REREE" BB e #gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Purchase consideration BERE ARETT ARETT ARETT
— Cash consideration RERE 1,020 585 1,605
— Re-measurement of interests BN EEERER
in a joint venture and NG ey
an associate 1,020 219 1,239
Total consideration BRE 2,040 804 2,844

As at the acquisition date, the carrying amounts
of interests in joint ventures of these company
was RMBnil. The re-measurement of interests
in joint ventures resulted in gain RMB1,020,000
(note 8).

& As at the acquisition date, the carrying amounts
of interests in associate of these company was
RMB 375,000. The re-measurement of interests
in associate resulted in loss of RMB156,000
(note 8).

Landsea Green Management Limited ——— Annual Report 2023

~ REEBRE ZARAEDR
¥ESFAEAARBET -
B EAE L ERREN
25 A R % 1,020,000 7T (B 7E
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38 ACAQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
(i) (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45 A BAS R 3R MY EE
38 WEEKE QT (@)
(A) ¥XKa6t#E)

0o (&)

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the

acquisition are as follows:

Al EmERnEERBENT

Chengdu Hangzhou
Shanggao Langning Total
&R = #1 W BA 22 oy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T AR®EF T AR®BF T
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEBY 1,114 1,097 2211
Trade and other receivables, P ST B R 2 LA PR
prepayments and deposits BNREES 2,636 224,714 227,350
Properties held for sale (note 23)  #{EHE ¥ % (Fi7E23) 42,404 34,967 77,371
Property, plant and equipment W BRE R
(note 20) (B zE20) 83,510 11 83,521
Deferred income tax assets ELFBEHEE
(note 31) (Pt EE31) - 43,298 43,298
Trade and other payables JRE <] B X e L At JE -1 3K (108,715) (141,201) (249,916)
Contract liabilities AREE (946) - (946)
Current income tax liabilities BIErR ST B E (10,892) (162,082) (172,974)
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMEHAR
(note 31) (PE31) (7,071) - (7,071)
Total acquired net assets at BARBEMKED
fair value HEEERE 2,040 804 2,844
Cash outflow on acquisition: MRS
Total consideration settled by cash AR & N H KB 1,020 585 1,605
Cash acquired in the subsidiary W EEFTUREEHI B A 7 HY
acquired Be (1,114) (1,097) 2,211)
Cash inflow on acquisition WENEERA (94) (512) (606)

The acquired business contributed revenues of
RMB870,000 and loss of RMB5,330,000 to the
Group for the period from their respective date of

acquisition to 31 December 2023.

Minisk O EHARAE ——

BWERESEE _—_E_=F+_#
=+—HIEHE - TR ER AR
EES R EBIBRAARE ST BT K
BB ARSI ETT °

SR =FER
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38 ACAQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

288

(A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
(i) (Continued)

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2023,
consolidated pro-forma loss for the year ended 31
December 2023 would have RMB13,490,000 lower.
These amounts have been calculated using the

subsidiaries’ results and adjusting them for:

o differences in the accounting policies between

the Group and the subsidiaries, and

° additional cost of sales that would have been
charged assuming the fair value adjustments to
properties under development had applied from
1 January 2023, together with the consequential

tax effects.

(i)  On 11 May 2022, the Group acquired 65% equity
interest of Zhongfu Leling (Tianjin) Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(a joint venture of the Group before the acquisition,
“Zhongfu Leling”) at a total consideration of
RMB21,079,000. After the acquisition, Zhongfu Leling
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

On 18 January 2022, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest of HFB at a total consideration of
US$262,584,000 (equivalent to RMB1,673,868,000).
After the acquisition, HFB became a wholly-owned

38

WEEH B D B (&)
(A) ¥Ka6t#E)

U)

(%)
MKER—_E=-_=F—H—HE
BAxE CHE_ZE_=F+=A
=+ HLEFENGEAHEESR
Bl 4> A R # 13,490,000 7T ° 3%
ELHALUTHABRENHEB A
RIEZFESET -

s AEEANNMBARZHENE
ABRER R

e BRU-FT_=%F—H—H
EHFREEFRYERETARE
B F 2 - B RJ RE I H0 A9 BR S
HE KA - A MR R UL

B2 988
=

R-E-_—_FRA+—H A&£E
AR E AR 21,079,000 T W B
PR (KE)BEXBERAR (K
SERKENNEGEDLE [HE
B ) BIE5%ARIE - WETE - 1R
BRRANEENZENBAR -

R-ZE-_—F—AF+\B KX&EE
2 48 K {8 262,584,000 7T (B E R
A R #1,673,868,0007T) Y i HFB
) 100% i  WiE1& - HFBAX A7

subsidiary of the Group. EEMNEEMBAR °
Zhongfu
Leling" HFB Total
HEgE" HFB HEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Purchase consideration BERE ARBT T ARETTT AREFIT
— Cash consideration —BeRE 21,079 1,673,868 1,694,947
— Re-measurement of interests — BFEGED
in a joint venture s 11,350 = 11,350
Total consideration BRE 32,429 1,673,868 1,706,297
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38 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)
" As at the acquisition date, the carrying amounts
of interests in joint ventures of these company
was BRMB11,428,000. The re-measurement of
interests in joint ventures resulted in loss of

RMB78,000 (note 8).

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

38 UWiBKE Rl (&)
(A) ¥EBEHtE)
@i (&)

~ REBBEH ZERRRE
Er¥ERTNEEEAAR
#11,428,000 T - EF T 2
BECERTERBEEAR
¥ 78,000 7T (FsE8) °

R EmERNEERABENT

acquisition are as follows:

Zhongfu
Leling HFB Total
SRR o HFB st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BF T ARETT ARETT
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEED 3,621 24,587 28,208
Trade and other receivables, JFE AT B R 2 L PR

prepayments and deposits ‘R EES 92,007 2,410 94,417
Properties under development FEE R Y% (F5E25)

(note 25) 22,182 1,479,360 1,501,542
Properties held for sale (note 23)  #{ESHE ¥ 2 (Fi5E23) 28,266 = 28,266
Property, plant and equipment YN 15 10,136 10,151
Deferred tax assets EERTAE E 14,172 = 14,172
Trade and other payables JRE 1T B X R L At JE -1 3R (118,864) (40,346) (159,210)
Contract liabilities AREE (8,970) (83,922) (92,892)
Net identifiable assets acquired BARBEMKERD

at fair value A ARHEE 32,429 1,392,225 1,424,654
Goodwill (note 22) 2 (fiE22) - 281,643 281,643
Total acquired net assets at fair value 3% A 7 (B (B A 4 B 1)

FERERE 32,429 1,673,868 1,706,297
Cash outflow on acquisition: WHEREE R
Total consideration settled by cash AR & N H B KB 21,079 1,673,868 1,694,947
Cash acquired in the subsidiary W B FT U B I B 2 R /Y

acquired Be (3,621) (24,587) (28,208)
Cash outflow on acquisition WEEEER £ 17,458 1,649,281 1,666,739
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38 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 WEEKME AR &)
(A) ¥Ka6t#E)

(A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(i)  (Continued)
The Goodwill is attributable to the workforce and the high
profitability of the acquired business. It is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes over 15 years.

The acquired business contributed revenues of
RMB2,147.35 million and profit of RMB119.82 million
to the Group for the period from their respective date
of acquisition to 31 December 2022.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2022,
consolidated pro-forma revenue for the year ended
31 December 2022 would have RMB32.51 million
higher and loss for the year ended 31 December
2022 would have RMBO0.02 million lower. These
amounts have been calculated using the subsidiaries’
results and adjusting them for:

° differences in the accounting policies between
the Group and the subsidiaries, and

° additional cost of sales that would have been
charged assuming the fair value adjustments to
properties under development had applied from
1 January 2023, together with the
consequential tax effects.

(B) ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
On 18 April 2022, the Group acquired 49.9% equity interest
of Nanjing Langrun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (a
joint venture of the Group before the acquisition, “Nanjing
Langrun”) at a total consideration of RMB29,940,000.
After the acquisition, Nanjing Langrun became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group.
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B2 48R
o

(B) ERVWBEHELARAKNBEERSE

&

R-ZZE-__FHNA+NEB  AEERE
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38 ACAQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(B) ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
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38 WEEKE QT (@)

(B) BBWENBLARWBEERSE

THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES & (&)
(Continued)
The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the ETHEE=EmMEANEERAEN
acquisition are as follows: T s
Nanjing
Langrun
[Ep:E R
RMB’000
ARET T
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEFED 7
Trade and other receivables, prepayments and FEUBER R M E MWK - R kIES
deposits 75,890
Property, plant and equipment VI - HE RERE 2
Trade and other payables JE AT AR SR N EL At FE - 5k (15,637)
Contract liabilities BRAEE (262)
Total acquired net assets Bl FEEETE 60,000
Less: interest in joint ventures B RNEEDENERS (30,060)
Total acquired net assets at fair value BARBETENEWEFEERT 29,940
Cash outflow on acquisition: WIEFEERE R
Total consideration wRE 29,940
Considerations settled by receivables LA P& WK 32 - 9 AR AB (29,940)
Cash acquired in the subsidiary acquired BB AR EWEEIRS @)
Cash inflow on acquisition WEEE=IRI[ER/A ()
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, acquisition ARREERA  WEZKHB A RILT

of such subsidiary does not constitute a business.
Therefore, the transaction was determined by the directors
of the Company to be acquisition of assets and liabilities
through acquisition of subsidiary rather than a business

combination as defined in HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business

Combination.

BRER - At ARAREFBEEZR
SRBBEBENBERARKBEELA
18 MIFEBPBREERSE 35 (FE
1) EXB AR EMERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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A5 BB ik R BT

39 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
On 24 October 2022, the Group entered into agreements with
the LAO VI CN Company VI Pte. Ltd, to dispose its 100% equity
interests of Shanghai Langsong Industrial Co., Ltd (/&R E
¥ AR A @, an independent third party) (“Shanghai
Langsong”) at a consideration of RMB102,490,000.

Net assets disposed with reconciliation of disposal loss and cash

39 HEKBRQFE

RZTEZZF+AZ+MA AEEHELAO
VI CN Company VI Pte. Ltd 5] 32 #33% » A&
HR EBHANMEEBERAR (BYE=F)
([EEER]) M100% B #E - REAARK
102,490,000 JT °

EHEFEERHEBFRNMASRANHER

292

inflow are as follows: wm
Shanghai
Langsong
sb:=3: RN
RMB’000
ARET T
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREFEEY 383
Trade and other receivables, prepayments and JEBR R R A RIS - AR R K IZS
deposits SIe
Deferred income tax assets BLEFTB R EE 15,093
Investment properties A Y2 321,400
Trade and other payables JE A1 BR SR N L At FE A~ 3k (151,192)
Group’s share of net assets disposed of AEESEELHEFEE 186,057
Consideration from disposal HERE (102,490)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 8) HEWB AR ESE (MH:ES) 83,567
Total consideration BRE 102,490
Other receivables H A e UK (10,249
Less: Cash and cash equivalents in the disposed B HENBARMNESRAEEEY
subsidiaries (383)
Net cash inflow arising on the disposals HEEENRSRAFEE 91,858
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40 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to those related party balances and transactions
elsewhere disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following significant balances and transactions:

(A) AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

40 BBATEHRREXS

BRI mREMAB Y AR EMN B &
BERZIN  REBBEATERGEHRERS

(A) BB KA

2023 2022
—E-= B F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBETT

Included in current assets (note 27): SFARBEE (Hix27) :
— Associates (i) — B R A () 258,306 262,323
— Joint ventures (i) — B E () 1,063,577 1,378,142
— Ultimate controlling company and its — RBERRAIR
fellow subsidiaries HRARKE QA 3,237 6,348
1,325,120 1,646,813
Less: provision for loss allowance B SRR (B EES.1 (o))
(note 3.1(0)(ii) (764,538) (756,673)
560,582 890,140

(i) As of 31 December 2023 and 2022, amounts due from associates
are interest-free.

(ii) As of 31 December 2023 and 2022, current amounts due from joint
ventures include RMB76,289,966 (2022: RMB241,788,000) bearing
interest at 10% (2022: 10%) per annum and the remaining amounts
are interest-free.

All amounts due from related parties are unsecured.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from related parties
approximate their fair values.

[0) BE_ T =T -_—F+-_A=+—
B EREERRRELRRES

(i) BHE-ZT-_=FR-ZF-__F+-A=+—
B ERAECERDAEREARE
76,289,966 L (T = 4F : ARK
241,788,0007T) ' HEF E10% (Z T ==
F:10%)FTE - EfRARE -

P e M BR B 05 SRR A AR

FEM AR T AR REEEE AR EE
HE -
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40 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(B) AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

40 BB L ERERS (#)
(B) FE(SEAES TS R IE

2023 2022
—E-= —_=__
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
Included in non-current liabilities (note 29): s+ AJEREN & & (Mt F£29) :
— Joint ventures (i) — & BE - 8,443
Included in current liabilities (note 29): FFARB A E (HFE29) :
— Associates (i) — BN A (i) 1,198,085 1,866,552
— Joint ventures (i) — & &b i) 1,880,806 1,318,052
— Ultimate controlling company and — REERAE R
its fellow subsidiaries (iii) E R 2 M & 2 7 (i) 19,042 22,215
3,097,933 3,206,819

(0} As of 31 December 2023, current amounts due to associates are

interest-free.

As of 31 December 2022, current amounts due to associates include
RMB121,810,000 bearing interest at 3.00% per annum and the

remaining amounts are interest-free.

(i) As of 31 December 2023 and 2022, non-current amounts due to
joint ventures are interest-free. Current amounts due to joint ventures
include RMB200,000,000 (2022: RMB200,000,000) bearing interest
from 6.60% to 15.00% (2022: 6.60% to 15.00%) per annum and the

remaining amounts are interest-free.

(i) As of 31 December 2023 and 2022, current amount due to ultimate
controlling company and its fellow subsidiaries are interest-free.

All amounts due to related parties are unsecured.

294
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(i)

(i)

R-ZZE_=F+-A=+—H BHBEEAQ
ARBRERRS

R-TB-_—&E+—-A=+—0 EMNHLL
Al E BB IE AR 121,810,000 T * 7
FHZEZ00%5TE F AR S o

HE-T-=-GR-_F-_—_F+=-A=1+—
A ENEEARFERBDAEBEREE - B
& &1 XN B E 8 5 A R % 200,000,000
T (ZZ =% : AR%200,000,0007T)
12 K| & 6.60% = 15.00% (ZFE = =
6.60% = 15.00%) 71 8. * EfpE 8 -

BE-ZT-=GR-_ZF-__F+=-A=+—
A EMRKRERARRERRHB QRN
BRIEARE °

B FE - RE RS 00 SRR SR o



40 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS (continuead)

(€)

(D)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

40 BB ERRER S (&)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (C) EWER
2023 2022
—BC-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Included in current assets (note 27): FTARBEE (FIFE27) -
— Associates — BN A 35,890 40,075
— Joint ventures — B 132,196 144,706
— Ultimate controlling company and its — RERERRFI R
fellow subsidiaries HRAZRME QR 4,363 1,569
172,449 186,350
Less: provision for loss allowance R R (M RE3.1(0)())
(note 3.1(b)(i)) (102,638) (835,612)
69,811 150,738
CONTRACT ASSETS (D) EHEE
2023 2022
—B-=F —FE-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETIT
Associates — BN A 4,473 4,473
Joint ventures —aEhH¥ 56,909 64,448
Ultimate controlling company and — REERAE R
its fellow subsidiaries HRAZME AT 5,250 2,250
66,632 71,171
Less: provision for loss allowance B R (BT RE3.1(0)())
(note 3.1(b)(i) (15,794) (4,917)
50,838 66,254

W Ak 0 A R 2 H
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40 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

296

TRANSACTIONS (continuead)
(E) BORROWINGS

(E) fE=K

40 FEBLERRRS &)

2023 2022
—EB-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
Ultimate controlling company (note 31) EARERR AR (M7E31) 367,043 356,220
(F) TRADE PAYABLES (F) FEFERX
2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTIT
Joint ventures B - 800
Ultimate controlling company and its REERRAT R
fellow subsidiaries HRAZRWEB AR 59,088 48,692
59,088 49,492
(G) GUARANTEE (G) TR
2023 2022
—E-=F B F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AREFIT
Guarantee in respect of related parties’ BLEEEE 75 (& IR AR
borrowings (note 41) (M5E41) - 102,400
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40 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continuead)
(H) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(i)  Funding with related parties

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

40 BB L ERRERS &)

H BRBLIXZ
() BHEBFEXREE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-B-_=ZFf+t-A=+-BLEE

Funding to Collection of funding
related parties to related parties
mEBLREES mEBHLREES
Operating Investing Operating Investing
ge RE Re RE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTR ARETR AR®TxR

Associates =N 431 - 4,416 -
Joint ventures RERE 900,772 15,500 899,050 252,761
Ultimate controling company ~ S48$2R% A 8]
and its fellow subsidiaries HRZNER A 9,576 - 12,687 -
910,779 15,500 916,153 252,761
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-Z-_=Ft+-A=+-HLEFE
Proceeds from Repayment to
related parties related parties
mEH S WREE mEHLEEES
Operating Financing Operating Financing
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRT AR®Tn AR¥BTRT AR%Tx
Associates NG| 220,018 102,101 207,169 20,422
Joint ventures BELE 881,637 - 886,213 3,868
Ultimate controlling company & &2 A ] K
and its fellow subsidiaries HRAZME AR 254,015 - 258,178 -
1,355,670 102,101 1,351,560 24,290
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40 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(H) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(i)  Funding with related parties (Continued)

40 FEBLERRRS &)

(H BRBLITXZ &)
() HEBSZEFXEE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_E-—&+-F=1+—RHIEE

Funding to Collection of funding
related parties to related parties
MBS REES e W EE e
Operating Investing Operating Investing
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETR

Associates i AY/NG - - 163 =
Joint ventures BEME 2,056,881 80,971 2,002,219 77,914
Ultimate controlling company &2 AR &
and its fellow subsidiaries ERZWERA 5,829 = 277 =
2,062,710 80,971 2,002,659 77,914
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-_—F+-_A=+—HILEE
Proceeds from Repayment to
related parties related parties
AR MR € mEKAEREES
Operating Financing Operating Financing
g RME e BE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT ARETRT ARETT
Associates NG| 182,811 191,454 51,520 214,010
Joint ventures AELE 1,698,349 - 1,416,699 20,972
Ultimate controlling company &AL A Al &
and its fellow subsidiaries HRZMEB AR 3,872,512 - 4,023,901 -
5,653,672 191,454 5,492,120 234,982
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40 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS (continuead)

(H) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(il Management services, other income and (i)

finance cost

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

40 BB L ERRERS &)

(H BBLEXZ @)

EERE - Atz REEHKA

2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Management services income from REBEATREEDPEY
associates and joint ventures (a) BRI (a) 50,220 19,315
Management services income from RERZER R AIRIR R
fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate B8 A B2 B AR WA (b)
controlling company (b) 3,608 62,390
Rent income from fellow subsidiaries of 2R B & 41 I A A1 Y[R &
the ultimate controlling company (c) oY= RN i e el (o) 2,770 2,803
Rent income from fellow subsidiaries of & B & 42 1252 i% i 3R A9 [/] &
the ultimate controlling shareholder WEAR e ke 1,339 690
Construction design service fee paid to A1 H AR I A &K
fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate RREMBRARZNZ
controlling company (d) BERZFRBE () 2,610 740
Property management service fee paid A& 4335 A% A & &9
to fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate RREMBRARZNZ
controlling company (d) MEEERBE () 11,426 36,474
Purchase of green architecture W AR A AR AR R Y
technological products and services RARWNEAREERE
from fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate 2 SE 5 47 2 5 M AR 75 (d)
controlling shareholder (d) 28,646 27,845
Interest income on amounts due from  FEULE & EFKIE 2 FI B WA
joint ventures (note 7) (Pf7E7) 13,231 14,504
Interest expense on loans from RETBERARZ
the ultimate controlling company EFRFEER (MzE11)
(note 11) 16,815 35,576
Interest expense on loans from REBERRZERFEER
associates (note 11) (PfF=E11) - 4,539
Interest expense on loans from KEAELEZERFEER
joint ventures (note 11) (FgEE11) 16,870 35,028
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40 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(H) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(i) Management services, other income and
finance cost (Continued)

300

(@)

Landsea Green Management Limited ———

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group continuously provided management services to its
associates and joint ventures. The prices of these services
are based on the prevailing market prices of similar services.

Pursuant to the management services agreement entered
into between the Group and its ultimate controlling company,
the Group provided certain development management
services, sales management services and green product
integration services to fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate
controlling company during the year ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

Pursuant to the rental agreement entered into between the
Group and its ultimate controlling company, the Group
provided certain services to fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate
controlling company during the year ended 31 December
2023 and 2022. The prices of these services are based on
the prevailing market prices of similar services provided by
the Group to independent third parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group purchased certain green architecture technological
products and services, decoration services, property
management services and properties consulting services
from fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate controlling
shareholder. The prices of products and services were based
on the prevailing market prices of similar products and
services.

The ultimate holding company provided interest bearing
loans to the Group during the year. The interest expense on
loans is based on prevailing market interest rate and is
exempted from the reporting and disclosure requirement
pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

Annual Report 2023

40 BB L ERERS (#)

(H BRBLITXZ &)
EERE - Atz REEHAA

(i)

(&)
(@)

BE-_T-_=FR-_FT-_—_F+=
A=T—BLEFE  AEBFERH
BARRAECERETERE -
ZERBUAURB ZETTES
EEREAE -

RIS B B H & 4842 iR A B AT 32
ZEBRGEHE BE_T-=FK
:%::¢+*ﬁ7+—amﬁﬁ
REE R FEZERAB®RRK B
ARREETHEERRE HEE
BRI RECERESRY -

RBEBEAEE R F EQQTJ4
ZHEHZ if;Z_E&
::$+7ﬁ:+—ﬁtig$$
HARAERDAKRRNE QAR
REETIRE - ZERBUALEER
BULE=HIRBEZEURY 2R
TEAEMBELE-

BE-_T_=FR-_FT__—F+—
A=+—BIEFE  AEERZKE
ERRIMRZKE AR EES T
REFIEMRRS - ZMHRE
MEEERBRDELARY - 2F
EmRRBABUER KRB 2R
TH{EAEBEEE -

FR - BRERARAAEEBRES
BEX - ERAEBRA NIRRT S
FMEAFHE RELEWHUE
14A.90 (IEEA B <F AR R IR FRARE ©



40 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continuead)
(H) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Management services, other income and

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

40 BB L ERRERS &)

(H B¥RRZ (4
(i) EZRE Rtz REBEKK

finance cost (Continued) (&)
Included in employee benefit expenses are key EERMNERBEREUTER
management personnel compensations which ZEEEBEABHIE
comprises the following categories:
2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Short term employee benefits EHEEER 7,215 8,857
Contributions to retirement benefits RIREF T B K
schemes 172 280
Restricted share award PR 6114 % 17 A2 B 1,460 2,098
8,847 11,235

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

Apart from the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions disclosed in the
section headed “Connected Transactions and
Continuing Connected Transactions” in the Directors’
Report, all the other related party transactions did not
fall under the scope of “Connected Transactions” or
“Continuing Connected Transactions” under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules which are required to comply
with any of the reporting, announcement or
independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Minisk O EHARAE ——

(iii) FEIBIEX S H L iR Al #E F
/i3
BREERRE (BEXSHRFER
BRI G|—HMBEENEERS R
BEBEZZIN B H M5
FRSWABR T A5 14A
EETIBEXSIKFERER
S IMEE - E|AEBT ETAREE
YAZB THEMER A5 BE
SRR ALEIRE ©
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41

302

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 41 LAEE
GUARANTEE ER
2023 2022
—ZE:-= —T=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ART ARETTT
Guarantee in respect of mortgage METERZIZBRE
facilities for certain purchasers (a) REHER @) 726,405 993,914
Guarantee in respect of related parties’ LR 77 15 FUR EE R (b)
borrowings (b) - 102,400
726,405 1,096,314

(@) The Group cooperated with various financial institutions to arrange
mortgaged loan facilities for the purchasers of its properties and provided
guarantees to secure such purchasers’ obligation of repayments. Such
guarantees will be released by banks upon earlier of the issuance of the real
estate ownership certificate and the satisfaction of relevant mortgaged loan.
In the opinion of directors of the Company, the fair value of the financial

guarantee contracts is not significant.

(b) As at 31 December 2022, the Group provided guarantee to Guangzhou
Langxiu Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd., a 33% joint venture of
the Group, for its bank borrowing with the amount of RMB102,400,000.
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@ AEEEZREBEEBAE REMEBERRZHEZ
BEFMELRZEERZERAERHEER -F
BAERENE R E A EEREERBEN (A
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42 COMMITMENTS
(A) OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group — As lessee

The Group leases various offices, equipment and vehicles
under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within six
months to five years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the
terms of the leases are renegotiated.

The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for these
leases, except for short-term and low-value leases.

The Group — As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties under operating
lease arrangements, with lease terms ranging from one to
twenty years, and with an option to renew the lease terms
at the expiry date or at the date as mutually agreed
between the Group and respective tenants. The terms of
the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At the reporting date, the Group has contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B S o R A R

42 FEIE
(A) REBESTH

rEE — FEREBA
AEBRBEIAIBHLEHEERET
WAE - RERE - BERAEAE
hFERER - BERTA TR - N
R R EEEN - EHER - HERKA
BEMER -

AEERZSHERRAERREE K
R MMEEERERD -

FEE — ERHBEA

AEERBEERERFHBERKREN
ME HANF—E_+F AEER
@A R AR EEEESERBE
REEM - HE KRR —RAERP A
FREZ LRBERRITTRE BAEME

S
& e

RifE B AEEEATRASTH

ZARRFEBERK
2023 2022
—B-=F —T-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Within one year —F R
Later than one year but no later
than five years

—FRETBBRF

12,937 1,725
4,776 416
17,713 2,141
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42 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 42 FEIE (B
(B) DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE (B) B HHi&AE
COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had the following R-_EBE-_=F+—-_A=+—H &x5H
development expenditure commitments: BT HEAENT
2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T
Contracted but not provided for: BRI 4B R B
— Development expenditure — T 221,060 220,303
— Purchase of freehold land —BEKAEEL 5,238,703 4,861,933
5,459,763 5,082,236
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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43 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43 FEMBE QT
The Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023 are A—TEBE-=F+-_fA=+—H AEEXTE
set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital MEAREHIMT - BREBHAEN  ZF
consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held directly by the NEAMBEANERAEEEEFAEN T ARKA
Group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the B TSN ASERAEBR
voting rights held by the Group. The country of incorporation or AHRERE - FMAZIHFMBERTAZE
registration is also their principal place of business. NAEIRE R A
Place of
incorporation/ Ownership interests held
establishment Registered capital/ by the Group Directly owned or
Name of entity and operations Kind of legal entity ~issued share capital As at 31 December indirectly owned  Principal activities
HEL/ iRA/ RT=A=t-RA%%E EREA
157 HYREELY EERRER BfRA fsRARRE ERER IBEH
2023 2022
ZEIZE -ZoCF
% %
(athay Holdings Limited (o) Hong Kong Limited liaiity company 2 shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
BEREEERAT(D) B BEREfAT 2R BRIET g% REERK
China Information Industry Limited (o) Hong Kong Limited fiabilty company 2 shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Indlrect Investment holding
HEEEEXBRAA) (i BEREfAT 2R BRIET ik REERK
Green Future Holdings Limited (o) Hong Kong Limited liaoifty company 1 share of HK$1 100 100 Direct Investment holding
FERTERABAA ) (i BEREfAT 1R 8R1ET g% REERK
Green Homeland Limited (o) Hong Kong Limited liabilty company 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
HEFRERRA () &% ERERRA 1R 8R1ET g% REERK
Green Theme Limited (o) Hong Kong Limited liabilty company 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
(i BEREfAT 1R 8R1ET g% REERK
New Phenomenon Technology Limited (b) BVI Limited liabity company 1 share of US$1 100 100 Direct Investment holding
EBRARES BEREfAT 1 BR1%T g% REERK
Aqua Sky Limited (b) Hong Kong Limited liabilty company 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
HEERAT D) &% ERERRA 1R 8R1ET g% REERK
Easy Shine Global Limited (b) Hong Kong Limited liabilty company 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
RAFRERAT D) B BEREfAT 1R 8R1ET g% REERK
Green Era Limited (b) BVI Limited liabity company 1 share of US$1 100 100 Direct Investment holding
EBRARES BEREfAT 1 BR1%T g% REERK
Power sky enterprises Limited (o) Hong Kong Limited liabilty company 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
AREZERARD) B BEREfAT 1R 8R1ET g% REERK
Prosperous eagle Limited (o) Hong Kong Limited liabilty company 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
EaBERAAM) &% ERERRA 1R 8R1ET g% REERK
Landsky Investment Holdings Limited (o) Hong Kong Limited liabilty company 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
PRREARERAR D) (i BEREfAT 1R 8R1ET g% REERK
Shanghai Landsea Investment Mainland China Limited liabity company ~ US $5,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
Management Limited*
LA ERARAR REM BREFRA 500000057 i REER
MrEgarnrRen —— —Fo=gek BIK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 BB ik R BT

43 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continuec) 43 FEMBE QT ®)

306

Place of
incorporation/ Ownership interests held
establishment Registered capital/ by the Group Directly owned or
Name of entity and operations Kind of legal entity ~ issued share capital As at 31 December indirectly owned Principal activities
iR/ R4 RT=A=t-RA%%H EiER
B4R RIREEDY EERREN RkA fsRERRSR IEEER IERK
2023 2002
“E-zfE ZB_CfF
% %
Shanghai Langming Property Mainland China Limited liabilty company - RMB50,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
development Limited*
LERSEEREARA A HE R EREMAT AR¥50,000,00070 73 RHERE
Beihai Langyue Enterprise Management Mainland China Limited liability company - RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
Consutting Co., Ltd.*
TERAF ERAARRAT hEN BREMAT AB#10000,0007 ik RARR
Nanjing Xubohui Enterprise Mainland China Limited liabilty company -~ RMB100,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
Management Co, Ltd.*
R EEELRERERAR" REIR BREFRA AR 100,000,007 ik REAR
Nanjing Landsea Investment Mainland China Limited liabilty company -~ RMB200,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holaing
Management Limited*
BRRRRAERERARY HE R EREMAT 20000000070 7 RABR
Nanjing Wangjiawan Logistics Centre Co., Ltd.*  Mainland China Limited liability company ~ RMB106,116,346 60 60 Indirect Property development
Er AR HEEEERARAR HE R EREMAT ARH106,116, 34670 7 RHERE
Xi'an Jiapeng Real Estate Mainland China Limited liability company - RMB20,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
Development Co., Ltd. *
EXEREEREERAR hEN BREMAR ABE#20,000,0007 73 FHERY
Nanjing Langming Properties Group Limited* Mainland China Limited liability company - RMB2,000,000,000 100 100 Indlrect Investment holding
AR ESEARAA hEN ERERRA ARH2,000,0000007 B REER
Nanjing Xinzhousheng Investment Mainland China Limited liability company  RMB350,000,000 100 100 Indlrect Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.*
ERaNEREERERAR" HER EREAAR AR 350,0000007T i RELk
Znhongfuyiyang (Tianjin) Real Estate Co., Lid. Mainland China Limited liability company ~ RMB100,000,000 75 75 Indirect Property development
hEEE (N2 EXARAAY RER BREFRA AR 100,000,00070 [ BEHERE
Tianjin Langyue Real Estate Mainland China Limited liabilty company - RMB50,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*
RERHEHEREARAAM HE R EREMAT AR¥50,000,00070 7 FHERE
Ningbo Landsea Enterprise Management Mainland China Limited liability company  RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
Gonsulting Co., Ltd.*
ERAHOEERANERAAY hEN BEREMAR AR 10,000,007 73 RARR
Chengdu Deshang Rongda Mainland China Limited liability company - RMB25,000,000 60 60 Indirect Property development
Real Estate Co., Ltd. " (c)
RACHXEEXERAR ) RER BREFRA ARH25,0000007 [ BEHERE
Chengau Landsea Enterprise Management Mainland China Limited liabilty company - RMB200,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holaing
Consulting Co., Ltd.*
AR ERAAERAR HE R EREMAT AR200,0000007T 7 RABR
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Place of
incorporation/ Ownership interests held
establishment Registered capital/ by the Group Directly owned or
Name of entity and operations Kind of legal entity ~ issued share capital As at 31 December indirectly owned  Principal activities
AR/ R4 RT=A=t-A%%H ERER
B4R RIREEDY EERREN Rikx fsRARRR AEEER IERK
2023 2002
“B-ZE ZB-Cf
% %
Suzhou Langkun Property Limited* Mainland China Limited liabilty company -~ RMB100,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
FMaEXARAR " REY EREEAR AR 100,000,00070 [ FEHERE
Suzhou Langming Management Mainland China Limited liability company - RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holaing
Consutting Co., Ltd.*
SN EREARRAR hERY EREMAT AR¥ 10,000,007 R REER
Chongging Langhua Real Estate Mainland China Limited liability company - RMB50,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*(d)
EEMERNERTARAA() hEM BEREMAT AR %50,00000070 3 FHERY
Chengdu Langming Property Limited™ Mainland China Limited liability company  RMB8,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
HARHEXERRA HERH BEREMAT AR 80000007 3 RARR
Suzhou Langrui Management Mainland China Limited liability company - RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd.*
MR EREARRAR REY EREEAR ARH10,0000007 [ RERR
Suzhou Langxu Management Mainland China Limited liability company - RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holaing
Consutting Co., Ltd.*
FNFAEREARRAR hERY EREMAT AR¥10,000,00070 R REER
Beiing Landsea Investment Mainland China Limited liability company  RMB100,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
Management Limited™*
IR RAERERAR hEM ERERRA AR 100,000,007 Bk RERR
Hangzhou Pujun Enterprise Management Mainland China Limited liability company - RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd.*
MRS FEREAERAR HER ERERAT AR %5,0000007 [ RESkK
Nanjing Langging Real Estate Co., Ltd.* Mainland China Limited liabiity company ~ HK$1,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
BRPREXARAR" REY BREFRA 1,000,007 [ FEHERE
Chengdu Langsong Enterprise Management Mainland China Limited liability company - RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holaing
Consutting Co., Ltd.*
RARE R EREARRAR hERY EREMAT AR %5,0000007 R REER
Suzhou Langyou Industrial Co., Ltd.* Mainland China Limited liability company - RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
FNARERERAR hERY EREMAT AR¥ 10,000,007 R RHERE
Nanjing Xinhuisheng Investment Mainland China Limited liability company - RMB8,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
Management Co,, Ltd.*
ERAREREERERAR HER BEREfAT AR 80000007 & RARR
Chengdu Langduo Enterprise Management Mainland China Limited liability company - RMB30,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd*(c)
RARECREREABRAD () RERY ERELAR ARRH 30,000,007 [ RERR
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43 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continuec) 43 FEMBE QT ®)
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Place of
incorporation/ Ownership interests held
establishment Registered capital/ by the Group Directly owned or
Name of entity and operations Kind of legal entity ~ issued share capital As at 31 December indirectly owned Principal activities
HRRL/ R4 RT=A=t-RA%%H EiER
B4R HYREESY EERREN RkA FaRRRRS IEEER IBER
2023 2002
“E-CE St
% %
Shanghai Langxian Enterprise Management Mainland China Limited liability company - RMB30,000,000 100 100 Indlrect Investment holoing
Consulting Co., Ltd.*
LERRAERANERAR R EREFAR AE30,00000070 3 RABR
Shanghai Langxu Management Mainland China Limited liability company - RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
Consulting Co. Lta"™
LEBERFERERERAR HE R BREMAT AB#10000,0007 74 RARR
Nanjing Liangshu Building Materials Co., Ltd.* Mainland China Limited liability company - RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indlrect Investment holding
R RBRENHERAR HE R BEREMAR A 10,000,007 74 RARR
Chengdu Shanggao Investment Co., Ltd. Mainland China Limited liabilty company - RMB30,000,000 100 50 Indirect Investment holding
BARRREERAA HER BEREMAR 30,000,007 ] RARR
Hangzhou Langning Investment Co., Ltd. Mainland China Limited liability company - RMBY950,000 100 2114 Indirect Investment holding
MNBREREERAA HE R BREMAR ARE9500007 74 RARR
Landsea Holoings Corporation US Limited liabiity company ~ US$327,272,149 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
*H BREEAH R7212,10% T k3 REER
Landsea Equity LLC US Limited liabiity company ~ US$51,877,426 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
£l BEREEAH 5187746% T k& REER
Landsea Homes Corporation US Limited liabiity company ~ US$42,110,794 54,05 5802  Indirect Real estate development
and sales US
*H BREFRA Q.1107UET [ BHERERHE - 8
15-0C Portola LLG US Limited liabiity company ~ US$165,497,892 54,05 5802 Indirect Real estate development
and sales US
%8 EREFAR 165,497,802 T 53 FHERERIE - £
LS-SF Jordan Ranch LLC US Limited liabity company ~ US$19,900,870 54.05 5802 Indirect Real estate development
and sales US
8 BREMAT 19.900870% 2 73 FHERLRIE - 8
SF Vale LLC (a) US Limited liabiity company  US$9,000,000 5 5 Indirect Investment holding
*H BEREEAH 9,000,000%7C Rk REER
LS-LASmiLLC Us Limited liaifty company ~ US$40,687,727 54.05 5802 Indirect Real estate development
and sales US
*H ARERAH 40687,721% 70 [ BHERERHE - 8
Pinnacle West Homes Holding LLC US Limited liabiity company ~ US$175,736,379 54,05 5802  Indirect Investment holaing
*H EREAAR 175,736,379% T [ RESk
Pinnacle West Homes and Development LLG US Limited liabilty company - 54,05 5802  Indirect Investment holaing
X8 ERERAT - i RAER

Landsea Green Management Limited

——— Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B BB ik R B

43 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43 T EWB QR &)
Place of
incorporation/ Ownership interests held
establishment Registered capital/ by the Group Directly owned or
Name of entity and operations Kind of legal entity ~ issued share capital As at 31 December indirectly owned  Principal activities
AR/ s/ RT=A=t-RAKE ERHA
L1 E RIREEDY EERESA RRA itz L5 SHEEE IERH
2023 2022
“B-ZE ZB-Cf
% %
Garrett Walker Homes, LLC Us Limited liabity company ~ US$64,117,694 54.05 5802 Indirect Real estate development
and sales US
%A BREEAR 64,1764 TT i PUHEREREE - %8
Landsea Homes of Florida LLC US Limited liabiity company ~ US$55,449,934 54,05 5802  Indirect Investment holaing
%A BRELAR 55,449,934 5TT i REER
Landsea Homes of Texas LLC US Limited fiabiity company ~ US$568,633 54,05 5802  Indirect Investment holaing
%A BREEAR 568,633 %0 i REER
HFB us Limited liabiity company  US$262,583,495 54,05 5802  Indirect Real estate development
and sales US
*H ERELAT 262,583,495 L B FHEREREE - 8
212W93rd JVLLC US Limited liabity company  U3$55,111,436 100 100 Indirect Real estate development
and sales US
xH ERERRA 56,1114365% 7T i BHERERHEE - %8
Epic China Limited BVI Limited fiabilty company ~ US$50,000,000 100 100 Indlrect Investment holaing
ABERRES EREEAR 50000000%7 B REER
# Limited liability company registered in Mainland China # RERAER 2 5B AR
English translations are for identification purpose only @ Y2 FEE R
(a) The Group is the only managing member of the Company. @ AEBEAEZATE—EEKE -
(b) The senior notes (note 31) are fully and unconditionally guaranteed on a (b) BEEE (H:F31) ALSHB AT (AR RER)
senior basis by these subsidiaries (each and collectively). B R B IE(R o
(©) The equity interests of the subsidiary were pledged for bank borrowings of (©) ZHBARKBRIEE/ESANEBBITRIMEE -
the Group.
(d) The equity interests of the subsidiary were pledged for loans from other (d) B ATMERDER - UEIRAHEMS B
financial institutions. EHEZ o
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AR 5 R Y

ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2023 were
approximately RMB2,083,311,000 (2022: RMB1,976,498,000),
of which approximately were RMB2,105,183,000 (2022:
RMB1,914,512,000) attributed as below for Landsea Homes.

MBEEREE

44 REARFEHMESHEBRTM

R-B-_=F+_-A=+—B0&EFEEHHE
A ANRE2 083,311,000 (ZF = —
£ AR #1,976,498,0007T) * H A Landsea
Homes F& 1f #) A R #2,105,183,000 ¢ (= =

—Z-F: AR¥1,914,512,0007T) #0 K ©

Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has a material non-

BEEAFEFRIMERNANEBENB R FF

controlling interest are set out below: BEHINAT :
2023 2022
—ZE-= T
Percentage of equity interest held by non- SIS TIREE DL
controlling interest:
Landsea Homes Landsea Homes 45.95% 41.98%
SUMMARISED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL BERRRBE
POSITION
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTIT
Current mED
Assets BE 9,629,328 9,284,700
Liabilities =K (1,346,823) (1,240,384)
Total current net assets mEFEERE 8,282,505 8,044,316
Non-current FEED
Assets BE 790,970 747,779
Liabilities =i (4,237,131) (3,855,279)
Total non-current net assets EMEFEELE (3,446,161) (3,107,500)
Non-controlling interests of Landsea Homes [ff /& A &1 &9
subsidiaries of Landsea Homes FE 2 ) M 4 2 (251,252) (378,659)
Net assets attributable to the % )8 7 Landsea Homes
shareholders of Landsea Homes IR RFE E 4,585,092 4,558,157
Accumulated non-controlling interest RETIEIESI R = 2,105,183 1,914,512
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44 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
SUMMARISED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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44 BEARFEHEREBME DT

HEERRE @
BEaRkHEMEZHKERFE
2023 2022
—E-= —_E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Revenue A 8,537,157 9,780,142
Profit before income tax B BT 15 % A1 A1) 285,817 689,249
Income tax expense Fri5#i & A (83,930) (171,745)
Total profit b FEE 201,887 517,504
Total comprehensive income for the year Landsea Homes

attributed to the non-controlling Ff B8~ B SR ) 1 fE

interests of subsidiary of Landsea Homes FEEFEREEKREE 24,091 14,300
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZE MW=L 177,796 503,204
Total comprehensive income FEFE B M R R PR D 2 E W s 4B RE

attributable to non-controlling interest 83,935 190,498

Distribution to non-controlling interests M SEHE R 25 2 R - -

B B Ak (0 B AT IR 2N ) S} SRR 311
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44 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 44 EERFEHMEEZMBE QRN

312

ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON- MBENREE @
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)
SUMMARISED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS ReRERFE
2023 2022
—E-=HF -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Net cash generated from operating activites 482 /E B FT5IR & 558 191,685 108,150
Net cash used in investing activities BEEEFARESFRE (52,340) (1,782,449)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEEE (FTA)FSHR&FHE
financing activities (167,702) 189,349
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents R & NI & EEWR L F5E (28,357) (1,484,950)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BmNBEERREEEY 861,060 2,188,478
Effect of currency translation ReRBEcEEMEKRENTE
on cash and cash equivalents 14,069 157,532
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+ _-_A=+—HHEREL K
REFEY 846,772 861,060
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45 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
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45 RRABUBRRRRABEEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE RN T B AR R &
COMPANY
2023 2022
—E-=F B F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREF T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIZE 637,899 660,167
Right-of-use assets EREEE 451 1,292
638,350 661,459
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits  E b U 3k ~ TN R R iZ & 3,457,090 4,215,963
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 1,781 75,589
3,458,871 4,291,552
Total assets EEHE 4,097,221 4,953,011
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables H b fE X 4,408,331 4,921,105
Borrowings B 909,620 456,043
Lease liabilities HEEE 463 456
5,318,414 5,377,604
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings B - 671,104
Lease liabilities HEEE - 836
- 671,940
Total liabilities wWEE 5,318,414 6,049,544
Equity =
Share capital &7 38,702 38,702
Reserves(a) 1 (a) (1,259,895) (1,135,235)
Total deficit s 4 (1,221,193) (1,096,533)
Total liabilities and equity HEBERERS 4,097,221 4,953,011

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved
by the board of directors on 28 March 2024 and was signed on

its behalf.

Tian Ming
FH BA
Director

EF

Minisk O EHARAE ——

ARARBERRERER _ZET_MNE =4
“+NEREERE THUATALRE
HRE -

Huang Zheng
=
Director

EF

—E =R 313
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45 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45 XAREEEEBERRRAEEZD @)

314

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
(A) RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(A) XRRHEEE

Share
based  Employee Capital
Share  Translation compensation share  redemption  Contributed Other  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve trust reserve surplus reserve losses Total
RESH  ESRH  EARE
KiEE  HERE R & fif  EBHER  HfRE  RiIEE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:H
At 1 January 2022 RZZ-Z%#-f-B 24,366 122,030 19,345 (113,513) 23185 484,415 19914 (1,636,679 (1,056,937
Exchange difference arising from BERINERMELENZS
translation of foreign operation - (93,577) - - - - - - (93,577)
Proft for the year FEAE - - - - - - - 9812 9812
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE 2 EFEAE - (93,577) - - - - - 9,812 (83,765)
Movement of employee sharetrust —~ EERMEXHES
account - - - (1,267) - - - - (1,267)
Employee share based compensation /& B R M - - 6,734 - - - - - 6,734
Subtotal of transaction with HRERZ N
shareholders - - 6,734 (1,267) - - - - 5,467
At 31 December 2022 RZB-Z£+ZB=t-A 24,366 28,453 26,079 (114,780) 23,185 484415 19914 (1626867) (1,135,239
At 1 January 2023 R=2==£-F-A 24,366 28,453 26,079 (114,780) 23,185 484415 19914 (1,626867)  (1,135,235)
Exchange difierence arising from BEBNERAELEREE
translation of foreign operation - (16,491) - - - - - - (16,491)
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - (116281 (116,287)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ¥ 2 Ei B4 - (16,491) - - - - - (16281 (132,728)
Shares held for restricted share award (BB R EEHE
scheme - - - (209) - - - - (209)
Employee share based compensation 1 & FES M - - 8,211 - - - - - 8,217
Subtotal of transaction with ARRRS Nt
shareholders - - 8,217 (209) - - - - 8,068
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=F£+-f=1-A 24,366 11,962 34,356 (114,989) 23,185 484,415 19914 (1,743,104)  (1,259,895)
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46 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

On 8 January 2024, Landsea Homes, Tommy McAden,
Lisa McAden and McAden Enterprises, Inc. (collectively,
the “Sellers”) and the Antares Acquisition, LLC (“Target
Company’) entered into the membership interest purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Landsea Homes
conditionally agreed to purchase, and the Sellers
conditionally agreed to sell all of the issued equity interests
of the Target Company (the “Acquisition”). The base
purchase price for the Acquisition is US$185,000,000.

Following Landsea Holdings completed the disposal of
2,434,783 shares of the common shares of Landsea
Homes as detailed in note 46(c), Landsea Homes is no
longer a subsidiary of the Company with effect from 8
March 2024. In light of the above, the Acquisition no longer
constitutes a very substantial acquisition for the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is no longer
subject to the reporting, announcement, circular and
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules.

On 8 March 2024, the indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, Shanghai Langxin Property Development
Limited, Suzhou branch of Shanghai Landsea Investment
Management Limited, Shanghai Langming Property
Development Limited, Shanghai Langxu Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd and Shanghai Kunhong Co., Ltd
(collectively, the “Group Members”) entered into the
property transfer agreement with Nanjing Landsea Property
Management Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing Landsea Property”) and
Wuxi Huilin Yiju Real Estate Brokerage Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi
Huilin Yiju”) (collectively, the “Landsea Green Life Group
Members”), pursuant to which the Group Members shall
transfer the target property to Landsea Green Life Group
Members (the “Property Transfer”) at a consideration of
RMB9,071,671, which shall be settled by offsetting the
equivalent outstanding amount payable by the Group
Members to Landsea Green Life Group Members.
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46 HEHRER

@)

Mark B EMARAT ——

RZZEZWME— H/\H ' Landsea
Homes * Tommy McAden - Lisa McAden
% McAden Enterprises, Inc (4375 [ &7 1)
B2 Antares Acquisition, LLC ([ B & A& J)
VR RERERBEBE B UL
Landsea Homes B &R EHE  ME
FEREREEEBEEQARMNEIE
fTiRfE ((WEESEE]) - WHEENER
% B {8 /185,000,000 7T °

7 Landsea Holdings 52 Ak i & 2,434,783
% Landsea Homes & 8 % (715 2 A Kt
5£46 () 12 * Landsea Homes 1~ & 7K
AEIMMBAR BZZEZWmF=AN
HABAER - 5 LA - BB ETAR
BlIEE14E  WEESETNBBRARARN
FEEAMESE BEFBABTET
HMAFAEBETHER & BEHK
AR ERBLERTE o

RZZTZMNE=HANA - AR AR EE
2EMBAR LBMRERERZEAR
naEl s EBMAFRETEBRA AN
SRR EEHBREMEREERA
A EEAMOCEXERERA AR LS
BREXxERAR (HHEEEHEA
A HEERBAFYEEERER AR (B
FHFEHE] REHEMEEFEHME
K BRAR ((BRESEREBE]) (5718
[FReEEEEREAT]) LY
XEEHE Bt SEXNEATEAM
HARaecEESBNERAREREEY
*(WEEZE]) RKRERARK
9071671 - BB EBEIHE
B ERARIEMNAFSRCEETSEENE
NANAIEREECELEH -
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46 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

316

()

(Continued)

Nanjing Landsea Property and Wuxi Huilin Yiju are both
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of Landsea Green Life
Service Company Limited (“Landsea Green Life”).
Landsea Green Life is indirectly held as to 40.20% by Mr.
Tian. As Landsea Green Life is an associate of Mr. Tian, it
is a connected person of the Company. The Property
Transfer constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the
highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
Property Transfer is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
Property Transfer is subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but is exempt from the
circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 8 March 2024, Landsea Holdings completed the
disposal of 2,434,783 shares of LSEA Stock, representing
approximately 6.76% of the total issued and outstanding
shares of LSEA Stock as of 4 March 2024, via underwritten
offering in respect of which B. Riley Securities and BofA
Securities, Inc., were acting as joint bookrunning managers
(each of them acting for itself and on behalf of other
underwriters, together the “2024 Underwriters”), at the
public offering price of US$11.6 per share of LSEA Stock
(the “Disposal”). Completion of the Disposal, the number
of LSEA Stock held by LHC has decreased to 17,305,946,
representing approximately 48.0% of the total issued and
outstanding shares of LSEA Stock as of 4 March 2024.
Landsea Homes has ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company. The financial results of Landsea Homes Group
have ceased to be consolidated in the results of the
Company. Landsea Homes will be accounted as an
associate of the Company.

The highest applicable percentage ratios calculated
pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
Disposal exceed 75%, the Disposal constitute a very
substantial disposal of the Company and is subject to the
reporting, announcement and Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
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MR E R B EMEES R
GEEEREERA AR ((BREEE
FRHEZENRBAR - BFHEE
B 5T A R B FE A 40.20% # 3 o A
REAFGFEETABEENBEBA K
ERAARABIMBEEAT - BIE EMHEA
BUAE  EERENAR AN EE
R -BHREEYEEENERSERAA
DHEBBOABEBIERNRE% - HARE E
MR RIE14AE W EEEEBTHR

RAERTE - A RSB K & E L
BREHLERRTE ©

RZ—ZZE_WF=H/\H ' Landsea
Holdings % i B H &% & T X H &
2,434,783 R LSEAR ) - EEIZE =&
ZPHFE= A HELSEAR SN B BT RE
FTTEINIR (0 42 80 496.76% * H A B. Riley
Securities } BofA Securities, Inc. ¥ {T Bt
EREEEEA(SBAEAFRAKE
b EEE - SR BN FaHE]) -
NABEERERLSEARM11.6E T
(THEBE]) - BEFIHTHRE  LHC
B B LSEARR (D BB )R 4 & 17,305,946
R-EEE T M= HMAELSEA
BROBBITRETENROLBLHED
48.0% ° Landsea Homes 1~ & & /& A &
K} /8 A &) ° Landsea Homes & @ &9 B
BEBC THEATARRBIMNESLS -
Landsea Homes #1E & 28 2 7 &9 B & A
AIARR °

B EMBRE1407EAEFRAEE
SEMNE=EAR Y L ERBRT5% - 1
EEERBNARRINIETEALES
I8 - W/AESF ERAIE14EIH N
W NERBREIERTE



46 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(d)

In connection with the Disposal, Landsea Holdings granted
the 2024 Underwriters an option for a period of 30 days to
purchase up to 365,217 additional shares of LSEA Stock
(“Option Shares 2024”), at the public offering price of
US$11.6 per Option Share 2024. On 8 March 2024,
43,362 Option Shares 2024 amounted to US$503,000,
representing approximately 0.12% of the total issued and
outstanding shares of LSEA Stock as of 4 March 2024,
were sold by the 2024 Underwriters to Bruce Frank, Mollie
Fadule, Tom Hartfield and Murong Xinyao (the “Connected
Disposal”).

Bruce Frank, Mollie Fadule, Tom Hartfield is the directors of
Landsea Homes. Murong Xinyao is the spouse of Mr. Tian.
The Connected Disposal constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. All of the applicable percentage ratio(s) (as
defined under the Listing Rules) in respect of the
Connected Disposal in the public offering are below 5%,
the Connected Disposal constituted a connected
transaction which is subject to reporting and
announcement requirements but is exempt from the
circular, independent financial advice and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.76 of
the Listing Rules.

Save for the above, there is no other material subsequent
event undertaken by the Company or the Group after 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this report.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

S 75 7

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=1+—HLEFE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=E —ET—-— B —EBE-FTFE —E—HhF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT AREFTT ARBTIT AR®ETT
Results E5
Revenue* A 9,039,797 14,018,521 8,076,070 8,991,903 8,558,735
(Loss)/profit before income tax* K BT 15 F: Al
(E518) /FI B8~ (823,318) (1,746,424) (506,910) 521,739 2,081,838
Income tax expense* Fristi & m* (40,001) (707,328) (189,281) (489,148) (597,984)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(B8),/FE (863,319) (2,453,752) (696,191) 32,501 1,498,134
Attributable to: SEEBR
The shareholder of the Company N2 & & &R (860,793) (2,588,642) (777,504) (100,572) 1,171,943
Non-controlling interest FE 2 ) M e 2 (2,526) 134,890 81,313 133,163 326,191
(863,319)  (2,453,752) (696,191) 32,591 1,498,134
* Including continuing and discontinued operations BEREREXBRERILED
At 31 December
BR+=—HA=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—g-=fF —T—— B —E-FTF —E-HEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT AREFTT AREBTT ARETT
Assets and liabilities EEIEE
Total assets BB E 19,353,585 19,986,792 27,883,353 24,700,795 25,842,208
Total liabilities FEN=R (17,281,301) (17,293,434) (22,302,091) (19,205,656) (19,737,977)
2,072,284 2,693,358 5,581,262 5,495,139 6,104,231
Attributable to: BN
The shareholder of the Company  ZANA & & R (11,027) 716,860 3,924,507 4,983,486 5,298,698
Non-controlling interest FEPE S A 2,083,311 1,976,498 1,656,755 511,653 805,533
2,072,284 2,693,358 5,581,262 5,495,139 6,104,231
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BE Y =15

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR RENTAL PURPOSE
FELERAZNRENYE

Attributable
Nature of interest of
Location property the Group Lease term

1 Bh MM E RE MR ER BAOFH

Nanjing Huafei Apartment, Apartment 100% Medium-term lease
The Eastern side of Huadian Road and
the Northern side of East Huadian Road,
Qixia District,
Nanjing City,
Jiangsu Province,
The PRC
aile
LEE
B R
BER
EEHUR - FERBKIL
ARERAE

100% FhHAFE 4

5
et

Landsea Neighbourhood Union, Commercial 100% Vacant
The Western side of West Yunhe Road and
the Southern side of Ningjia Road,
Xinwu District,
Wuxi City,
Jiangsu Province,
The PRC
= EES 100% =8
TLERA
mHm
MRE
E TR DATE - ERIKIAM
A EE

WA EERARAT — —E - SHEER 319



PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BENEY SRR

Attributable
Nature of interest of
Location property the Group Lease term

it 36 E e AEBEELER HAOFH

Building Block No. 5 of Commercial 60% Medium-term lease
Landsea Green Center,

The southwestern corner of

the intersection of

Xuanwu Avenue and

Jiangwangmiao Street,

Xuanwu District,

Nanjing City,

Jiangsu Province,

The PRC

H EES 60% HERFR 49
LEE

B R

ZRARBRBEEHREIAEEEA

MR B 55RIE

The 2nd floor of Building Block No. 5 of Commercial 100% Medium-term lease
International Business Park,

No. 280 Linhong Alley,

Changning District,

Shanghai City,

The PRC

o3 [EES 100% B 4
=2l

W 41 % 280 7F

£/5BPEIFRABIEESHRE2
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